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ISSUER
MK FOOTWEAR PLC

Nayonpur Bazar, Chalkpara, Medical more, Mawna - Dulivita Rd, Mawna Union 1740, Gazipur.
Tel: +880-02-9836386, Fax: +880-02-9836386
E-mail: mkfootwearltdbd@gmail.com, Website: www.mk-footwear.com

TRUSTEE
‘ COMMUNITY BANK INVESTMENT LIMITED
Community Bani Road#144, Plot #2, Police Plaza Concord (Level 12, Tower 2) Dhaka, 1212, Bangladesh
‘ vastment Limiloec Tel: +880 25504 5226

Email: info@communitybank-investment.com,
Website: Www.communitybank-investment.com.com

LEAD ARRANGER
ALPHA CAPITAL MANAGEMENT LTD.

Eastern Arzoo Complex (7th floor), 61 Bijoynagar, Dhaka-1000.
Phone: +8802 48316519, 02 483 16540, 02 48313947, Fax: +8802 48316547
Email: alpha.acml@gmail.com, info@acmlbd.com, Website: www.acmlbd.com

Issue Name * MK Footwear Non-Convertible Bond

Type of Security ¢ Non-Convertible, Fully Redeemable & Unsecured Bond

Issue Ammount ¢ BDT 550,000,000.00

Face Value of each Bond : BDT 1,000,000.00

Number of securities : 550

Tenor or maturity * Up to 8 with up to 2 years moratorium

Coupon Rate ¢ Coupon Rate: SMART+ 2% Margin, Ceiling: 11.50% p-a. Floor: 9.0% p.a.
CREDIT RATING STATUS

*

REssuacn N S =
Rating of the Issuer ST-3
Outlook : Stable
Expiry Date :  November 20,2024
Bond Issue Rating ¢ A-(Indicative)
Expiry Date : November 19, 2024
Rating Agency :  Credit Rating Information & Services Limited (CRISL)

“If you have any query about this document, you may consult the issuer or originator, issue manager and the trustee”

Date of issuance of Information Memorandum: ***
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Arranger’s Disclaimer

MK Footwear PLC (“MKFPLC” or “the Issuer”) has authorized Alpha Capital Management Ltd. (the
“Lead Arranger") to distribute this Information Memorandum in connection with the proposed
transaction outlined in it (the “Transaction”) and the proposed bond to be issued in the Transaction (the
“Bond”).

“Alpha Capital Management Ltd.” ("ACML’, The Lead Arranger) means Alpha Capital Management Ltd.
and any group, subsidiary, associate or affiliate of Alpha Capital Management Ltd and their respective
directors, representatives or employees and/or any persons connected with them.

Nothing in this Information Memorandum constitutes an offer of securities for sale of any jurisdiction

where such offer or placement would be in violation of any law, rule or regulation.

The issuer has prepared this information memorandum and issuer is solely responsible for its contents.
The issuer will comply with all ruies, laws and regulations and has obtained all regulatory, Governmental
and corporate approvals for the issuance of the bond and will be collected in due course at time, if any
such thing is pending. All the information contained in this information memorandum has been
provided by the Issuer or has been collected from publicly available information, and such information
has not been independently verified by the Arranger. No representation or warranty, expressed or
implied, is or shall be made, and no responsibility or liability is or will be accepted, by the Arranger or
its affiliates for the accuracy, completeness, reliability, correctness or fairness of this Information
Memorandum or any of the information or opinions contained therein, and the Arranger hereby
expressly declaim, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any responsibility for the contents of this
Information Memorandum and any liability, whether arising in tort or contract or otherwise, relating to
or resulting from this Information Memorandum or any information or errors contained therein or any

omissions there form. By accepting this Information Memorandum, you agree that Arranger will not

have any such liability.

You should carefully read and retain this Information Memorandum. However, you are not to construe
the contents of this Information Memorandum as investment, legal, accounting, regulatory or tax advice,
and you should consult with your own Arrangers as to all legal, accounting, regulatory, tax financial and

related matters concerning an investment in the Bond.

Issuer’s Disclaimer
All rights and obligations of the issuer listed herein have been paraphrased and /or summarized from

the Bond Documents and are subject to the terms and conditions contained in such Bond Documents.

Shibly Amran

Chief Executive Office

Managin
MK FOOTWEAR PLC
]
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ISSUER: MK FOOTWEAR PLC
Mohammed Tohidul Islam
Company Secretary
Mobile: 01913256877
Telephone: +880-02-9836386
Fax: +880-02-9836386
E-mail: tohidulislam848560@gmail.com
Website: mk-footwear.com

Mohammad Mahabub Alam
Chief Financial Officer
Mobile: 01552311414
Telephone: +880-02-9836386
Fax: +880-02-9836386
E-mail: mahabubalam006@gmail.com
Website: mk-footwear.com

F. M. Hasan Mahfuz Russell
Director & Chief Executive Officer
Mobile: 01731012411
Telephone: +880-02-9836386
Fax: +880-02-9836386
E-mail: mahufuz.fmh@gmail.com
Website: mk-footwear.com

LEAD ARRANGER: ALPHA CAPITAL MANAGEMENT LTD.
Md. Rakib Sadi
Chief Executive Officer
Eastern Arzoo Complex (7th floor) 61 Bijoynagar, Dhaka-1000.
Phone; 02 48316519, 02 48316540, 02 48313947, Fax: +8802 48316547
Email: alpha.acml@gmail.com,info@acmlbd.com
Website: www.acmlbd.com

& Community Bani

investment Limited

TRUSTEE: COMMUNITY BANK INVESTMENT LIMITED

Shibly Amran
Chief Executive Officer
Road#144, Plot #2, Police Plaza Concord (Level 12, Tower 2) Dhaka, 1212, Bangladesh
Tel: +880 25504 5226
Email: info@communitybank-investment.com, Website: www.communitybank-investment.com

CIRESL

Credit Roting Information and Services Linuted

CREDIT RATING AGENCY: CREDIT RATING INFORMATION AND SERVICES LIMITED (CRISL])
Sohag Roy
Assistant Manager-Business Development
Nakshi Homes (15, 4t & 5t Floor) 6/1/A, Segunbagicha, Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh
Telephone: 88-02-9530991-3, Direct: 88-02-9530998
Email: sohagroy@crisilbd.com, info@ crisilbd.com, Website: www.crislbd.com

G KIBRIA & €O

CHARTILRED ACCOUNTANTS

AUDITOR: G. KIBRIA & CO, CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Sultan Moheuddin FCA
Partner, G. Kibria & Co., Chartered Accountants
Sadharan Bima Sadan (5th Floor), 24-25, Dilkusha C/A, Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh
Tel: +8802-223 355 324, 02-223 390 717, 02-223 388 071, Fax: +8802-9553630
E-mail: gkibria@gkibriaandco.com, kibria03@hotmail.com, Website: gkibriaandco.com
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In the normal course of business operations, MK Footwear PLC would subject to macroeconomic risks

(external factors), sectoral risks (risk of a typical nature for similar footwear companies), and company-
specific risks (internal factors). The majority of these risks can be mitigated effectively. Before making
any investment decision, Investors should take the risk factors into consideration. Such major risk

factors are described in brief as under:

(a) Interest rate risks
Interest rate risk arises from swinging interest rates in the market. An increase in the interest rate in

the market may impact the value of fixed income debt securities.

The more a company has floating rate debt, the greater is the risk associated with a rise in interest rates.
Products or services whose prices depend on interest rates may also expose a company to interest rate
risk. Interest rate movement also impacts the return on and value of investment in debt securities or
FDR. Monetary policy stance, company specific factors (Le., changes in the credit rating), and external

shocks (l.e., exchange rate movement) are the primary sources of effective finance cost fluctuation.
Management Perception

The coupon rate on this bond is SMART+ 2% Margin and floating between 9.0% p.a. to 11.50% p.a. A fixed
margin of 2% per annum will be added to mentioned reference rate. The Coupon rate can never go beyond
9.0%p.a. This feature will protect the investors from the adverse movement in interest rate. On other hand,
efficient financial strategies and options will help the company to reduce the exposure of its finance cost to

adverse movement in interest rate.

(b) foreign exchange risks with risk mitigation policy;

Foreign Exchange risk arises when an institution holds assets or liabilities in foreign currencies and
impacts the earnings and capital of institution due to the fluctuations in the exchange rates. Institution
cannot predict what the exchange rate will be in the next period, it can move in either upward or
downward direction regardless of what the estimates and predictions were. This uncertain movement

poses a threat to the earnings and capital of any institute, if such a movement is in undesired and

unanticipated direction.

MK Footwear PLC- Page | 7

Mohammad Tt |slam
Company Secietary
MK Footwear Ltd.




Strictly Private & Confidencial

Management Perception

The bond is denominated in Bangladeshi Taka. So, there is no exchange risk for local investors as investors
will receive the interest and principal back in Bangladeshi Taka. The company has no long-term loan
denominated in foreign currency which wipes out the risk of translation loss. On the other hand, export of
Footwear products will help to reduce the exposure to forex risk at raw material import stage to some
extent. The industrywide ability to pass-through increased raw marital sourcing cost also minimizes the

risk to some extent.

(c) Non-repayment risks

The risk of loss of principal or loss of a financial reward stemming from a borrower's failure to repay a
loan or otherwise meet a contractual obligation. This is the risk of default on a debt that may arise
because of default by the borrower to pay the loan. Analysis of credit worthiness (credit history, capacity
to repay, leverage level, capital, the loan's conditions, and associated collateral) and future prospects can

provide appropriate idea about the potential non-repayment risk.
Management Perception-

The growth story, growth prospects, loan repayment history, leverage level, and governance rating are the
evidence of the high credit worthiness of the company. These factors along with the resilience of the
company over the last 3 years of global crisis indicate that the company has willingness to repay its debt

obligation regularly.

(d) Prepayment, call, or refunding risks .
Prepayment risk is the risk that the actual cash flows will be different from the timing set in the loan
agreements due to borrower’s willingness to repay the principal early given the contemporary interest

rate level or future interest rate movement expectation. The exercise options can also expose to the

prepayment risk.

Management Perception-
Since there is no provision for early repayment of the principal amount of the Bond, the bondholders will
not be exposed to prepayment or call risks associated with the investment. However, the bondholders may

require early redemption. MKFPLC is already aware of the situation and can take necessary steps to fulfill

the bond tenor for securing the projected cash flow.
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(e) Security risks

Here, security means collateral or guarantes, wiicn minimnizes the risk for lenders by ensuring that the
borrower keeps up with their financial obligation. The security risk of loss arising from errors in the
nature, quantity, pricing, or characteristics of collateral securinga transaction with credit risk. This bond

is not secured by any collateral or guarantee.

Management Perception

There is no security risk as no collateral or guarantee is offered.

(f) Liquidity risks

Liquidity risks for bondholders can be considered from two aspects. Firstly, this risk can come from a
company's inability to meet short-term and long-term obligations due to unavailability of cash. Another
source of liquidity risk is the restriction to sell the Bond to others before the redemption date. In both

of the cases, liquidity risk can pose great threat to the investment prospect of a bond.

Management Perception -

In the past, MKFPLC has been able manage its liquidity risk by keeping both quick ratio and current ratio
stable. The Company manages its liquidity/cash buffer efficiently and with a long-term focus, and does not
envisage emergence of any significant liquidity risk in the near-term. Furthermore, the Company
proactively assesses the need for funds to meet its obligations and ensures the availability of cash or
collateral to full those needs. To mitigate the other aspect of liquidity risk of the bondholders, MKFPLC has
structured the Bond with transferability option. The bondholders can transfer the bond at any time after

the completion of subscription subject to certain restrictions.

(g) Management risks

Management risk associated with the risk of financial, ethical, reputational or other loss due to the
inefficient or ineffective decision made by management, whether willingly or unwillingly. Key person
risk and conflict of interest between different stakeholders are also potential source of management

risk.

Management Perception-

Management policy helps the company to keep the risk of conflict of interest at low level. History of success
of directors in different local industries and the excellence of the top management in the Footwear indicate
efficiency of the management. The company successfully manage this risk by creating a bridge between the

interest of top management with other stakeholders.
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(h) Operational risks;
Operational risk is the risk of losses caused by tlawed or failed processes, policies, systems or events
that disrupt business operations. Due to the operational risk organization’s people and processes may

incur errors and contribute to ineffective operations.

Management Perception:

By evaluating operational risk, MKFPLC is always aware about practical remedial steps, which should be
emphasized to eliminate exposures and ensure successful responses. We are also aware about monetary
loss, competitive disadvantage, employee- or customer-related problems, and business failure related to

operational risk.

(i) Business risks

Business risk is related to the strategic factors, operational factors, compliance factors, and reputation
factors that may adversely impact the turnover and profitability or even may cause a company to go
bankrupt. Common sources of business risk are changes in the consumer behaviour, overall economic

downturn, disruptive innovation, reputational issues, and changes in the regulations.

Management Perception-

The growth story and the evidence of innovation says a lot about the strategic and operational strength of
the company. The management is open to innovation and very aware about its reputation and compliance
requirements. The investment in R&D, awareness about strategic shift, and maintenance of good relation

with the regulators reduces exposure to such risk.

(j) Industry Risks

Industry risk is the possibility that a specific industry will not perform to the level or at par. When
problems plague one industry, they affect the individual organization of that particular industry. They
may also cross over into other industries. Industry risk also refers to the risk of the increased
competition from foreign and domestic sources leading to lower revenues, profit margins, market share

etc. which could have an adverse impact on the business, financial condition and result of operation.

Management Perception

MK Footwear PLC is aware of the continuing market situation of its raw materials. The management of MK
Footwear PLC believes that long term planning for raw material management, exploring number of global
markets, job wise costing for its finished products and trustworthy relations wi th the suppliers and mitigate

the risk of rising of materials cost.
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(k) Market and Technology-related Risks
Market risks
Any economic recession, changes in tastes and fashions of the consumers, national income and other

related factors may cause to decline the market demand of the company products.
Management perception

MK Footwear PLC always gives values to its customers’ satisfaction and changes in tastes and fashion.
Hence, the company has been dedicated to delivering any changes in customers’ demand and new fashion

trend as well.

Technology-related risks

Changes in technologies may hamper the cost efficiency of the Company.
Management perception

MK Footwear PLC applies the latest technology in the manufacturing process in the production. MK
Footwear PLC is very concerned using high performance and sophisticated equipment. Not only
sophistication but also strength is one of our priorities. In case of new technologies, we have mastered

adaptation techniques without hampering the cost efficiency of the company.

(1) risks related to potential or existing government regulations

The Company operates under Company’s Act 1994 and other related regulation, Income Tax Ordinance
1984, Income Tax Rules 1984, Value Added Tax (VAT) Act 1991 and Value Added Tax (VAT) Rules 1991.
Any abrupt changes of the policies made by the regulatory authorities may adversely affect the business

of the company.
Management perception

3
Since, Government regulations are mostly investment-friendly regarding export-oriented sector. However,

unless any policy change that may negatively and materially affect the industry as a Whole, the business of

the Company is expected not to be affected. The industry has experienced robust growth during the last
decade which is likely to sustain in the near future. Therefore, it is highly unlikely that the government will

initiate any economic measure having adverse effect on the growth of the induktry.

(m) risk related to potential changes in global or national policies

Risk related to potential changes in global or national policies determine the political instability and the
associated deterioration of law-and-order stand in the way of timely implementation of the projects.
Changes in existing global or national policies can have either positive or negative impacts for the
[nstitutions. The performance of the institute will be hindered to unavoidable circumstance both in

Bangladesh and worldwide like political turmoil.
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Management perception

Over the last decade the macro economy of Bangladesh has developed consistently; country’s GDP has
increased remarkably and living standard of the people has been higher. Most importantly, Government
spending and public and private communication have increased drastically. All these macroeconomic
features indicate larger economic activities in the country. Our management perceives that this economic

trend will continue in the foreseeable future which will see good business profitability in the days to come.
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01. Particulars of the issuer:

(a) Name : MK Footwear PLC

(b} Legal status : Public Limited Company

F. M. Hasan Mahfuz Russell
Director & Chief Executive Officer
Mobile: 01731012411
Telephone: +880-02-9836386
Fax: +880-02-9836386

(c) Details of contact information

E-mail: mahfuz.fmh@gmail.com
Address: Nayonpur Bazar, Chalkpara, Medical more,
Mawna - Dulivita Rd, Mawna Union 1740, Gazipur.

(d) Date of incorporation November 12, 2015

(e) Date of commencement of business  : July 02,2020
(f) Authorized capital : BDT 1,000,000,000
(g) Paid-up capital : BDT 478,472,000
(h) Total equity : BDT 780,196,356
(i) Total liabilities : BDT1,471,094,112
(j) Total financial obligations s BDT 1,272,010:678
(k) Total assets : BDT 2,251,290,468
(1) Total tangible assets :+ BDT 2,251,209,618
(m) Networth : BDT 780,196,356

Small Capital Platform of DSE on June 20, 2023 and
subsequently CSE on June 22, 2023

(n)} Listing

02. Particulars of the issuer manager:

N/A
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03. Particulars of the issue:

a) Name of the issue

b) Type of instruments to be issued

c) Purpose of the issue

d) Number of securities and total size of

the issue to be offered

e) Face value and issue price of
securities mentioning discount or
premium thereof

f) Coupon rate or rate of profit or
discount rate and yield to maturity

(YTM)

g) Tenor or maturity

h) Details of conversion/exchange
option features

i) Mode of redemption or
conversion/exchange

j) Mode of option (call or put), ifany, in

case of redemption or
conversion/exchange and discount
or premium thereof

k) Rate of return

1) Applicable tax rate
m) Default mechanism

(details of

protection
credit enhancement

arrangement/agreement,

Strictly Private & Confidencial

MK Footwear Non-Convertible Bond
Non-Convertible, Fully Redeemable & Unsecured
Bond

To meet the requirement of buyer Compliance and
working capital requirement.

Number of Securities: 550

total size of the issue to be offered: BDT
550,000,000.00

Face Value: BDT 1,000,000.00

issue price of securities mentioning discount or
premium thereof: BDT 550,000,000.00

Reference Rate+ Margin

Reference Rate: Six Months Moving Average Rate of
Treasury Bill (SMART)

Reference Rate shall be fixed 5 working days prior to
the commencement of each Coupon Payment Period.
Margin: 2%

Up to 08 years with 2 years moratorium

Non-Convertible
Semi-annually

The issuer has the right to redeem (call) the Bond
earlier than maturity @ 0.25 % premium. However,
there is no put option (sold it back to the issuer) to
this issue for investors.

Due to floating coupon rate and convertibility
feature of the bond, the rate of return cannot
calculate with certainty.

Taxable as per the law ofthé country

Not applicable (This bond is unsecured in nature. No

credit enhancement is applicable).
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redemption reserve, sinking fund
etc.,), if any
n) Type of collateral securities being

offered, if any

0) Status of securities holders in case of
priority of payment

p) Period within which securities to be
issued

q) Nature of tradability or listing in the
stock exchange(s) (Main Board / ATB
/any other platform, mentioning the

name of the stock exchange)

04. Particulars of the trustee:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

Name of the trustee

Paid-up capital of the trustee
Net worth of the trustee

of the where

Name issue(s)

performing as trustee

05. Particulars of the credit rating company:

(a) Name of credit rating company

(b) Credit rating status of the issuer or

originator

(c) Credit rating status of the issue

Mohammad

company
wi Footwearl

Strictly Private & Confidencial

The Bonds are unsecured in nature and so there will
be no enforceable charge created over the securities.
However, the director's shares will be pledged to the
trustee for the sum of disbursement received in the
following manner calculation to determine the
number of shares against disbursement is as follow:
Collateral Value per share = (Six Months weighted
average market value of MK Footwear PLC’s share -
30% discount on the weighted average value).
Subordinated to all secured lenders but before
payment of all equity holders.

As per the consent of Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission

Non-Listed (Private Placement])

Community Bank Investment Limited
BDT 250,000,000
BDT 243,141,368

Star Adhesives Limited

Credit Rating Information & Services Limited
(CRISL)

Long Term- A -

Short Term- ST-3

Status- Stable

Long Term- A - (Indicative)

Status- Stable

MK Footweagi\(‘.—Page 115 ™

| (L (e 2 A
1 1am Noor Moham:
gecictafy \,}:/I{anégéng Direc
MK FOOTWEAR

Lta



Strictly Private & Confidencial

(d) Date and validity of rating along with : Date of Rating (Issuer): November 21, 2023
surveillance rating for the issuer or Validity of Rating (Issuer): November 20, 2024
originator and for the issue Date of Rating (Issue): November 20, 2023

Validity of Rating (Issue): November 19, 2023

(e) Latestdefaultrate of the creditrating : 0.00%

company
(f) Average time to default of the rated : 0.0
category
(g) Rating trigger : If the credit rating of the Issue falls below the

minimum investment grade i.e.,, “BBB” in the long
term or “ST-3" in the short term, then the Issuer shall
pay an additional fee on top of the stipulated Coupon
Rate as a Risk Premium as mentioned in the below

table:

[ssue Rating Risk Premium to be Added

BB 0.25%
B 0.50%
G 0.75%

D - 1.00%

06. Particulars of originators, if any:

N/A

07. Particulars of other contractual parties:

N/A

08. Following documents has been attached with the application:
(a) Certified copy of memorandum and articles of association or such certified legal
documents, as the case may be;
(b) Certified copy of certificite of incorporation or registration and certificate of
commencement ofbusinesé, where applicable;

(c) certified copy of particulars of directors or trustees or particulars of owners, as the case

MK Footweax PLC- Page | 16
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Strictly Private & Confidencial

(d) certified copy of return of aliotment of shares and annual summary of share capital, where
applicable;

(e) latest original auditors’ report with the reiated audited financial statements of the issuer
or originator:

(f)  purpose of issuance of securities and plan to use of proceeds thereof;

(g) resolution of the board of directors or governing body or board of trustees or concerned
authority deciding to issue securities (Bond, Debenture or ISBS or Sukuk or ABS or any
debt securities);

(h)  copy of disclosures of price sensitive information, in case the issuer or originator is a listed
company;

(i) banker’s certificate, or bank statement showing deposit of an amount equivalent to the
owners’ stake in the issuer or originator; or auditor’s certificate in this regard attested by
the Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer;

) description of business of the issuer or originator;

(k) latest credit rating report of the issue;

)] latest credit rating report of the issuer or originator, in case of public issue;

(m) draft information memorandum (IM) prepared as per Schedule ‘B":

(n) draft deed of trust prepared as per schedule ‘C’;

(o) declaration relating to covenants for rating trigger, if any and adoption of specific
enforceable actions thereof;

(p) copy of registration certificate of the trustee by the Commission to act as trustee to the
issue of debt securities or ISBS or Sukuk or ABS, as applicable;

() due diligence certificate of the trustee as per Schedule ‘D’;

(r) repaymentor payment schedule of the debt securities or 1SBS or Sukuk or ABS;

(s) undertaking of issuer or originator or guarantor(s) and its directors for obtaining CIB
report from Bangladesh Bank,

Additional Documents:
(a) Previous 3 years Audited Financials
(b) Forecasted Financial Statements for the Tenure of the Bond
3 MK Footwear PLC- Page | 17 ™
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Strictly Private & Confidencial

Mk Footwear PLC has decided raise to BDT 550,000,000.00 through the issuance of Non-Convertible

Bonds in order to enhance the Company’s production facilities. Proceeds from the bond will also be used

to meet the requirement of buyer Compliance and working capital requirement in order to boost

profitability.

The estimated utilization of proceed will be as follows:

Sl No. ~ Particulars | D o

1% To meet the requirement of buyer Cohﬁplianée ' 100’000'0»00

2 To meet working capital requirement 430,000,000

3. To meet Bond Issue expenses 20,000,000

Total 550,000,000

X
MK FootweagPLC- Page | 18 ™
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(a) Basic features of the instrument;

(a) Issuer
(b)  Name of the Issue
() IssueType
(d) Trustee
(e)  Fund Arranger
(ff  Arrangement Basis
(g) Purpose
(h) Investors
(i) Currency
() Issue Amount
(k)  Face value per unit
()  Minimum
Investment
(Subscription)
(m)  Mode of Placement
(n})  Tenure
(o)  Security
(p)  Coupon Rate
(@ Coupon Ceiling
(r)  Coupon Floor
(s) Coupon Fixing Day
Shibly Amran

Chief Executive Officer
Community Bank invesiment Limited

MK Footwear PLC

MK Footwear Non-Convertible Bond

Non-Convertible, Fully Redeemable & Unsecured Bond
Community Bank Investment Limited

Alpha Capital Management Ltd.

Best Efforts

To meet the requirement of buyer Compliance and working capital
requirement. |
Banks, Corporate, Financial Institutions, Mutual Funds, Insurance
Companies, and High net worth individuals (HNWI) and any other
eligible investors.

BDT

BDT 550,000,000.00

BDT 1,000,000.00

BDT 1,000,000.00

Private Placement [Subjected to BSEC Approval]

Up to 08 years with 2 years moratorium

Unsecured

Reference Rate+ Margin

Reference Rate: Six Months Moving Average Rate of Treasury Bill
(SMART) ._

Reference Rate shall be fixed 5 working day; -prior to the
commencement of each Coupon Payment Period. - '

Margin: 2%

11.50% p.a.

9.00% p.a. '

Coupon Fixing Day refers to the day on which the Coupon Rate for
the Period will be fixed. This shall be five (05) working days prior

to the commencement of each Coupon Payment Period.
LC- Page m
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(t) PaymentFrequency  * Coupun wifi be paid semi-annually, i.e., twice a year
(u)  Coupon payment : Coupoil i‘ayment shal e payable on half yearly basis from the

Date of Issuance of Bond.

Couponv‘Payment Date shali be the last day of every six (06) month

from the Date of Issuance of Bond.

Coupon Calculation:

(Number of Bonds held by a Bondholder on the respective date (x)
Face Value of the Bond, i.e., BDT 1,000,000 each.) (x) Coupon Rate
X 6/12

if any Coupon Payment Date falls on a holiday includinga weekend
or on a day that is not a Business Day or a day during continuation
of a Force Majeure Event, then the subsequent trading day at the
Dhaka Stock Exchange shall be the Coupon Payment Date.
(v)  Governing Law . The laws of The People’s Republic of Bangladesh
(w)  Documentation : ¢ Bond Subscription Agreement
e TrustDeed
e Any other instruments(s) relating to such transaction
(x)  Tradability : Non-Tradable
(y) Late Redemption : The Issuer shall pay a late payment penalty of 2% percent higher
than the declared coupon rate which will be payable on the
amount not paid on the due date till the date of actual payment.

(z) Mode of option {call : The issuer has the right to redeem (call) the Bond earlier than

or put), if any, in case maturity @ 0.25 % premium. However, there is no pyt option (sold
of redemption or it back to the issuer) to this issue for investors. .
conversion/exchange

and discount or
premium thereof '
(aa)  Rating Trigger : If the credit rating of the Issue falls below the minimum
investment grade i.e., “BBB” in the long term or “ST-3” in the short
term, then the Issuer shall pay an additional fee on top of the

stipulated Coupon Rate as a Risk Premium as mentioned in the

below table:

MK FootwearRLC- Page | 20
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Strictly Private & Confidenciai

1zsue Hating Risi Premium to be Added

BB 0.25%
B 0.50%
c 0.75%
D 1.00%
(bb)  Tax Features : Taxable as per the law of the country.
(cc)  Regulatory Approval : Upon approval from the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange

Commission (BSEC), the Company will issue the bonds as per the
information memorandum. In no way, the Company shall issue

any such bonds without taking approval from the BSEC.

b) Rate of return, Yield to Maturity, Coupon/Discount Rate:
Due to floating coupon rate and convertibility feature of the bond, the rate of return cannot calculate

with certainty.

c) Transferability/Liquidity:

The bond is transferable as per conditions mentioned in Modus Operandi.

d) Prepayment, Call, Refunding, Conversion or Exchange option:
The issuer has the right to redeem (call) the Bond earlier than maturity @ 0.25 % premium. However,

there is no put option (sold it back to the issuer) to this issue for investors.

e) Early redemption or Late redemption:
The Issuer shall within 30 (thirty) days prior to the Redemption Dates or purchase in respect of any
Bond, give to the Trustee notice in writing of the amount of such redemption or purchase pursuant to

the Conditions and duly proceed to redeem or purchase such Bonds accordingly.

f) Tax Features:

As applicable by the Govt. All payments made by the Issuer or under or in respect of or the Bonds will
be subject to any present or future taxes, duties, assessments, or governmental charges of whatever
nature imposed, levied, collected, withheld, or assessed by or on behalf of Bangladesh or any political
subdivision thereof or any authority thereof or therein having power to tax. The Issuer will not be
obligated to pay any additional amounts in respect of such taxes, duties, assessments, or governmental
charges that may from time to time be deducted or withheld from such payments but will provide or

procure the provision of original or authenticated tax receipts relating to any such deductions or

withholdings to Bondholders.
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(h)  Costs related to the issue:

Particulars

Basis of Fees

Serictly Private & Confidencra

Amount BDT

Arranger to the Issue fees: 12,650,000
Issue Arranger 2% of the Issue Size 11,000,000
VAT against [ssue Management fee 15% of Arrangement fee 1,650,000
BSEC Fees: 560,000
Application Fee Fixed 10,000
Consent Fee 0.10% on the offering amount 550,000 |
Trustee Fees 4,750,000
Trustee Fee Fixed 4,000,000
VAT on Trustee Fees 15% of Trustee fee 600,000
Trustee Application Fee Fixed 50,000
Trustee Registration Consent Fee % Fixed 100,000
Legal Advisor Fee 920,000
Legal Advisor Fee Negotiable 800,000
VAT on Legal Advisor 15% of Legal Advisor fee 120,000
Credit Rating Fee 920,000
Credit Rating Fee of the Bond Negotiable 800,000
VAT on Credit Rating Fee 15% of Credit Rating fee 120,000
Misc. Fee 200,000
Total Estimated Cost 20,000,000

o
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{h) Repayment schedule

Period

Installment

Number

Installment

Interest

Strictly Private & Confidencial

Principal

Balance

i 31,625,000 581,625,000
1stYear

2 33,443,438 615,068,438

3 35,366,435 650,434,873
2nd Year

4 37,400,005 687,834,878

5 80,922,173 39,550,505 41,371,667 646,463,211
3rdYear

6 80,922,173 37,171:635 43,750,538 602,712,673

7 80,922,173 34,655,979 46,266,194 556,446,479
4th Year

8 80,922,173 31,995,673 48,926,500 507,519,979

9 80,922,173 29,182,399 51,739,774 455,780,205
5th Year

10 80,922,173 26,207,362 54,714,811 401,065,394

11 80,922,173 23,061,260 57,860,912 343,204,482
6th Year .

12 80,922,173 19,734,258 61,187,915 282,016,567

13 80,922,173 16,215,953 64,706,220 217,310,347
7th Year

) 14 80,922,173 12,495,345 68,426,828 148,883,519

15 80,922,173 8,560,802 72,361,370 76,522,149
8th Year !

16 80,922,173 4,400,024 76,522,149 0

(i) Call or put option, and premium or discount thereof; if any;

The issuer has the right to redeem (call) the Bond earlier than maturity @ 0.25 % premium. However,

there is no put option (sold it back to the issuer) to this issue for investors.

(j) Credit enhancement or guarantee, if any;

Personal Guarantee by the Directors of the Company in case the Company fails to redeem the Bonds in

due time.

(k) Enforcement of charges over securities;

No charges will create over the Securities. Details presented in the trust deed.
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Strictly Private & Confidencial

The Bonds are unsecured in nature and so there will be no enforceable charge created over the

securities. However, the director’s shares will be pledged to the trustee for the sum of disbursement
received in the following manner calculation to determine the number of shares against disbursement

is as follow:

Collateral Value per share = (Six Months weighted average market value of MK Footwear PLC's share -

30% discount on the weighted average value).

Shibly Amran
Chief Executive Officet
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Strictly Private & Confidenciul

Covenant to Repay

The Issuer covenants with the Trustee that it will, as and when the Bonds or any of them
become due to be redeemed or Converted or any principal on the Bonds or any of them
becomes due to be repaid or converted. in accordance with the Conditions, unconditionally
pay or procure to be paid to or to the order of the Trustee in the relevant currency is
immediately available freely transferable funds for redemption on Redemption Date and shall
(subject to the provisions of the Conditions) until all such payment (both before and after
judgment or other order) are duly made unconditionally pay or procure to be paid to or to the
order of the Trustee as aforesaid on the dates provided for in the Conditions, provided that:

111

cvery payment of Redemption Amount in respect of the Bonds or any of them made
to or to the account of the Paying Agent in the manner provided in the Agency
Agreement shall satisfy, to the extent of such payment, the relevant covenant by the
Issuer contained in this Clause except to the extent that there is default in the
subsequent payment thereof to the Bondholders in accordance with the Conditions;

if any payment of Redemption Amount in respect of the Bonds or any of them is made
after the due date, payment shall be deemed not to have been made until either the full
amount is paid to the Bondholders or, if earlier, the seventh day after notice has been
given to the Bondholders that the full amount has been received by the Paying Agent
or the Trustee except, in the case of payment to the Paying Agent, to the extent that
there is failure in the subsequent payment to the Bondholders under the Conditions;
and

in any case where payment of the whole or any part of the Redemption Amount due
in respect of any Bond is improperly withheld or refused, incremental charge shall
accruc for the Bond on the wholc or such part of such Redemption Amount from the
date of such withholding or refusal until the date either on which such Redemption
Amount due is paid to the Bondholders or, if earlier, the seventh day after which notice
is given to the Bondholders that the full amount payable in respect of the said
Redemption Amount is available for collection by the relevant Bondholders provided
that on further due presentation thereof such payment is in fact made.

The Trustee will hold the benefit of this covenant and the other covenants including Clause
12.3 (Other Covenants by the Issuer) on trust for the Bondholders.
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1.2.  Following an Event of Default
1.2.1. At any time after any Derzult or cvent of Default has occurred, the Trustee may by
notice in writing to the Issuer, require it 1o make ail subsequent payments in respect
of Bonds to or to the order of the Trustee and with effect from the issue of any such
notice until such notice is withdrawn.

1.2.2. The Issuer hereby covenants with the Trustee to comply with, perform and observe
all those provisions of this Trust Deed, the Conditions (including, without limitation,
Clause 12.3 (Other Covenants bv the Issuer), and the other Schedules which are
expressed to be binding on it and to perform and observe the same. The Bonds are
subject to the provisions contained in this Trust Deed and the Conditions, all of which
shall be binding upon the Issuer and the Bondholders and all persons claiming through
or under them respectively. The Bondholders and all persons claiming under or
through them respectively will also be entitled to the benefit of, and will be bound by,
this Trust Deed and the other Bond Documents and will be deemed to have notice of
all of the provisions of the Bond Documents.

1.2.3. The Trustee shall itself be entitled to enforce the obligations of the Issuer under the
Bonds and the Conditions as if the same were set out and contained in this Trust Deed
which shall be read and construed as one document with the Bonds.

1.3.  Other Covenants by the Issuer
The Issuer hereby covenants with the Trustee that so long as any of the Bonds remain
outstanding, it will:

1.3.1. Comply with Bond Documents
Comply with, pertorm and observe all those provision of this Trust Deed, the Agency
Agreement, the Conditions and the other schedules which are expressed to be binding
on it and to perform and observe the same. The Bonds are subject to the provisions
contained in this Trust Deed, all of which shall be binding upon the Issuer and the
Bondholders and all persons claiming through or under them respectively. The
Bondholders and all persons claiming under or through them respectively will also be
entitled to the bencfit of, and will be bound by, this Trust Deed and the other Bond
Documents and will be deemed to have notice of all of the provisions of the Bond
Documents applicable to them.

1.3.2. Complyv with Applicable Laws
Comply with, perform and observe all those provisions of the applicable laws
including, but not limited to, the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission
(Debt Securities) Rules 2021, terms of consent of Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission (BSEC). The Issuer agrees that Bondholders and all persons
claiming under or through them respectively will also be entitled to the benefit of, and
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will be bound by. the applicabie laws and will be deemed to have notice of all of the
provisions of tie applicable laws, as applicable to them.

1.3.3. Execution of further documents:
So far as permitted by applicabie law, do all such further acts and things as may be
necessary in the reasonable opinion of the Trustee to give effect to the provisions of
this Trust Deed:

1.3.4. Notices to the Bondholders:
Send or procure to be sent to the Trustee not less than three (3) days prior to the date
of publication one copy of each notice to be given to the Bondholders in accordance
with the Conditions and, upon publication, send to the Trustee two copies of such
notice.

1.3.5. Evidence of Due Approval by the Board of Directors and Authorized Signatories:
Upon reasonable notice by the Trustee to deliver to the Trustee a copy of the resolution
of the Board of Directors of the Settlor authorizing issuance of the Bond, the
declaration of the Trust, a list of the Authorized Signatories of the Issuer, together
with certified specimen signatures of the same.

1.3.6. Payments:
Moneys payable by it to the Trustee under Clause 7.1 (Expenses) of this Trust Deed
without set off, counterclaim, deduction or withholding, unless otherwise compelled
by law. and in the event of any deduction or withholding compelled by law pay such
additional amount as will result in the payment to the Trustee of the amount which
would otherwise have been payable by it to the Trustee hereunder.

1.3.7.  Payment of Risk Premium
Pay any Risk Premium payable by it to the Trustee in case of a downgrade of credit
rating (i.e., below the rating trigger) of the issue under surveillance rating as per
Clause 10.3.11 and in accordance with this Trust Deed.

1.3.8. It is hereby covenanted by the Issuer that the Bonds will be issued in registered and
dematerialized form and the Issuer shall apply to the Alternative Trading Board for
listing only if required by BSEC via Consent Letter preferably from the date of
availing the facilitics under respective regulations in this regard.
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RIGHTS AND OBLIGATiONS OF THE TRUSTEE:

1.4. Trustee’s Right
1.4.1. Rights under Applicable Law
Notwithstanding anything contained in this Trust Deed, the Trustee shall have all such
rights and powers granted to it under the applicable law including, but is not limited
to, the Bangladesh Sccurities and Exchange Commission (Debt Securities) Rules 2021
and the Trust Act 1882.

1.4.2. Advice
The Trustee may in relation to this Trust Deed act on the opinion or advice of or a
certificate or any information obtained from any lawyer, banker, valuer, surveyor,
broker, auctioneer, accountant or other expert. For discharging its duty under this
Trust Deed in reliance of the opinion of the aforementioned expert, Trustee shall not
be responsible for any Liability occasioned by so acting.

1.4.3. Certificate of directors or Authorz:ed Signatories

The Trustee, in the exercise of its functions, may call for and shall be at hberty to
accept a certificate signed by two Authorized Signatories or other person duly
authorized on their behalf as to any fact or matter prima facie within the knowledge
of the Issuer, as the case may be, as sufficient evidence thereof and a like certificate
to the effect that any particular dealing, transaction or step or thing is, in the opinion
of the person so certifying, expedient as sufficient evidence that it is expedient and
the Trustce shall not be bound in any such case to call for further evidence or be
responsible for any Liability that may be occasioned by its fgiling so to do.

1.4.4. Resolution or direction of Bondholders

The Trustee shall not be responsible for acting in good faith upon any resolution
purporting 1o be a written resolution or to have been passed at any meeting of the
Bondholders in respect whereof minutes have been made and signed or a direction of
a specified percentage of Bondholders even though it may subsequently be found that
there was some defect in the constitution of the meeting or the passing of the
resolution or the making of the directions or that for any reason the resolution
purporting to be a written resolution or to have been passed at any mecting or the
making of the directions was not valid or binding upon the Bondholders.

1.4.5. No obligation to monitor
The Trustee shall not be under any obllgmon to monitor or supervise the functions of
any other person under the Bonds or any other agreement or document relating to the
transactions herein or therein contemplated and shall be entitled, in the absence of

MK Footwear PLC- Page | 31

gy

Noor Mohammed
Managing Director
VIK. FOOTWEAR PLC

Shibly Amran
Chief Executive Of
Community Bank Inyesiman!




Strictly Private & Confidencial

actual knowiedge of a breacn cf obiigation. lo assume that each such person is
properly performing and complying with i*s obligations.

1.4.6. Bonds held by the Issuer
In the absence of actual knowledge or express notice to the contrary. the Trustee may
assume without enquiry that no Bonds are for the time being held by or for the benefit
of the Issucr or any of its Affiliates.

1.4.7. Events of Default
In case of any Event of Default, the Trustee shall serve a notice within seven (07)
Business Days of occurring such event to the Bondholders, the exchanges upon which
the securities will be traded and the Commission. If the trustee fails to negotiate within
fifteen (15) Business Days of the occurrence of Event of Default, the Trustee shall get
the right to take legal action against the Issuer for recovery of the outstanding amount
of the Bond as per existing laws.

1.4.8. Right to deduct or withhold for taxes

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Trust Deed, to the extent required by any
applicable law, if the Trustee is or will be required to make any deduction or
withholding from any distribution or payment made by it hereunder or if the Trustee
is or will be otherwise chafgcd to, or is or may become liable to, tax as a consequence
of performing its duties hereunder whether as principal, agent or otherwise, and
whether by reason of any assessment, prospective assessment or other imposition of
Liability of whatsoever nature and when so ever made upon the Trustee, and whether
in connection with or arising trom any sums received or distributed by it or to which
it may be entitled under this Trust Deed (other than in connection with its
remuneration as provided for herein or any other amounts for its own account) or any
investments or deposits from time to time representing the same, including any
income or gains arising there from or any action of the Trustee in connection with the
trusts of this Trust Deed (other than the remuneration herein specified or any other
amounts for its own account) or otherwise. then the Trustee shall be entitled to make
such proper deduction or withholding to the extent required by any applicable law or,
as the case may be, to retain out of sums received by it an amount sufficient to
discharge any Liability to tax (as required by amny applicable law) which'relates to
sums so received or distributed or to discharge any such other Liability of the Trustee
(as required by any applicable law) from any funds that may from time to time be held
by the Trustee upon the trusts of this Trust Deed. i
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1.4.9.  No responsibility to investigure

The Trustee shall not nav: ar: responsiclinty for or have any duty to investigate except

under any applicable laws or regulations:

a)

b)

)

d)

thc execution, delivery, legality, validity, effcctiveness, adequacy,
genuineness, enforceability or admissibility in evidence of any or all of the
Bond Documents;

any recitals, statements, warranties, representations or covenants of any party
to any of the Bond Documents;

its ability to exercise the rights, trusts, powers, authorities or discretions
purported to be conferred on it by any of the Bond Documents; or

the capacities, powers or credit standing of the Issuer or other party to any of
the Bond Documents.

1.4.10. Error of judgment
The Trustee shall not be liable for any error of judgment made in good faith by any
officer or employee of the Trustee assigned by the Trustee to administer its corporate

matters.

1.4.11. No responsibility for loss
The Trustee shall not in any circumstances, except under any applicable laws or

regulations:

a)

b)

be liable to account to any Bondholder or any other person for anything except
sums actually received by the Trustec which have not been distributed or paid
to the persons entitled or at the time of payment believed by the Trustee to be
entitled thereto, or

be liable to any Bondholder or any other person for any costs, charges, losses,
damages, liabilities or expenses arising from or connected with any act,
default, omission or misconduct of the Trustee, any Appointee or their
respective officers, employees or agents in relation to the Bond Documents
except to the extent that they shall have been finally judicially determined to
have been caused by the Trustec's own gross negligence, willful default or
fraud.

1.4.12.  Enforcement of Obligations of the Issuer
The Trustee shali itself be entitled to enforce the obligations of the Issuer under the Bonds
and the Conditions as if the same were set out and contained in this Trust Deed which shall

be read and construed as one document with the Bends.

1.4.13. Force Majeure
The Trustee shall not be liable for any failure or delay in the performance of its
obligations under this Trust Deed or any other Bond Document because of
circumstances beyond such Trustee's control, including. without limitation, acts of
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labour disputes, any laws, ordinances, regulations or the iike which restrict or prohibit
the performance of the obtigativis conremplated by this Trust Deed or any other Bond
Document, inability to obtain or the failure of equipment, or interruption of
communications or computer facilities, and other causes beyond such Trustee's
control whether or not of the same strip or kind as specifically named above. However,
the Trustee shall use commercially reasonable efforts consistent with accepted
practice in its indusiry to resume performance as soon as practicable under the
circumstances.

Immunities

The Trustee's immunities and protections from liabilities and its right to
indemnification in connection with the performance of its duties under this Trust Deed
shall except in casc of their own fault, extend to the Trustee's officers, directors,
employees and consultants. Such immunities and protections and right to
indemnification, together with the Trustee's right to compensation, shall survive the
Trustee's resignation or removal, the defeasance or discharge of this Trust Deed and
final payment of the Bonds, but in any event will be subject to any gross negligence,
willful default or fraud of which the Trustee or its officers, directors or employees
may be guilty in relation to their duties under this Trust Deed.

The Issuer acknowledges that in any proceedings taken in relation to this Trust Deed.
the Issuer will not be entitled to claim for itself or any of its assets immunity from
suit, execution, attachment or other legal process.

Professional Charges

Any Trustee being a banker, lawyer, broker or other person engaged in any protession
or business shall be entitled to charge and be paid all usual professional and other
charges for business transacted and acts done by him on matters arising in connection
with the Trust of this Trust Deed and also its properly incurred charges in addition to
disbursements for all other work and business done and all time spent by him on
matters arising in connection with this Trust Deed.

Expenditure by the Trustee

Nothing contained in this Trust Deed shall require the Trustee to expend or risk its
own funds or otherwise incur any financial Liability in the performance of its duties
or the exercise of any right, power, authority or discretion hereunder if it has grounds
for believing the repayment of such funds or adequate indemnity against, or sccurity
for, such risk or Liability is not reasonably assured to it.

Trustee may enter into financial transaction with the Issuer

No Trustee and no director or officer of any corporation being a Trustee hereof shall
by reason of the fiduciary position of such Trustee be in any way precluded from
making any contracts or eniering into any transaction in the ordinary course of
business with the Issuer or any subsidiary, or any person or body corporate directly or
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indirectly associated with thic Issuer or any subsidiary. or from accepting the
trusteeship of any other debenture stock. debenture or securities of the Issuer or any
subsidiary or any person or body corporate directly or indirectly associated with the
Issuer or any subsidiary, and neither the Trustee nor any such director or officer shall
be accountable to the Bondholders or the lssuer or any subsidiary, or any person or
body corporate directly or indirectly associated with the Issuer or any subsidiary, for
any profit, fees, commissions. interest, discounts or share of brokerage earned, arising
or resulting from any such contracts or transactions and the Trustee and any such
director or officer shall also be at liberty retain the same for its or his own benefit.
1.4.18. Error of judgment

The Trustee shall not be liable for any error of judgment made in good faith by any
officcr or employee of the Trustee assigned by the Trustee to administer its corporate
matters.

1.4.19. Third Party Claims
If any action (a “Third Party Claim™) is brought against the Trustee in respect of which
an indemnity may be sought from the [ssuer, the Trustee shall promptly notify the
Issuer in writing and deliver a copy of the claim and legal pleadings with respect to
the Third Party Claim. Trustee shall not be responsible to the Third Party.

1.4.20. Trustee's Own Funds )
Nothing herein shall be construed as to require the Trustee to advance its own funds
or incur such risks in the performance of its dutics hereunder.

1.5. Trustee's reuirements regarding Paying Agents etc.

1.5.1. Atany time after an Event of Default have occurred and for so long as Event of Default
is continuing and has not been waived or, in the opinion of the Trustee, has not been
remedied or the Bonds shall otherwise have become due and repayable or the Trustee
shall have rcccived any money which it proposes to pay under Condition XIII-B
(Application of Moneys) to the relevant Bondholders, the Trustee may:

1.5.1.1. By notice in writing to the Issuer, the Agents and the Registrar, require the
Paying Agent and the other Agents or any of them:

a) to act thereafter as Agents of the Trustee in relation to payments to be
made by or on behalf of the Trusiee under the terms of this Trust Deed
muratis mutandis on the terms provided in the Agency Agreement (save
that the Trustee’s Liability under any provisions thereof for the
indemnification. remuneration and payment of proper out-of-pocket
expenses of the Agents shall be limited to the amounts for the time being
hcld by the Trustee on the trusts of this Trust Deed relating to the Bonds
and available for such purpose) and thereafter to hold all Bonds and all
sums, documents and records held by them in respect of Bonds on behalf
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b) todeliver up i Zoney wi ali swns, documents and records held by them
in respect of Bonds to the Trustee or as the Trustee shall direct in such
notice provided that such notice shall be deemed not to apply to any
documents or records which the relevant Agent is obliged not to release
by any law or regulation; and

¢) by notice in writing to the Issuer require it to make all subsequent
payments in respeci of the Bonds to or to the order of the Trustee and not
to the Paying Agent and with effect from the issue of any such notice
and until such notice is withdrawn shall cease to have effect.

1.6. Trustee’s Duty and Obligation
1.6.1. Duties und Obligation under Applicable Law
Notwithstanding anything contained in this Trust Deed, the Trustee shall have all such
duties and obligations as set out in the applicable laws including but is not limited to
the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (Debt Securities) Rules 2021
and the Trust Act 1882.

1.6.2. Administration of Trust
The Trustee shall issue, manage and administer the Bonds in accordance with the
terms of this Trust Deed and the Conditions and cxecute, acknowledge, confirm or
endorse any agreements, documents, deeds, instruments and papers in connection
therewith and to implement, give effect to and facilitate the terms and conditions of
the Bonds and such other documents, deeds and agreements in contemplation thereof.

1.6.3. Act for the Bondholders
Save the provision of all applicable laws of Bangladesh, the Trustee shall act on behalf
and for the exclusive interests of the Bondholders and be liable to sue and to be sued
on behalf of them.

1.6.4. Moniioring

The Trustec shall ensure that the Issuer is observing the applicable laws including, but
not limited to, the requirements of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission (Debt Securities) Rules 2021 and the terms and conditions of the Bond
Documents. As soon as the Trustee is aware of any breach by the Issuer it shall
immediately inform the Bondholders and the Issuer of such breach. The Issuer hereby
covenants with the Trustee to comply with, perform and observe all those provisions
of this Trust Deed, the Conditions and the other Schedules which are expressed to be
binding on it and to perform and observe the same.

1.6.5. Maintaining Account
The Trustee shall open and maintain such accounts as it deems necessary for

discharging the functions of Trustee in pursuant to the provision of this Trust Deed,
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the Conditions, the Trust Act i83Z and Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission (Deot Securities) Ruies 2021,

1.6.6. Holding Trust Property
The Trustec shall hold and keep the money and assets representing the Trust Property
(including enforcement proceeds) and to deposit and withdraw such moneys and
assets as may be required from time to time.

1.6.7. Grievances of the Bondholders
Upon receipt of a complaint from the Bondholders, the Trustee shall take necessary
steps for redress of grievances of the Bondholders within one month of the date of
receipt of the complaints and it shall keep the BSEC and the Issuer informed about
the number, nature and other particulars of the complaints reccived and the manner in
which such complaints have been redressed;

1.6.8. Call for Meeting of the Bondholders
On the recommendation of the Bondholders in accordance with the provision of the
Trust Deed and Conditions, the Trustee shall call any meetings of the Bondholders
and to facilitate the proceedings of such meeting as it deems appropriate in accordance
with the terms of this Trust Deed;

1.6.9.  Compliance with the Instruction of the Bondholders
Upon instruction by the Bondholders in accordance with this Trust Deed, to sell or
otherwise dispose of the Trust Property and close any bank accounts that may have
been opened in pursuance of this Trust Deed after distribution of amounts standing to
their credit;

1.6.10. Duty to Inspect
It is the duty of the Trustee to inspect or call for books of accounts, records, register
of the Issucrs and the Trust property, if required, to the extent nccessary for
discharging its obligation.

1.6.11. Collection of Risk Premium
The Trustec may, in case a downgrade of credit rating (i.e. below the rating trigger)
of the issuc under surveillance rating, ensure the collection of risk premium from the
Issuer. if required and to the extent necessary for dischar ging its obligation, to secure
the claims of the Bondholders from the higher risk level of the Issuer in accordance
with this Trust Deced.

1.6.12.  Duty to Ensure the Interest of the Bondholders
The Trustee shall have power to insert/ cxercise any additional terms and conditions,
which is not inconsistent with applicable law, for the performance of the obligations
under this Trust Decd for the protection of the interest of the Bondholders;
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1.6.13.  Trustee's derermination :

The Trustee may determine wiclict v 110t 2 defaultin the performance or observance
by the Issuer of any obligation under the provisions of any Bond Document or
contained in the Bonds is capable of remedy and/or materially prejudicial to the
interests of the Bondholders and if the Trustee certifies that any such default is, in its
opinion, not capable of remedy and/or materially prejudicial to the interests of the
Bondholders, such certificate shall be conclusive and binding upon the Issuer and the
Bondholders. :

1.6.14. Determination of questions
The Trustee as between itself and the Bondholders shall have full power to determine
all questions and doubts arising in relation to any of the provisions of this Trust Deed
and/or the Conditions and every such determination, whether made upon a question
actually raiscd or implied in the acts or proceedings of the Trustee, shall be conclusive
and shall bind the Trustee and the Bondholders.

1.6.15.  Trustee's discretion

The Trustee shall (save as expressly otherwise provided herein) as regards all the
trusts, powers, authorities and discretions vested in it by this Trust Deed or by
operation of law, have absolute and uncontrolled discretion as to the exercise or
non-exercise thereof and the Trustee shall not be responsible for any Liability that
may result from the exercise or non-exercise thereof but whenever the Trustee is under
the provisions of this Trust Deed bound to act at the request or direction of the
Bondholders, the Trustee shall nevertheless not be so bound unless first indemnified
and/or provided with security to its satisfaction against all actions, proceedings, claims
and demands to which it may render itself liabls and all costs, charges, damages,
expenses and liabilities which it may incur by so doing.

1.6.16. Trustee's consent
Any consent given by the Trustee for the purposes of this Trust Deed may be given
on such terms and subject to such conditions (it any) as the Trustee may require.

1.6.17.  Application of proceeds
The Trustee shall not be responsible for the receipt or application by the Issuer of the
proceeds of the issuc of the Bonds or the delivery of any Bond Certificate to the
persons eintitied to it.

1.6.18. Agents
The Trustece may with the prior consent in writing of the Issuer, instead of acting
personally, employ and pay an agent on any terms, whether or not a lawyer or other
professional person, to transact or conduct, or concur in transacting or conducting,
any business and to do or concur in doing all acts required to be done by the Trustee,
as the case may (including the receipt and payment of money) and, provided the
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Trustee shall have exercised reasonable care in the selection of any such agent, the
misconduct, omission or default on the part of any person appointed by it hereunder
or be bound to supervise the proceedings or acts of any such person.

Delegation

The Trustee may, with the prior consent in writing of the Issuer, in the execution and
exercise of all or any of the trusts, powers, authorities and discretions vested in it by
this Trust Deed, act by responsible officers or a responsible officer for the time being
of the Trustee and the Trustee may also whenever it thinks fit, whether by power of
attorney or otherwise, delegate to any person or persons or fluctuating body of persons
(whether being a joint trustee of this Trust Deed or not) all or any of the trusts, powers,
authorities and discretions vested in it by this Trust Deed and any such delegation may
be made upon such terms and conditions and subject to such regulations (including
power to sub-delegate with the consent of the Trustee) as the Trustee may think fit in
the interests of the Bondholders and, provided the Trustee shall have exercised
reasonable care in the selection of any such Appointee and the Trustee shall not be
bound to supervise the proceedings or acts of and shall not in any way or to any extent
be responsible for any Liabilities incurred by reason of the misconduct, omission or
default on the part of such delegate or sub-delegate.

Custodians and nominees

The Trustee may appoint and pay any person to act as a custodian or nominee on any
terms in relation to such asscts of the trust as the Trustee may determine, including
for the purpose of depositing with a custodian this Trust Deed or any document
relating to the trust created hereunder and, provided the Trustee shall have exercised
reasonable care in the selection of any such Appointee, the Trustee shall not be
responsible for any Liability by reason of the misconduct, omission or default on the
part of any person appointed by it hereunder or be bound to supervise the proceedings
or acts of any such person.

Confidential information

The Trustee shall not (unless required by law or ordered so to do by a court of
competent jurisdiction) be required to disclose to any Bondholder any confidential
information (financial or otherwise) made available to the Trustee by the Issuer or any
other person in connection with this Trust Deed and no Bondholder shall be entitled
to take any action to obtain from the Trustee any such information. The Trustee shall
forward to the Bondholders any non-confidential information made available to the
Trustee by the Issuer in connection with this Trust Deed.
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1.6.22. General Duty
1.6.22.1. 1f delay in payment of any dues by the issuer, which is not approved by the
trustee shall be treated as tinal defauit, in such a case the Trustee shall enforce
its rights over the credit enhancement oF collateral securities and other
securities or guarantecs of the Issuer observing due legal process and
thercafter the trustee shall dispose-off the same. 10 pay the proceeds
proportionately to the investors after deduction of costs related thereto;

1.6.22.2. In case the delay is approved by the Trustee for a certain period upon any
reasonable ground, the Trustee shall ensure repayment of the dues within the
approved delay period along with interest for the delay period at a rate of 2%
(two percent) per annum above the usual rate of return of the debt instrument;

1 6.22.3. The trustce shall submit an annual compliance report to the Commission
regarding the activities of the issuer including repayment of dues to the

investors;

1.6.22.4. The trustee shall take adequate steps for redress of grievances of the investors
within one month of the date of receipt of the complaints and shall keep the
Commission informed about the number, nature and other particulars of the
complaints received and the manncr in which such complaints have been
redressed;

1.7. Trustee liable for gross negligence
None of the provisions of this Trust Deed shall in any case in which the Trustee has failed to
show the degree of care and diligence required by it as trustee, having regard to the provisions
of this Trust Deed conferring on the Trustee any powers, authorities or discretions, relieve or
indemnify the Trustee against any Liability which by virtue of any rule of law would
otherwise attach to it in respect of any gross negligence, will-full default or fraud of which it
may be guilty in relation to its duties under this Trust Deed.

1.8. Indemnity
The Issuer shall, on demand by the Trustee. indemnify it and any Appointee (a) in respect of
all liabilities and expenses incurred by it or by any Appointee or other person appointed by 1t
to whom any trust. power. authority or discretion may be delegated by it in the execution or
purported execution of the trusts, powers, authorities or discretions vested in it by this Trust
Deed and (b) against all liabilities, actions, proceedings, costs. claims and demands in respect
of any matter or thing done or omitted in any way relating to this Trust Deed.
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Call for Meeting of the Bondholaer::

On the recommendation ! the Sondholders in accordance with the provision of the
Trust Deed and Conditions, the Trustee shall call any meetings of the Bondholders
and to facilitate the proceedings of such meeting as it deems appropriate in accordance
with the terms of this Trust Deed;

Compliance with the Insiruction of the Bondholders

Upon instruction by the Bondholders in accordance with this Trust Deed, to sell or
otherwise dispose of the Trust Property and close any bank accounts that may have
been opened in pursuance of this Trust Deed after distribution of amounts standing to
their credit;

Duty to Inspect

It is the duty of the Trustee to inspect or call for books of accounts, records, register
of the Issuers and the Trust property, if required, to the extent necessary for
discharging its obligation.

Collection of Risk Premium

The Trustee may, in case a downgrade of credit rating (i.e. below the rating trigger)
of the issue under surveillance rating, ensure the collection of risk premium from the
Issuer, if required and to the extent necessary for discharging its obligation, to secure
the claims of the Bondholders from the higher risk level of the Issuer in accordance
with this Trust Deed.

Duty to Ensure the Interest of the Bondholders

The Trustee shall have powecr to insert/ exercise any additional terms and conditions,
which is not inconsistent with applicable law, for the performance of the obligations
under this Trust Deed for the protection of the interest of the Bondholders;

Trustee's deiermination

The Trustee may determine whether or not a default in the performance or observance
by the Issuer of any obligation under the provisions of any Bond Document or
contained in the Bonds is capable of remedy and/or materially prejudicial to the
interests of the Bondholders and if the Trustee certifies that any such default is, in its
opinion. not capable of remedy and/or materially prejudicial to the interests of the
Bondholders, such certificate shall be conclusive and binding upon the Issuer and the
Bondholders.

Determination of questions

The Trustce as between itself and the Bondholders shall have full power to determine
all questions and doubts arising in relation to any of the provisions of this Trust Deed
and/or the Conditions and every such determination, whether made upon a question

[A
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actually raised or iniplied i the zcts or procsedimgn of ihe Trustee. shall be conclusive

and shall bind the Trustes i b Sotehoiders,

1.8.8.  Trustee's discretion
The Trustee shall (save as expressly otherwise provided herein) as regards all the
trusts, powers, authorities and discretions vested in it by this Trust Deed or by
operation of law, have absolute and unconurolled discretion as to the excrcise or
non-exercise thereof and the Trustee shall not be responsible for any Liability that
may result from the exercise or non-exercise thereof but whenever the Trustee is under
the provisions of this Trust Deed bound to act at the request or direction of the
Bondholders, the Trustee shall nevertheless not be so bound unless first indemnified
and/or provided with security to its satistaction against all actions, proceedings, claims
and demands to which it may render itself liable and all costs, charges, damages,

1 e el

1.8.9.  Trustee's consent
Any consent given by the Trustee for the purposes of this Trust Deed may be given
on such terms and subject to such conditions (it any) as the Trustee may require.

1.8.10. Application of proceeds
The Trustee shall not be responsible for the receipt or application by the Issuer of the
proceeds of the issuc of the Bonds or the delivery of any Bond Certificate to the
persons entitled to it.

1.8.11. Agents

The Trustee may with the prior consent in writing of the Issuer, instead of acting
personally, employ and pay an agent on any terms, whether or not a lawyer or other
professional person, to transact or conduct, or concur in transacting or conducting,
any business and to do or concur in doing all acts required to be done by the Trustee,
as the case may (including the receipt and payment of money) and, provided the
Trustee shall have cxercised reasonable care in the selection of any such agent, the
Trustee shall not be responsible for any Liabilities incurred by reason of the
misconduct, omission or default on the part of any person appointed by it hereunder
or be bound to supervise the proceedings or acts of any such person.

1.8.12. Deleguation
The Trustec may, with the prior consent in writing of the Issuer, in the execution and
exercise of all or any of the trusts, powers, authoritics and discretions vested in it by
this Trust Deed. act by responsible officers or a responsible officer for the time being
of the Trustce and the Trustee may also whenever it thinks fit, whether by power of
attorney or otherwise, delegate to any person or persons or fluctuating body of persons
(whether being a joint trustee of this Trust Deed or not) all or any of the trusts, powers,
authorities and discretions vested in it by this Trust Deed and any such delegation may

VIK Footwear PLC- Page | 4
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be made upon such terms and conditions and subject to such regulations (including
power to sub-deiegate with the corsent of the Trustee) as the Trustee may think fit in
the interests of the Bondholders and, provided the Trustee shall have exercised
reasonabie care in the selection of any such Appointee and the Trustee shall not be
bound to supervise the proceedings or acts of and shall not in any way or to any extent

default on the part of such delegate or sub-delegate.

1.8.13.  Custodians and nominees

The Trustee may appoint and pay any person to act as a custodian or nominee on any
terms in relation to such assets of the trust as the Trustee may determine, including
for the purposc of depositing with a custodian this Trust Deed or any document
relating to the trust created hereunder and, provided the Trustee shall have exercised
reasonable care in the selection of any such Appointee, the Trustee shall not be
responsible for any Liability by reason of the misconduct, omission or default on the
part of any person appointed by it hereunder or be bound to supervise the proceedings
or acts of any such person.

1.8.14. Confidential information

The Trustee shall not (unless required by law or ordered so to do by a court of
competent jurisdiction) be required to disclose to any Bondholder any confidential
information (financial or otherwisc) made available to the Trustee by the Issuer or any
other person in connection with this Trust Deed and no Bondholder shall be entitled
to take any action to obtain from the Trustee any such information. The Trustee shall
forward to the Bondholders any non-confidential information made available to the
Trustee by the Issuer in connection with this Trust Deed.

1.8.15. General Duty
1.8.15.1. 1f delay in payment of any dues by the Issuer, which is not approved by the
trustee shall be treated as final default, in such a case the Trustee shall enforce
its rights over the credit enhancement or collateral securities and other
securities or guarantees of the Issuer observing due legal process and
thereafiter the trustec shall dispose-off the same to pay the proceeds
proportionately to the investors after deduction of costs related thereto: |

1.8.15.2. In casc the delay is approved by the Trustee for a certain period upon any
reasonable ground, the Trustee shall ensure repayment of the dues within the
approved delay period along with interest for the delay period at a rate of 2%
(two percent) per annum above the usual rate of return of the debt instrument;

1.8.15.3. The trustee shall submit an annual compliance report to the Commission
regarding the activities of the issuer including repayment of dues to the

Investors;
MK Footw_eai' PLC- Pang\
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1.8.15.4. The trustee shall take adequate steps for redress of grievances of the investors
within one month of the date of receipt of the complaints and shall keep the
Commission informed about the number, nature and other particulars of the
complaints received and the manner in which such complaints have been
redressed,;

1.9. Trustee liable for gross negligence
None of the provisions of this Trust Deed shall in any case in which the Trustee has failed to
show the degree of care and diligence required by it as trustee, having regard to the provisions
of this Trust Deed conferring on the Trustee any powers, authorities or discretions, relieve or
indemnify the Trustce against any Liability which by virtue of any rule of law would
otherwise attach to it in respect of any gross negligence, will-full default or fraud of which it
may be guilty in relation to its duties under this Trust Deed.

1.10. Indemnity
The Issuer shall, on demand by the Trustee, indemnify it and any Appointee (a) in respect of
all liabilities and expenses incurred by it or by any Appointee or other person appointed by it
to whom any trust, power, authority or discretion may be delegated by it in the execution or
purported execution of the trusts, powers, authorities or discretions vested in it by this Trust
Deed and (b) against all liabilities, actions, proceedings, costs, claims and demands in respect
of any matter or thing done or omitted in any way relating to this Trust Deed.
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As the MK Footwear PLC applied to issue the bond under private placement, no Issue manager or

Underwriter is required.
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1.1. Each of the Bondholders has the right to demand any information relating to the issuance of
Bond and/or information relating to the Issuer, as set forth in this Trust Deed or in the
Conditions, from the Issuer.

1.2.  Each of the Bondholders has the right to receive Coupon Payment in respect of the Bonds
on Coupon Payment Date and in accordance with the formula as set out in the Condition
VII (Coupon) of the Schedule 1 (Terms and Conditions of the Bonds.)

1.3.  Each of the Bondholders has the right to receive any other payment including incremental
charge, whenever such payment becomes due and payable by the Issuer in accordance with
the procedure set forth in the Conditions contained hereunder in Schedule I (7Terms and
Conditions of the Bonds).

1.4. Each of Bondholders has the right to attend meeting of the Bondholders and vote therein
in accordance with the provisions of the Schedule Il (Meeting of Bondholders).

1.5. The rights of the Bondholder under the Subscription Agreement are several and any debt
or other obligation arising under that agreement at any time from the Issuer to any other
Bondholder shall be a separate and independent debt. Each Bondholder will be entitled to
protect and enforce its individual rights arising out of this Agreement independently of any
other Bondholder and it shail not be necessary for any other Bondholder to be joined as an
additional party in proceedings for such purpose. '

1.6. Notwithstanding anything mentioned in this Trust Deed or the Conditions, the
Bondholders shall not be entitled to any of the rights, benefits and privileges available to
the members of the Issuer including, the right to receive notices of or to attend and vote at
general meetings or to receive annual reports of the Issuer. If. however, any resolution
affecting the rights attached to the Bonds is placed before the members of the Issuer. such
resolution will first be placed before the Bondholders for their authorization.
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(a) Capital structure:

Particulars BDT Amount
Authorized Share Capital 1,000,000,000
Share Capital | 478,472,000
Fair value Gain/(Loss) 149,505,750
Retained Earnings 152,218,606
Shareholder's Equity , 780,196,356
Long Term Loan-Non-Current Maturity 588,355,429
Lease liability (non-current portion) 6,481,796
Term Loan-Current Maturity 260,823,243
Lease liability {current poition) 1,416,253
Short Term Loan 422,832,006
Total Debt 1,279,908,727

(b) Business

The company was incorporated as a private limited company under the Companies Act 1994, vide
registration no: C-126912/2015 on November 12, 2015 subsequently was converted to public limited
company on May 29, 2022 and split of Share value from Tk. 100 tc Tk. 10 dated on March 28, 2022, MK
Footwear PLC Listed at Small Capital Platform of DSE on June 20, 2023 and subsequently CSE on June
22, 2023. The Company started its commercial operation on July 02, 2020. The company is engaged in
the production of all types of quality leather/synthetic footwear and export 100% of its product to

international market.
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(c) Management

Board of Directors:

Sl No. Name Designation
1 Mir Mahfuza Mohammed . Chairman
2 Noor Mohammed Managing Director
< Md. Akteruzzaman Director
4 F. M. Hasan Mahfuz Russell Director & CEO

Management Team:

Sl No. Name of Employees Position
i Noor Mohammed Managing Director
2 Mohammad Mahabub Alam Chief Financial Officer
3 Mohammed Tohidul Islam Company Secretary
4 F.M Hasan Mahfuz Russell CEO
5 Md. Masud Rana Manager Finance
6 Md. Dulal Miah Sr. Manager Commercial
7 Kazi Sanaul Arifin ; Manager Compliance
8 Md. Mahamudul Hasan Warehouse Manager
9 Md. Mijanur Rahman Senior Admin Manager

(d) Description of encumbered and unencumbered assets with value thereof;

There are no unencumbered assets of MKFPLC, all assets are encumbered.
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(e) Brief profile of directors/owners of the issuer or originator;

Mi a Moha

Chairman, MK Footwear PLC

Mir Mahfuza Mohammed was appointed as Chairman on 30.04.2022 of MK Footwear PLC. Mrs. Mir
Mahfuza Mohammed obtained B.com, SZ. from Virginia State University Virginia, USA and has 5
years of Professional experience in footwear industry. She is dynamic and under her leadership the

company is enjoying the benefits of her expertness.

Noor Mohammed:

Managing Director, MK Footwear PLC

Mr. Noor Mohammed was appointed as Managing Director since incorporation of MK Footwear PLC.
He is also Chairman of Moynakuti Agro Industries Limited. Mr. Noor Mohammed obtained B.Sc. from
Virginia State University Virginia, USA & has 8 years of Professional experience of footwear industry.
He also made himself a character to follow inside his own organization by his pleasant and flexible

manner.

Md. Akteruzzaman:

Director, MK Footwear PLC

Mr. Md. Akteruzzaman was appointed as sponsor Director of the company in 2015. He obtained B.A
and M.A from Virginia State University Virginia, USA & has 8 years of Professional experience of
footwear industry. Mr. Akteruzzaman is still energetic and dynamic. He managed to bring a broader

vision in sales, marketing and customer care. He is an expert in the footwear industry.

EM.H n Mahfuz Russel:
Director & CEO, MK Footwear PLC

FM Hasan Mahfuz Russell was appointed as Chief Executive Officer (CEO) since July 2019 of MK
Footwear PLC.Mr. Russell completed Bachelor of Business Administration (BBA), Major in
Marketing, Finance and Accounting from NSU, also completed CA professional level from ICAB & has

06 years of Professional experience of footwear industry.
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(f) Brief description of assets and liabilities:

MK FOOTWEAR PLC
Statemeinti of Financial Positioi:
As on 30 June, 2023

. | | " 30-Jun-2023 | | 30-jun-2022
Particulars LﬂNotes e BDT | | BDT
Assets
Non-Current Assets:
Property, Plant and Equipment 5 ( 1,132,951,786 1,219,715,705
Intangible Assets 6 i 80,850 115,500
Investment 7 i 183,367,500 -
Right-of-use (ROU) assets 8 | 10,094,786 10,143,068
Non-Current Security Deposits 9 , 1,195,000 1,195,000
Total Non-Current Assets 1,327,689,922 1,231,169,273
Current Assets:
Inventories 10 | 395,313,603 | | 334,116,920 |
Accounts & Other Receivables el i 275,676,676 | | 297,667,172 |
Inter-Company Receivable 12 ] 100,326,000 i 116,876,000 |
Advance Income Tax 13 l 10,659,081 % 10,814,490 {
Cash & Cash Equivalent 14 i 141,625,186 | | 100,693,633 |
Total Current Assets 923,600,546 860,168,215
Total Assets 2,251,290,468 2,091,337,488
Equity and Liabilities
Shareholders' Equity:
Share Capital e f 478,472,000 | 378,472,000
Fair value Gain/(Loss) 16 l 149,505,750 .
Retained Earnings 17 | 152,218,606 | 111,552,297
780,196,356 490,024,297
Non-Current Liabilities:
Long Term Loan-Non Current Maturity 18 i 588,355,429 693,755,685
Lease liability (non-current portion) 19 ; 6,481,796 6,114,483
Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) Annex-V | 25,036,042 (1,360,333)
Total Non-Current Liabilities 619,873,267 698,509,835
Current Liabilities: I
Trade and Other Payables 20 ! 140,216,244 | | 171,369,454 |
Term Loan-Current Maturity 18 " 260,823,243 ; I 128,283,044 |
Lease liability (current portion) 19 | 1,416,253 " 1 2,161,888 |
Short Term Loan 21 i 422,832,006 | | 564,313,068 |
Liabilities for Expenses 2 12,267,659 | | 20,443,473
Provision for WPPF 23 | 3,057,205 1 '; 5,564,995 |
Provision for Tax 24 ! 10,608,235 | | 10,667,434
Total Current Liabilities 851,220,845 902,803,356
Total Equity and Liabilities __2,251,290,468 2,091,337,488
| Net Asset Value Per Share Mt L 34 ; 16.31 | | 1295 |

Shibly Amrah Mohamm
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Chief Executive Officer
Community Bank Investmeni Limited
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(g) Brief description of previously issued debt or equity securities or such other securities;

Allo Da Other than
In cash Bonus
in cash
12.11.2015
At the time of| 1,000,000 - - 10.00 10,000,000
Incorporation)
30.04.2022
36,847,200 - - 10.00 368,472,000
(1stAllotment)
19.06.2023
10,000,000 - - 10.00 100,000,000
(2nd Allotment)
Total 47,847,200 10.00 478,472,000
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the sharehiolders of
MK FOUOT WEAR PLC
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of MK FOCTWEAR PLC (the Company), which comprise the
Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2023, and Statement of profit or loss & other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

[n our opinion, the financial statements give true and fair view, in all material respects, of the financial
position of the company as at 30 June 2023, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the Companies Act 1994, the

Securities and Exchange Rules 2020 and other applicable laws and regulations.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA code) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Bangladesh, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Emphasis of Matters
Without qualifying our opinion, we would like to draw the attention of the following matters:

1. During the course of audit it is observed that MK Footwear PLC has made necessary provision and
transferred entire WPPF provision amount of BDT 5,564,995 for the year 2021-2022 to MK Footwear PLC
WPPF Bank Account which is disclosed in Note # 4.06 and 23. The company also deposited 10% of the said
amount to Bangladesh Labour Welfare Foundation. We were not provided any the Audited Financial

Statements of MK Footwear PLC “Workers Profit Participate Fund (WPPF)".

2. With reference to the Note # 12 we state that the company provided loan to its related entity named
“Moynakuti Agro Industries Limited” and the baiance of the loan as on 30 June 2023 is BDT
100,326,000shown under the head “Inter-Company Receivable”. The company provided the said loan
before it converted into public limited company. In observance to the Order of Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission notification No. SEC/CMMRRCD/2006-159/Admin/02-10 dated 10 September
2006, the company decided not to provide any further loan to any of its related entity and has taken steps
to realize the receivable as soon as possible.

Shibly Amrap
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Key audit matters are those matters tnay, in vur proiessional judgiment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statement of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and

we do not provide opinion on these matters.

Risk

Our response to the risk

Revenue-Export, Cash Incentive & Accounts & Other Receivables

For the year-end, the Company reported total
Export revenue of Tk. 824,675,259 in Note 25,
cash Incentive revenue in Note 30 Tk. 69,186,905
& Accounts & Other Receivables in Note 11 Tk
275,676,676 of the financial statements.

The company generates revenue from export sale
& received cash incentive from Bangladesh
Government. The timing of the revenue
recognized and realized increases the risk of

We

effectiveness of key controls focusing on the
following:

>

have tested the design and operating

Obtaining an understanding of and assessing
the design and operating effectiveness of
controls designed to ensure that revenue is
recognized in the appropriate accounting
period.

>hibly Amran
Chief Executive Officer
Community Bank Investment | iimifsd

exposure of revenue to foreign exchange » Assessed whether the revenue recognition
fluctuations. policy is appropriate and is in line with IFRS
15 - Revenue from contracts with customers.
There is also a risk that revenue may be
overstated due to fraud through manipulation of » Performed walkthrough tests to understand
the timing of the opening of letter of credit and the adequacy and the design of the revenue
timing of goods exported. cycle.
We identified the revenue was decrease > Obtaining Sales Ledger.
significantly (by 35.01%) as well as revenue
recognition as key audit matter as it is one of the »> Collect Sample of Sales Contract, Sales invoice,
key performance indicators of the Company, Bill of export, Bill of leading Its match with Vat
which give rise to an inherent risk of the existence Return & Sales Ledger.
and the accuracy of the revenue.
» For Cash Incentive Obtaining Ledger, Cash
Incentive  Certificate from  Chartered
Accountants Firm, Proceed realization
certificate, application submitted to the bank,
Collect certificate from bank for cash
incentive realization. Out of total Cash
Incentive income of BDT 69,186,905 MK
Footwear PLC recognize Incentive income
BDT 33,000,000 as per auditor certificate and
as per proceed realization certificate BDT
36,186,905.
» Collect Certificate from Bank regarding
Export, Export Realization, PRC for
~ M Subsequent receivable realization
MK Footwear PLC- Page~.54
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» 8o Accounts and other receivable collect
ledger, colieet Bill of export for Outstanding
Invoice, Collect PRC for receivable subsequent
Realization.

» Finally, assessed the appropriateness and

presentation  of disclosures related to

relevant accounting standards

Valuation of inventory & Purchase

The inventory of Tk. 395,313,603 at 30 June,
2023 held in Factory warehouses and across
multiple product lines in factory & Purchase
were Made Tk. 474,429,301 for the period from
01 July 2022 to 30 June 2023.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost.and
net realizable value. As a result, the Directors
judgment in determining the appropriate values
for slow-moving or obsolete items.

J

Purchase are rightly recorded in the Financial
statements

|

We challenged the appropriateness of management’s
assumptions applied in calculating the value of the
inventory provision by:

Evaluating the design and implementation of
key inventory controls operating across the
factory and warehouse;

N/

The Company made most of the purchase
through import. For the confirmation of
purchase we collect the ledger, collect sample
of bill of entry, Invoice, Lc, Match with vat
return & Ledger and subsequent LC payment
from bank Statements. :

Physically count of inventory at the reporting
date was done by management. We verify the
inventory physically on the test basis during
the counting which was counted by
management

Reviewing the historical accuracy of
inventory provisioning and the level of
inventory write-offs during the year; and
challenging the completeness of inventory

S 74

provisions through assessing actual and |

forecast sales of inventory lines to assess
provisions for
moving/obsolete  stock valid
complete.

Evaluated. on a sample basis, whether
inventories were stated at the lower of cost
and net realizable value at the reporting date
by comparing the sales prices of inventories
subseguent to the reporting date;

slow-
and

whether
are
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o

’ Coﬁ.l.;_);;mg the net realizable value obtained
through a detailed review of sales
i subsequent to the year-end, to the cost price
of a sample of inventories and comparison to
the associated provision to assess whether
inventory provisions are complete;

Finally, assessed the appropriateness and
presentation of disclosures related to
relevant accounting standards.

A\

Measurement of deferred tax Assets
The net deferred tax liability totaling Tk. | We additionally carried out the following substantive

25,036,042 as at 30 june, 2023 in annex V. testing for this item:

Significant judgment is required in relation to » We obtained an understanding, evaluated the
deferred tax liabilities as it is dependent on design and tested the operational
forecasts of future profitability over a number of effectiveness of the company’'s key controls
years. over the recognition and measurement of

deferred tax liabilities and the assumptions
used in estimating the company’s future
taxable income.

\%

We also assessed the completeness and
accuracy of the data used for the estimations
of future taxable income. *

> We involved tax specialists to assess key
assumptions, controls, recognition and
measurement of deferred tax liabilities.

» We alsc assessed the appropriateness of
presentation of disclosures against [AS-12
income tax.

Valuation of Property, Plant and Equipment
The Written Down Value (WDV) of the PPE | Our auditincluded the following procedures:
amounted to Tk. 1,132,951,786 at 30 June, 2023.
The valuation of PPE was identified as a key audit » Reviewed basis of recognition, Measurement
matter due to the significance of this balance to and valuation of assets;

the financial statements.

> Observed procedures of assets acquisition,
Expenditures are capitalized if they create new or depreciation and disposal;
enhance the existing assets, and expanded if they
relate to repair or maintenance of the assets. > Checked ownership of the major assets;
Classificati of the expenditures involves -
Jd; e useful lives of PPE items are based | ~
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on management’s estimates regarding the period |

|
during which the asset or its signiﬁc.au'n'!
components will be used. The estimates are hased |
on historical cxperience and market practice and |
take into consideration the physical condition of
the assets.

Apparently, the carrying vaiue of PPE represents
a significant portion of the Company's assets and
therefore is a function of charging depreciation
that involved estimation. Therefore, it has been
considered a significant area of auditor's
judgment and special attention. There is also a
risk that the impairment charges) not have been
recognized.

» Performec physical asset verification at the

» Criticaily

» We evaluated whether the useful lives

» We checked whether the depreciation of PPE

Strictly Private & Confidencial

yedr end.

reviewed the Company's
assumptions in relation to recoverable
amounts of the major PPE to identify if there
is any requirement of recognition of
impairment.

determined and applied by the management
were in line with historical experience and the
market practice.

items was commenced timely, by comparing
the date of the reclassification from capital in
progress to ready for use, with the date of the
act of completion of the work.

Share Capital

During the year Company increase its share
capital by Tk. 100,000,000 through issue of
10,000,000 number of ordinary share having
face value of Tk. 10 through Qualified Investor
Offer by Small Capital Company Rules, 2022 of
Bangladesh Security Exchange Commission.

There is a risk that amount are received into
company account or not.

i Our audit included the following procedures:

> For New share money deposit we collect
bank statements.

» The Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission (BSEC) permission

» Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM)
Minutes

» Dhaka Steck Exchange allotment report.
> Finally, assessed the appropriateness of the

presentation and disclosures required by
accounting standards.

Short- & Long-Term Loan

Chief Executive Officer

As at 30 June 2023, the reported amount of
total long-term loan is Tk. 849,178,672
(Note:18),Short Term Loan Tk. 422,832,006
(Note:21) and Accepted Liability (Note:20)
115,724,400 respectively. The company
borrowed fund from Rupali Bank Lid.

The company may face difficulties due to
unfavorable movement in interest rate,
monetary policy and adverse variance
between Import & export that may result in

In order to obtain the completeness and accuracy
of the measurement of said loan, we have tested the
following key control activities:

Our substantive procedurc in relating to these
Loan recognition and measurements are following:

»> Attends the actual position of loan.
» Checking the bank statement.
> Checking the loan Section letter.

ibly Amran
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A

Checked the bank statement also with the
.z ening balance.

A\

short-term cash flow crisis. j

~ Checked the recording of the transaction

We verified sanction letter, loan schedule
and bank statements to confirm the loan
outstanding and found that the balance
had been reported in the financial
statements accurately.

\%

We also checked the financial expenses
obtaining bank certificate and recalculated
the interest expenses.

A4

» Classification of loan and repayment
schedule as well. and

» Received third party balance confirmation
letter from Rupali Bank Ltd.

Finally, assessed the appropriateness and
presentation of disclosures related to
relevant accounting standards.

\7
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other iiforiatiou. e oier i:iformation comprises all of the information
other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Tne directors are responsible for the
other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
and Internal Controls

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRSs, the Companies Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 2020 and other
applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

The companies Act, 1994 require the management to ensure effective internal audit, internal control and risk
management functions of the company

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless managemert either intends to liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: y

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fx:;\ud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures

appropriate in circumstances.
MK Footwear PLC- Page .9
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e Evaluate the appropriateness of accovntirs psoiicisr geed and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by managei.ient.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a materiai uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosers are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and eventin a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and cornmunicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

/ WiK Footwear PLC- Page | 6
i °>

thbly Amran Mohammad Tohi
Chief Execdive Officer Company Secietary -
Community Bank investment Limiled MK Footwear Lid.




Strictly Private & Confidencial

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act 195+, aau tie Securitics and Exchange Rules 2020 and relevant
notifications issues by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, we also report that:

a) We have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts, records and other statutory books as required by law have
been kept by the company so far as it appeared from our examinations of those books and proper
returns adequate for the purpose of our audit have been received by us;

¢) The statement of Financial Position, Statement of profit or loss & other Comprehensive Income and
Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows of the Company dealt with by the report

are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

d) The expenditure was incurred for the purpose of the Company’s business.

Location, Dhaka Sd/-
Dated: 28 October 2023 Sultan Moheuddin FCA
Ref: GKC/23-24/A/172 Enroliment No- 1530

Partner, G. Kibria & Co.
Chartered Accountants
DVC: 2311011530AS931769
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MR FOU CWEAKR PLC
Statemen® o1 Financial Pesition
_Ason 3G june, 2023

Ay | R 30-jurn-2023 | 30-jun-2022
Particulars ! , Notes J L ~BDT | BDT
Assets
Non-Current Assets: !
Property, Plant and Equipment 5 1,132,951,786 i 1,219,715,705
[ntangible Assets 6 80,850 115,500
[nvestment 7z 183,367,500 -
Right-of-use (ROU) assets 8 10,094,786 10,143,068
Non-Current Security Deposits 9 1,195,000 1,195,000
Total Non-Current Assets 1,327,689,922 1,231,169,273
Current Assets:
[nventories 10 395,313,603 334,116,920 |
Accounts & Other Receivables 11 275,676,676 297,667,172 |
Inter-Company Receivable 12 100,326,000 116,876,000 |
Advance Income Tax 13 10,659,081 10,814,490 |
Cash & Cash Equivalent 14 141,625,186 100,693,633 |
Total Current Assets 923,600,546 860,168,215
Total Assets 2,251,290,468 2,091,337,488
Equi i Liabiliti
Shareholders’ Equity:
Share Capital 15 478,472,000 378,472,000 |
Fair value Gain/(loss) 16 149,505,750 =
Retained Earnings 147 152,218,606 113,552,297
780,196,356 490,024,297
Non-Current Liabilities: :
Long Term Loan-Non Current Maturity 18 588,355,429 693,755,685
Lease liability (non-current portion) 19 6,481,796 6,114,483
Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets} " Annex-V 25,036,042 (1,360,333)
Total Non-Current Liabilities 619,873,267 698,509,835
Current Liabilities:
Trade and Other Payables 20 140,216,244 171,369,454
Term Loan-Current Maturity 18 260,823,243 128,283,044
Lease liability (current portion) 1y 1,416,253 2,161,888
Short Term Loan 21 422,832,006 564,313,068
Liabilities for Expenses 22 12,267,659 ° 20,443,473
Provision for WPPF 24 3,057,205 5,564,995
Provision for Tax 24 10,608,235 10,667,434
Total Current Liabilities 851,220,845 902,803,356
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,251,290,468 2,091,337,488
[ Net Asset Value Per Share lEiaa . ] 16.31 | 12.95

The annexed notes (1 to 46.05) form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Sd/-
Chairman

Sd/-
Director

Location: Dhaka
Dated: 28 October 2023
Ref: GKC/23-24/A/172

Sd/-
Managing Director

Sd/-
Chief Financial Officer

See annexed report of the date

Sd/-

Sd/-
Company Secretary

Sultan Moheuddin, FCA

Enrollment No- 1530
Partner, G. Kibria & Co.
Chartered Accountants

DVC: 2311011530AS931769
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Strictly Private & Confidencial

Statement of Profit or Luss and Other Comnrehensive Income

For the year ended 30 june, 2023

Particulars ; Nistas 2022-2023 2021-2022
i BDT BDT
Revenue 25 824,675,259 1,268,844,877
Cost of Goods sold 26 (706,543,271) (1,102,472,058)
Gross Profit/(Loss) 118,131,988 166,372,819
Foreign Exchange Gain/(Loss) 27 (3,477,533) (7,922,403)
Administrative Expenses 28 (15,010,273) (12,887,197)
Distribution Expenses 29 (7,520,339) (12,047,008)
Operating Profit/ (Loss) 92,123,844 133,516,211
Non-Operating Income 30 69,264,304 71,276,977
Profit/(Loss) before interest & Tax 161,388,148 204,793,188
Financial Expenses 31 (97,186,848) (87,928,289)
Profit/(Loss) before WPPF & Tax 64,201,299 116,864,899
Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF) (3,057,205) (5,564,995)
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 61,144,094 111,299,904
Income Tax Expenses: (20,477,785) (8,210,619)
Current Tax Expense 24 (10,693,160) (10,605,279) |
Deferred Tax (Expenses)/Income Annex-V (9,784,625) 2,394,660
Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax 40,666,309 103,089,285
Other Comprehensive Income: 149,505,750 =
Fair value Gain/(Loss) on Investment 7 166,117,500 -
Deferred Tax (Expenses)/Income Annex-V (16,611,750) .
Total Comprehensive Income 190,172,059 103,089,285
Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS) 32 1.07  3.19
Diluted Earnings Per Share (DEPS) 32 1.07 3.19
The annexed notes (1 to 46.05) form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Chairman Director Managing Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
See annexed report of the date
Location: Dhaka
Dated: 28 October 2023 Sultan Mcheuddin, FCA

Ref: GKC/23-24/A/172

Shibly Amran
Chief Executive Officer
Community Bank Investment Limited

Mohamm

Tohitul Tslam
Company Secretary
M Footwear L td.

Enrollment No- 1530
Partner, G. Kibria & Co.
Chartered Accountants

DVC:2311011530AS931769
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MK FOOTWEAR PLT
Staveracire of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 june, 2023

Strictly Private & Confidencial

. Share Share Money Fair Value Retained Amount in
Particulars ) . ) .
Capital | Deposit Gain/(Loss) Earnings BDT
Balance as at 01 July, 2022 378,472,000 | - = | 111,552,297 490,024,297
Addition During the Period 100,000,000 | - | 166,117,500 40,666,309 306,783,809
Add/(Less) Deferred Tax ! | (16611,750) | @e611,750)
(Expenses)/Income = |
Balance as at 30 June, 2023 478,472,000 - 149,505,750 152,218,606 780,196,356
MK FOOTWEAR PLC
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 30 June, 2022
Paitionbiss Share Share Money Retained Amount in
Capital Deposit Earnings BDT
Balance as at 01 July, 2021 10,000,000 301,972,000 8,463,012 320,435,012
Addition During the Period 368,472,000 = 103,089,285 471,561,285
Adjusted During the Period - | (301,972,000} - | (301,972,000)
Balance as at 30 June, 2022 378,472,000 - 111,552,297 490,024,297
The annexed notes (1 to 46.05) form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
% ¥
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Chairman Director Managing Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Location: Dhaka
Dated: 28 October 2023
Ref: GKC/23-24/A/ 172

Shibly Amrafi

Chief Executive
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MK FOOTWEAR PLC

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June, 2023

Strictly Private & Confidencial

i)
Particulars Notis 2022-2023 2021-2022 J
BDT BDT |
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash Received from Customers and others income 35 891,049,224 1,085,981,691 |
) ~ . i
Cash Paid to Suppliers, employees & others expenses 36 (717,250,455) {1,024,35(1,623} !
Income tax paid 37 (10,596,950) (10,752,359) |
Net Cash {used in)/generated by operating activities
i ( Ve i odu 163,201,619 50,878,709
Cash flows from investing activities:
lf;::::;;(i:?/ Plant and Equipment / Capital in Working 18 (8.337,813) (170,213,365)
ROU Assets 5,951,929 (2,083,589)
Investment (17,250,000) -
Inter-Company Receivable 16,550,000 (116,876,000)
Intangible Assets 5 (165,000)
Net Cash used (used in)/generated by investi
 Cash used (used In)/generated by investing (3,085,884) (289,337,954)
activities (B)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Long term Bank Loan Received /(Re-paid) 27,139,943 28,846,488
Short term Bank Loan Received/(Re-paid) {141,481,062) 177,991,984
Share Capital/Share Money Deposit Received 100,000,000 66,500,000
Lease Payment (8,727,046) (1,296,235)
Financial Expenses (96,321,363) (86,226,426)
Net cash flows from financing activities (C) (119,389,528) 185,815,811
Net changes increase/({decrease) in cash and e
40,726,407 52,643,434
cash equivalents (A+B+C) ? i )
Unrealized Foreign Exchange Gain/{Loss) 205,146 9,207,350
Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 100,693,633 144,129,717
Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the period 141,625,186 100,693,633
Net Operating Cash Flow per share (NOCFPS) 33 4.28 1.34
The annexed notes (1 to 46.05) form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Chairman Director Managing Director Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Location: Dhaka
Dated: 28 October 2023
Ref: GKC/23-24/A/ 172
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MK FOOTWEAR PLC
Notes, Summary of Significant accouniing policies & other explanatory information
For the year ended 30 june, 2023

1 REPORTING ENTITY
MK Footwear Ltd. was incorporated as a private limited company in Bangladesh on 12 November,
2015 under the Companies Act- 1994 and vibe Registration No C-126912/2015. It is a 100%
export-oriented company. The company converted into public limited company vide Special
Resolution in EGM dated May 29, 2022 and duly filed with & passed by RJSC. It has started
commercial operation on 02 July, 2020. Bangladesh Security Exchange Commission vide letter
BSEC/CI/QI0/SC-37/2022/1251 dated 3rd May 2023 MK Footwear PLC got permission for
Qualified Investor Offer by Small Capital Company Rules, 2022.
Address of registered office of the company and factory of the company
Corporate office: The Corporate office of the company is located at Apt-1B, House No-17/A, Road
No-3, DOHS Banani, Dhaka-1206
Registered Address: Nayonpur Bazar, Chalkpara, Medical more, Mawna - Dulivita Rd, Mawna
Union 1740, Gazipur.
Factory Address: The factory is situated atNayonpur Bazar, Chalkpara, Medical more, Mawna -
Dulivita Rd, Mawna Union 1740, Gazipur.
Nature of business
The company is engaged in the production of all types of quality leather/synthetic footwear and
export 100% of its produce to international market.

2.00 Basis of preparation of Financial statements
Significant Accounting Policy for the presentation of the financial Statements
The specific accounting policies selected and applied by the company’s management for
significant transactions and events that have material effect within the framework of 1AS-1
“Presentation of Financial Statements”, in preparation and presentation of financial statements
have been consistently applied throughout the year and were also consistent with those used in
earlier years.

2.01 Corporate financial statements and reporting
This comprises Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and other
explanatory notes covering accounting policies. .
This is prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with the requirements of
the Companies Act, 1994, International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and International
Accounting Standards (IASs) adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh
(ICAB) and as applicable to this Company.
The Board of Directors are responsible for preparing and presenting the financial statements
including adequate disclosures, who approved and authorized for issue of this financial
statements.
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the International Accounting
Standards (IASs) requires Board of Directors to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues and cxpenses, assets and liabilities at reporting date. Due to the
inherent uncertainty involved in making estimates, actual result could differ from those estimates.

MK Footwear PLC- Page |
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2.02

2.03

2.04

2.05
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Fundamental accounting concepts/ assumpuons
The financial statements have been pisaien Bases i Going concern assumption, Consistency
concept, Accrual basis and such vther convention as vequired vy 1AS-1 for fair presentation of
financial statements.

Going concern
The company has adequate resources to continue 1ts operation for the foreseeable future. For this
reasons, the directors continue to adopt going concern hasis in preparing the accounts. The
current credit facilities and resources of the company provides sufficient fund to meet the present
requirements of its existing business.
Compliance with IAS & IFRS

The following IAS is applicable to the financial statements for the year under review:

1AS Title Remark
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements Applied
IAS 2 Inventories Applied
IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows Applied
IAS 8 Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates & Errors Applied
IAS 10 Events after the Reporting period Applied
IAS 12 Income Taxes Applied
IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipmei_n—t— Applied
IAS 19 Employee Benefits Applied
IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates Applied
1AS 23 Borrowing Costs Applied
1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures Applied
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation Applied
IAS 33 Earnings Per Share Applied
IAS 36 Impairment of Assets Applied
IAS 37 Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets Applied
IAS 38 Intangible Assets Applied

The following IFRS is applicable to the financial statements for the year under review:

IFRS Title ’ Remark
IFRS 1 | First-time Adoption of Bangladesh Financial Reporting Standards Applied
IFRS 7 | Financial Instruments: Disclosures Applied
IFRS 8 | Operating Segments Not Applicable
IFRS9 | Financial Instruments Applied

IFRS 15 | Revenue From Contracts with Customers Applied

IFRS 16 | Leases Applied

Reporting period

The period of the financial statements covers from 01 July, 2022 to 30 June, 2023

coemp v
VviK Footwear Lid.
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2.06 Comparative information and rearvuagements thereof:
In accordance with the provisions of [AS- 1: “Presentation of Financial Statements”, Comparative
information that is available has been disclosed for all numerical information in the financial
statements and also the narrative and descriptive information where it is relevant for
understanding of the current period’s financial statements.
Comparative figures have been re-arranged wherever considered necessary to ensure better
comparability with the current period without causing any impacton the profit and value of assets
and liabilities as reported in the firancial statements. Interest expenses are paid for obtaining
financial resource and as such management decided to disclose it under Financing Activities of
Statement of Cash Flows.

2.07 Offsetting:
An entity shall not offset assets and liabilities or income and expenses, unless required or
permitted by IFRS.

2.08 Leases b
An entity shall assess a lease if the contract convey§ ;‘ghe' right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideraticfnf"l‘n line with IFRS-16 Leases, an entity shall
determine the lease term as the non-canceilable perid'a.{_)f a lease together with both:
. Period covered by the option to extend the lease and; . '
I1. Period covered by the option to terminate the lease.
Initial measurement of right of use asset shall be measured at cost and subsequently either by fair
value or follow revaluation model See annex Annex-IIl & Note 8)
IFRS-16 leases has not been applied for Generator Rent and Factory Rent as these lease are for
short term iease as per para 5 of [FRS-16 N

2.09 Events after the reporting period. '
In Compliance with the requirements of IAS 10 Events After the Reporting Period that Period that
provide additional information about the company's position at the reporting date are reflected
in the financial statements and events after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes when material.

2.10 Functional and presentational (Reporting) currency
The financial statements are prepared and presented in Bangladesh Currency (Taka), Which is the
company's functional currency. All financial information presented have been rounded off to the
nearest Taka except where indicated otherwise. '

2.11 Comparative information and rearrangement thereof
Comparative figures have been re-arrangec wherever considered necessary to ensure better
comparability with the current year without causing any impact on the profit and value of assets
and liabilities as reported in the financial statements. ’

2.12 Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported value of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circurstances, the result of which forms the
basis of making the judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. However, the
estimates and underlying assumptions are revised when there is material impact on the financial
results of the company.

2.13  Approval of these Financial Statements by Board of Directors

The Board of Directors has approved the%Ej\nancial Statements on 28 October 2023.
/ ' MK Footwear PLC- Pagem
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2.14 Regulatory Compliance
The financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with the following laws and
regulations;
The Companies Act, 1994
The Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Rule 1987
The Bangladesh Securitics and Exchange Commission Act 1993.
The Income Tax Act, 2023
The Income Tax Rules, 2023
The Value Added Tax (VAT) Supplementary Duty Act, 2012

2.15 Summary of significant accounting policies
The specific accounting policies selected and applied by the company’s directors for significant
transactions and events that have material effect within the framework of IAS-1 “Presentation of
Financial Statements”, in preparation and presentation of financial statements have been
consistently applied throughout the year and were also consistent with those used in prior
periods.
For a proper understanding of the financial statements, these accounting policies are set out in
one place as prescribed by the IAS-1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”. The
recommendations of [AS-1 relating the format of financial statements were also taken into full
consideration for fair presentation.

2.16 Recognition of Property, Plant & Equipment’s
Property, Plant & Equipment’s have been stated at cost less accumulated depreciation (Written
down value). The cost of acquisition comprises of purchase price, including import duties and non-
refundable Taxes and any directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to its working condition
for its intended used. Expenditure incurred after the assets have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance is normally charged off as revenue expenditure in the period in which it
is incurred. In situation where it can be clearly demonstrated that expenditure has resulted in an
increase in the future economic benefit expected to be obtained from the use of the fixed assets,
the expenditure is capitalized as an additional cost of the assets.
On retirement or otherwise disposal of fixed assets, the cost and accumulated depreciation are
eliminated and any gain or loss on such disposal is reflected in the income statement which is
determined with reference to the net book value of assets and the net sales proceeds.

2.17 Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipments
Depreciation on all Property, Plant & Equipments is computed using the reducing balance method
so as to write off the assets over their expected useful life from the date when the corresponding
assets are available for use as per management intention. No depreciation have been charged after
the date of retirement.
After considering the useful life of assets as per [AS-16, the annual depreciation rates have been
applied as under which is considered reasonable by the management.
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2.19

2.20
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Category of fixed asseis _Rate of Depreciation
Land and Land Development 0%
Building & Other Civil Constructions 5%
Plant & Machineries 10%
Electrical Equipments & Installations 10%
Solar Power Plant 10%
Fire Fighting Equipments & Installation 10%
Furniture & Fixture 10%
Motor Vchicles 20%

Revenue recognition

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity will recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. This core principle is

delivered in a five-step model framework:

a Identify the contract(s) with a customer

b. Identify the performance obligations in the contract

o8 Determine the transaction price

d. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
e Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Liabilities for expenses and other payables
Liabilities are recognized for the goods and services received, whether paid or not for those goods
and services. Payables are not interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the
Average Cost method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary  coursc of business, less applicabie variable selling  expenses.
Impairment of Inventories:

Impairment of inventery is made as and when inventory became obsolete or unusable or for slow
moving items for which the management of the company is giving decisions from time to time.
Based on sales cycle of slow-moving items, the sales prices of the products may decrease over
time. The management of the Companv reviews the carrying amounts of its inventory (Balance
Sheet Date) to determine whether ther e is any indication of impairment in accordance with IAS-

2: ‘Inventories’. When the sales pme mov?h\elow the inventory cost prices, the loss on sales is
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recognized immediately in the Financial staiements. However, the management was confident,
buyer will be received all the goods as pei szes cuntracs ne indication of impairment of inventory
during the year; and as such, no adjustment was given in the Financial Statements for impairment.
Obsolete and Damaged Inventory:

The Company policy for damaged or obsolete items of inventory is to write down their recoverable
amount and charge them as an expense in the cost of goods sold (COGS) account in the relevant
year.

In the financial statement as of 30.06.2023, the company did not account for any write-down of
inventory due to damage or obsolescence. During the year-end count by the management team,
no such item of inventory was identified that might fall under obsolete/damaged criteria.
The company conducted yearend inventory count held at 30/06,/2023 as per accepted guideline
set by management. A management expert team consisting of members with adequate knowledge
& expertise was engaged in counting and valuation of inventory. The breakdown of the
components of inventory is disclosed in note no 10. As per accepted practice within the industry,
management has made adequate declaration regarding the value & quantity of inventory as at
30/06/2023

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash in hand and cash at banks have been considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents for the
preparation of these financial statements, which were held and available for use by company

without any restriction and there was no significant risk of changes in value of the same.

Statements of Cash Flows:

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared principally in accordance with [AS-7 “Statement of Cash
Flows” and the cash flows from the operating activities have been presented under direct method.
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors:

Changes in accounting policies:

An entity shall change an accounting policy only if the change:

(a) is required by an IFRS; or

(b) results in the financial statements providing reliable and more relevant information about the
effects of transactions, other events or conditions on the entity's financial position, Financial
performance or cash flows.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial year of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalized as part of the cost of the asset All other borrowing costs are expensed in the year in
which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in

connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.25 Income-tax expense
Current Tax:
Income tax is calculated and provision is made in compiiance with the provisions of Finance Act
2023 and the [ncome Tax Act 2023.
Deferred tax
Deferred tax arises due to temporary difference deductible or taxable for the events or
transactions which is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. A temporary difference is the difference between the tax base of an asset or liability and
its carrying amount, reported amount in the statement of financial position. Deferred tax assets
or liability is the amount of income tax recoverable or payable in the future periods recognized in
the current year as per IAS 12- Income tax.

2.26  Foreign Currency Transaction:
Foreign currency transactions are recorded, on initial recognition in the functional currency at the
spot exchange rate ruling at the transaction date.
At the end of each reporting period, in compliance with the provision of IAS 21: The Effects of

Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, are determined as under:

(a) Foreign currency monetary items are transiated using the closing rate.
(b) Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical costs in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
(c) Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency is translated using
the exchange rate at the date when the fair value is determined.
Exchange differences arising on the settiement of monetary items or on translating monetary
Items at rate different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the
period or in previous financial statements is recognized in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

3.00 Related party disclosures
IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures requires disclosures about transactions and outstanding
balances with an entity's related parties. The standard defines various classes of entities and
people as related parties and sets out the disclosures required in respect of those parties,
including the compensation of key management personnel.
The details of related party transactions have been disclosed in Note - 40.00

4.00 Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to financial assets and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.
Financial assets:
Financial assets of the company include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, other

eivables and equity instrument of another entity. The company initially recognized receivable
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on the date they are originated. All otl:er financial ésscts are recognized initially on the date at
which the company becomes a party "o the contractuai grovision of the transaction. The company
derecognizes a financial asset when, and only when the contractual rights or probabilities of
receiving the cash flows on the financial assets in a transaction in which substantially all the risk
and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred.

As per requirements of IFRS 9: Classification. and measurement of investment in equity
instruments depend on how these are managed (the entity’s business model) and their
contractual cash flow characteristics. Based on these factors, it would generally fall either under
‘at fair value through profit and loss account’ or under ‘at fair value through other comprehensive
income’ where any change in the fair value (measured in accordance with IFRS 13) at the year-
end is taken to the profit and loss account or other comprehensive income, respectively. The
Company has recognized investments in shares which are on a quoted market are designated at
fair value (market price) through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI). Gains or Losses arising
from a change in the fair value of such financial assets are recognized in other comprehensive
income. Market value is determined by taking the closing price of the securities at the Dhaka Stock
Exchange Ltd. as of financial position date; and Stock dividend (Bonus shares) are added with
existing shares with at zero cost which results in decreasé of per unit cost price of the existing
shares. However, bonus shares are shown at fair value on the statement of financial position date.

Investment in non-marketable securities have been valued at cost.

Financial liability:

Financial liabilities are recognized initially on the transaction date at which the company becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the liability. The company derecognizes the financial
liabilities when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expired. Financial
liabilities includes payable for éxpense, liability for capital expenditure and other current

liabilities.

4.01 Earnings Per Share & Diluted Earning Per Share

Earnings Per Share:
This has been calculated in compliance with the requirement of 1AS-33: Earnings per share by
dividing the net earnings attributable to the shareholders by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Basic Earnings per share (Numerator /Denominator)

Earnings (Numerator)

This represents carning for the year attributa.

A ; to ord'mary shareholders

No. of ordinary shares (Denominator) -5;
This represents weighted average number of or‘dmary share outstanding
. :

during the year. e
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Diluted Earnings Per Share:
Diluted earnings per share (diluted EPS) calculates a company’s earnings per share if all
convertible securities were converted
Diluted Earnings per Share=Net Income/Weighted number of Share
Impairment of Assets:

I) Financial Assets

Accounts receivable and others receivables are assessed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any objective evidence of impairment. Financial assets are impaired if objective
indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that the loss
event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flow of that asset, that can be estimated
reliably. Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired can include default of delinquency
by a debtor, indicates that a debtor of issuer will enter bankruptcy etc. No such impairment has
been raised till the reporting date.

II) Non-Financial assets

An asset is impaired when its carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The company
assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If
any such indication exits, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. The
recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and its v’a,l_ue in use.
Carrying amount of the assets is reduced to its recoverabie amount by recognizing an impaired
loss is recognized immediately in statement of comprehensive income unless the asset is carried
at revalued amount. Any impaired loss of a revalued asset shall be treated as a revaluation
decrease. No such impairment has been raised till the reporting date.

Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Contingent Liabilities and Contingents Assets are present or possible obligations or on liabilities
or assets, arising from past events and existence of which depends upon the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events which are not within the control of the
company or which amount of the obligations cannot be measured with sufficient reliability. In
accordance with {AS-37.

Intangible Assets

In Compliance with the requirements of IAS, 38 Intangibles Assets '
The following terms are used in this Standard with the meanings pacified:

Amortization is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an intangible asset over its
useful life.

An asset is a resource:

(a) controlled by an entity as a result as past events; and

(b) From which future economic benefits are expected to flow to the entity.

An intangible asset shall be recognized if, and only if:

(a) it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will
flow to the entity and

(b) the cost of the asset can be mca({ﬁied reliably
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4.05  Financial statements comprises:
a) Statement of Financial Position as on 30 juiic 2023
b) Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Inconie for the year ended 30 June 2023
c) Statement of Cash Flows For the year ended 30 June 2023
d) Statement of Changes in Equity as on 30 june 2023
e) Notes to the financial statements as on 30 June 2023
4.06 Employee Benefits

The company maintains defined benefit plan for its eligible permanent employees. The eligibility
is determined according to the terms and conditions set forth in the respective deeds.

The company has accounted for and disclosed employee benefits in compliance with the
provisions of 1AS-19: Employee Benefits.

The cost of employee benefit is charged off as revenue expenditure in the period to which the
contributions reiate.

The company’s employee benefits include the following:

Worker’s Profit & Participation Fund:
The company has decided to provide 5% WPPF on net profit before tax as per chapter-15 of Labor
Law 2006 as amended upto 2013.

Short Term Employee Benefits
These includes better working conditions in line with overseas customer’s requirement, Day care
center, Health care facility, Transportation for admin and management employee, Advance against
salary, Festival bonus etc. Obligations for such benefits are measured or an undiscounted basis
and are expensed as the related service is provided. This period company provide salary & wages
and director remuneration BDT 18,65,37,697.

4,07 Risk Factors and Management's Perceptions about the Risks
The Company is operating in an industry involving both external and internal risk factors having
direct as well as indirect effects on its business, result of its operations and financial condition, as
follows:

L. Interest rate risks:

Interest rate is concerned with borrowed funds of short termm & long-term maturity. Interest rate
risk is the risk that the company faces due to unfavorable movements in the interest rates.
Volatility in money market & increased demand for ioans/ investment funds raise the rate of
interest. A change in the government's policy also tends to increase the interest rate. High rate of
interest enhances the cost of fund of a company. Such rises in interest rates however mostly affect
companies having floating rate loans
Management perception:

The Company maintains a reasonable debt/ equity ratic; and accordingly, adverse impact of

interest rate fluctuation will not adversely affect the Company's performance as the Company
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emphasizes on cquity base {inanciiig to reduce the dependency on borrowing. Therefore,
management perceives tnat the fluctuation of intercst vawe on borrowing would have little impact
upon the performance of the Company.

II.  Exchange rate risks:
If exchange rate increases against local currency opportunity is created for getting more revenue
against sale in local currency. On the other hand, if exchange rate goes down, margin is squeezed
in local currency.
Management perception:
The products of the company are sold in fereign currency and payment for raw materials are made
mostly in foreign currency. Therefore, volatility of exchange rate will have little impact on
profitability of the Company.

III. Input Cost Risks:
Input cost risk is the risk of @ business when procuring materials or commodities in high global
demand. Increasing demand and supply shortages create volatility in these commodity values;
and therefore, the timing, quantity and price of purchase must be closely planned.
Management perception:
Management of the Company would hedge their exposure to input price volatility by adjusting its

selling price.
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MK FOUTWEAR PLU
Note to the Financial Statement
As on and For the year ended 50 fune, 2023

Particulars

5.00

Property, Plant & Equipment
Cost

Opening Balance

Addition during the year

Disposal during the year

30-jun-2023
BDT

|
|
1

|
|

30-Jun-2022

BDT

1,385,674,462
8,337,813

1,006,661,718
379,012,744

1,394,012,275

1,385,674,462

1,394,012,275 1,385,674,462
Accumulated Depreciation '
Opening Balance 165,958,757 75,536,514.00
Addition during the year 95,101,732 90,422,243
261,060,489 165,958,757
Written Down Value (WDV) 1,132,951,786 1,219,715,705
Details are in Annex-I
6 Intangible Asset
Cost
Opening Balance 165,000 =
Addition during the year z 165,000
165,000 165,000
Disposal during the year G :
165,000 165,000
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Balance 49,500 -
Addition during the year 34,650 49,500
84,150 49,500
Written Down Value {(WDV) ' 80,350 115,500
Details are in Annex-Ii )
7 Investment
Legacy Footwear Ltd.:
Cost 17,250,000
Fair Value Gain/(Loss) 166,117,500
Market value 183,367,500
8 Right-of-use (ROU) assets
Opening balance 10,143,068 1,572,340
Addition during the year 10,265,884 9,763,589
Paid off during the year (8,217,813)
12,191,139 11,335,929
Depreciation during the year (2,096,353) (1,192,861)
Closing balance ' 10,094,786 10,143,068
Details are in Annex-IIi \
9 Non-Current Security Deposits
Security Deposit-REB 1,000,000 1,000,000
Advance for Office Rent 195,000 195,000
1,195,000 1,195,000
10 inventories ‘ v
Material 126,729,191 105,006,598
Work-in-Process 62,977,494 47,976,262
Finished Goods 202,702,263 178,821,585
Stores & Spares 2,904,655 2,312,475
395,313,603 334,116,920

a) Quantity reconciliation of products we
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b) The valuation of closing inveniory has been made on the basis of lower of cost and net realizable value

as per [AS-2.
¢j The company has conducted a test (physical verification/stock taking) of above inventories as on 30
June, 2023

11 Accounts & Other Receivables:
Trade Receivables (*) 209,040,866 281,513,812
Interest Receivable 10,733 -
Incentive Receivable 66,625,077 16,153,360

275,676,676 297,667,172
The above receivables are considered good for which no provision for expected credit loss has been
recognised in the financial statements
(*) Detaiis of Trade Receivables are in Annex VI

Classification schedule as required by Schedule XI of Companies Act 1994 is as follows:
0 Debts con.sid‘ered good and in respect of which the 275,676,676 297,667,172
company is fully secured.
Debts considered good for which the company
M) holds no security other than the debtors personal = -
security and
1) Debts considered doubtful or bad. -
Debts due by directors or other officers of the
company or any of them ecither severally or jointly
V) with any other person or Debts due by firms or ) i
private companies respectively in which any
director is a partner or a director or a member to
be separately stated.
Debts due by companies under the same
V) management to be disclosed with the names of the - -
companics.
The maximum amount duc by directors or other
V1) officers of the company at any time during the year - -
to be shown by way of a note.
Aging of Accounts Receivable is given below:
Particulars
1-3 Months 142,271,416 272,171,976
3-6 Months 29,982,735 : -
More than 6 Months 103,422,525 ‘ 9,341,836
275,676,676 281,513,812
12 Inter-Company Receivable
Moynakuti Agro Industries Limited 100,326,000 116,876,000
100,326,000 116,876,000

The above represent interest free loan provided to the above related entity as temporary arrangement
which will be payable on demand. The related entity is the private limited company- MK FOOTWEAR PLC
was given the loan to Moynakuti Agro Industries Limited (private limited company) before converted into
public limited company dated 29 May 2022. To comply with the requirement of Bangladesh Securities
and Exchange Commission notification No. SEC/CMMRRCD/2006-159/Admin/02-10 dated 10
September 2006 the management of the company has decided not to provide any further loan to any of
its related entity and has taken steps to realize the receivable as soon as possible.
13 Advance Income Tax

Opening Balance 10,814,490 2,870,576
Addition during the year (note 13.1) 10,596,950 10,752,359
21,411,440 13,622,935

Adjustment made during the year (10,752,359) (2,808,445)
Closing Balance 10,659,081 10,814,490

13.1  Tax paid during the year

Tax paid on Cash Incentive Income 1,871,000 5,511,300

- 150,000
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Tax paid on Interest Income 10,000
Tax Paid on Export realization/Advance against Zxport. 8,715,950 5,091,059
10,596,950 10,752,359
14 Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash in Hand 140,009 645,201
Brac Bank, CD A/C 10001 100,056,379 -
Standard Bank, CD A/C 805 3,767 -
FDR (IPDC) 1,200,000 -
Short Notice Deposit A/c- 18024000235 4,168 13,981
FBR Margin Account 19,959,954 22,585,399
Sundry Deposit Account 1,758,004 1,900,000
Rupali Bank Ltd, FC A/c No - 18027005037 18,494,952 60,281,453
Southeast Bank Ltd, CD A/c No - 211100048890 5,387 1,756,361
Rupali Bank Ltd, CD A/C No-20009691 2,566 13,511,238
141,625,186 100,693,633

Strictly Private & Confidencial

Cash in hand was physically verified by the Auditor. Bank balances were reconciled & confirmed.

15 Share Capital:
Authorized Share Capital:

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

100,000,000 Ordinary shares @ of Tk. 10/- each 1.000,000,000

1,000,000,000

The authorized capital of the company has been ‘increased to BDT 100.00 crore vide Extra Ordinary

Resolution in EGM dated March 28, 2022 and duly filed with & passed by RJSC.

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital:

47,847,200 Ordinary shares @ of Tk. 10/- each fully paid in 478,472,000 378,472,000
cash __478472,000 378,472,000
’ 30 June, 2023
B No. of Shares | Value of Shares % of Shares
Sponsors & Directors 24,467,200 244,672,000 51.14%
Placement Shareholder 13,380,000 133,800,000 27.96%
Institute 3,277,077 32,770,770 6.85%
General Public  * 6,722,923 67,229,230 14.05%
Total 47,847,200 478,472,000 100.00%
30 june, 2022

No. of Shares

Vaiue of Shares

% of Shares

Sponsors & Directors 24,467,200 244,672,000 64.65%
Placement Shareholder 13,380,000 133,800,000 35.35%
Total 37,847,200 378,472,000 100%

Bangladesh Security Exchange Commission vide letter No. SEC/CI/QI0/SC-37/2022/1251,
dated 3rd May 2022 permitted MK Footwear PLC under Qualified Investor Offer by Small Capital
Company Rules, 2018 to increase paid up capital by Tk. 100,000,006 through issue of 10,000,000
number of ordinary share having face value of Tk. 10 per share.

16 Fair Value Gain/(Loss)
Opening Balance
Add: Addition during the year

Less Adjustment during the year
Add/(Less) Deferred Tax (Expenses)/Inceme
Closing Balance

17 Retained Earnings

166,117,500

166,117,500

(16,611,750)

149,505,750

Opening Balance 111,552,297 8,463,012
Net Profit/(Loss) during the year 40,666,309 - 103,089,285
152,218,606 111,552,297
18 Long Term Loan-Non Current Maturity:
Project Loan, A/c No - 18067000284 580,118,061 556,121,671
Project Loan, A/c No - 18067000201 215,744,957 197,083,975
IDCP (Interest During Construction Period} 46,100,610 60,648,606
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Block Interest . 7,215,044 8,184,477
849,178,672 822,038,729

Less: Transfer to Term Loan-Current Maturity {260,823,243) (128,283,044)
588,355,429 693,755,685

Disclosure about long term loan -As per Schedule XI, Part I, Para-a (4) of the Company Act, 1994

Particulars | (1';2;’6’*;30'&3;4) Project Loan (18067000201)
Purpose | Import  Barnd Import Barnd New Machine and
| New Machine Construction of Factory Building
! Ten Years from
Tenure: | the date of Ten Yearsfrom thedate of disbursement
' disbursement
Repayment: ng(a)sz atioI: gk From proceed realization
Rate of Interest: | 9% 5%
Iraported A) 350.88 decimal land and Building and
Security: Machineries, Projects  Machineries of that Land located Dhonua
Land and Building (Muaza), Shrepur; Gazipur,

19 Lease liability

Opening balance 8,276,371 1,641,686
Addition during the year 8,000,000 7,680,000
Finance cost 348,724 250,920
16,625,095 9,572,606
Rent paid (8,727,046) (1,296,235)
Closing balance 7,898,049 8,276,371
Allocated to: el
Non-current liabilities 6,481,796 6,114,483
Current liabilities 1,416,253 2,161,888
7,898,049 8,276,371

Details are in Annex-iV
20 Trade and Other Payabies:

Advance Against Export (**) 24,491,844 66,018,250
Trade Payable (*) 115,724,400 105,351,204
140,216,244 171,369,454

(*) Details of Trade Payable Details arc in Annex VII
(**) Advance against Export represent, amount received in advance for sales contract against which no
product is delivered during the year.

21 Short Term Loan:

Cash Credit Hypothecation 'i 152,250,725 | | 144,956,742
COVID 19 Revolving Refinance Scheme 24,513,428 | | 23,865,572
Export Development Fund (EDF) 165,363,214 i 250,764,089
Purchase Against Documents (PAD) 1 29,148,512 \ 124,395,204
0D against Cash Incentive (32) i 26,434,769 ‘ -
OD against Cash Incentive (33) 8,067,582 , -
COVID 19 Stimulus Funds Workers Salary | 17,053,776 l 20,331,461
_ 422,832,006 564,313,068
. Cash Credit ! COVID .19 COVID 19 Stimulus
Particulars Hypothecation Revolving Funds Workers
Refinance Scheme Salary
Purpose: Import Raw Material Working Capital Working Capital
Tenure: i One year . One year B One year
. ] Export Bill Collection and { Export Collection ‘ | Export Collection
Repaymetit: Company'sown fund | and Fund | and Fund
Rate of Interest: 9% i 9% | 9%
i Criginal Export Master | ] ] ]
Security: ‘ Lettar of Credit (L/C) ‘1 Stock Inventory J | Stock Inventory J

Liabilities for Expenses:
iVIK Footwear PLC- Page | 8C

A Ces




24

24.1

24.2

Audit Fee

Electricity Bili
Generator Rent

Factory Rent

Directors' Remuneration
Salary & Wages Payable
TDS and VDS Payable

Provision for WPPF

Opening Balance

Add Addition During the Period
Less Paid During the Period
Closing Balance

Provision for income Tax

Opening Balance

Addition during the year:

Tax on Business income (note 24.1)
Tax on other income (note 24.2)
Prior year Adjustment

Paid/Adjusted during the year

Tax on Business Income

Net Profit before Tax

Less: Other income

Less: Unrealized Foreign Exchange gain/(Loss)
Add: Accounting Depreciation & Amortization
Add: WPPF

Less: WPPF (paid)

Less: Tax Depreciation

Taxable Business income

Tax rate on Business Income

Tax on Business Income (A)

TDS on Export received (B)

Tax on Gross receipt (C) @ 0.2618% (12/27.5*.6)

Tax liabilities on business income (Higher of A. B, & C)
Un-used Tax Loss:

Opening Balance

Addition during the year

Less: use of unused tax
Un-used Tax Loss

Tax on other Income
Tax on Cash Incentive Income
Tax on Interest income @ 27.5%

Tax on Cash Incentive Income:

Opening Incentive Receivable

Cash Incentive Income

Less: Unrealized during the year

Cash Incentive Received during the year
Income Tax Rate

Tax on Cash Incentive Income

Strictly Private & Confidencial

345,000 345,000
664,624 1,775,645
- 380,000
- 760,000
1,799,000 399,000
9,119,132 15,460,748
339,903 1,323,080
12,267,659 20,443,473
5,564,995 .
3,057,205 5,564,995
(5,564,995)
3,057,205 5,564,995
10,667,434 2,870,600
8,715,950 5,091,059
1,892,285 5,514,220
84,925
21,360,594 13,475,879
(10,752,359) (2,808,445)
10,608,235 10,667,434
61,144,094 111,299,904
(69,264,304) (71,276,977)
(1,310,170) (10,206,238)
95,136,382 90,471,743
3,057,205 5,564,995
(5,564,995) 2
(95.800,170) (188,216,516)
(12,601,958) (62,363,089)
12% 12%
8,715,950 5,091,059
2,340,334 3,508,439
8,715,950 5,091,059
130,639,697 68,276,608
12,601,958 62,363,089
143,241,655 130,639,697
143,241,655 130,639,697
1,871,000 5,511,300
21,285 2,920
1,892,285 5,514,220
16,153,360 -
69,186,905 71,266,360
(66,625,077) (16,153,360)
18,715,188 55,113,000
10% 10%
1,871,000 5,511,300
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——— N l 2022-2023 2021-2022
e ] BDT | BDT
25 Revenue:
Export Sale 821,421,417 1,268,844,877
Export-Sample 3,253,842
824,675,259 1,268,844,877
26 Cost of Goods Sold:
Material Consumed (note 26.01) 452,706,708 808,153,215
Manufacturing Overhead (note 26.02) 292,718,474 318,051,560
745,425,181 1,126,204,775
Opening Work in Process 47,976,262 25,380,529
793,401,443 1,151,585,304
Closing Work in Process (62,977,494) (47,976,262)
730,423,949 1,103,609,042
Opening Finished Goods 178,821,585 177,684,601
Cost of Goods available for sale 909,245,534 1,281,293,643
Closing Finished Goods (202,702,263) (178,821,585)
Cost of Sales 706,543,271 1,102,472,058
26.01 Material Consumed:
Opening Stock 105,006,598 104,758,321
Add: Purchase during the year 474,429,301 808,401,492
Less: Closing Stock (126,729,191) (105,006,598)
452,706,708 808,153,215
26.02 Manufacturing Overheads:
Wages & Salaries 176,262,496 184,534,205
Depreciation 93,936,651 89,691,398
Electricity Bill 9,630,821 21,778,230
Generator Rent 4,600,000 4,440,000
Factory Rent - 6,700,000
Fuel & Lubricant 1,983,118 2,080,453
Repairs & Maintenance 1,021,831 1,260,307
Workers Tiffin 2,668,531 2,910,108
Loading Unioading 839,157 1,186,869
Medical & Welfare 78,711 137,139
Workers' Transportation 306,927 604,516
Inspection Expenses 119,060 1,087,146
Conveyance 151,161 524,443
internet Bill 177,702 90,167
Mobile Bill 100,967 50,215
Fire Extinguishing Expenses 124,073 50,070
Training Expenses 5,000 289,700
Insurance 1,210,114 -
Others 102,154 636,594
292,718,474 318,051,560
27 Foreign Exchange Gain/(Loss)
Realised FC Gain/(Loss) (4,787,703) (18,128,641)
Unrealised FC Gain/(Loss) 1,310,170 10,206,238
(3,477,533) (7,922,403)
28 Administrative Expenses:
Salaries & Allowances 4,720,329 4,227,350
Depreciation on ROU assets 1,925,255 1,192,861
Directors' Remuneration 3,600,000 3,500,000
Registration & Renewal 831,811 142,706
R]SC Expenses 40,000 1,314,321
Depreciation 1,336,179 ' 730,845
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Amortization of Intangible Assets 34,650 49,500
Audit Fees 345,000 345,000
Conveyance 66,571 103,787
Entertainment 27,223 69,698
Vehicle Expenses 37,500 646,321
Stationery 117,081 218,392
Postage & Courier Service 29,373 74,783
Electricity Bill 111,864 74,452
Telephone, Mobile and Internet 55,211 32,000
[PO Expenses 1,644,683 -
Others 87,543 165,181
15,010,273 12,887,197
29 Distribution Expenses:
Conveyance 50,125 105,603
Entertainment 42,142 92,827
Export Expenses 5,349,788 9,742,548
Salaries & Allowances 1,954,872 1,856,400
Stationeries 123,412 249,630
7,520,339 12,047,008
30 Non-Operating income:
Cash Incentive 69,186,905 71,266,360
Interest Income 77,399 10,617
69,264,304 71,276,977
31 Financial Expenses:
Export Bill Realization Expenses/Income 516,761 1,450,943
Interest on Short Term Loan 25,190,029 16,889,800
Bank Charges & Commissions 1,293,962 570,366
Finance costs-lease liability 348,724 250,920
[nterest on Long Term Loan 69,837,372 68,766,260
97,186,848 87,928,289
32 Earning per share (EPS)
Basic earnings per share:
Profit after tax 40,666,309 103,089,285
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 40,666,309 103,089,285
Total weighted average number of  shares
outstanding during the year 38,121,173 32,308,570
Basic earnings per share (Tk 10/= per Share) 1.07 3.19
Diluted earnings per share:
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders 40,666,309 103,089,285
Weighted-average number  of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year 38,121,173 32,308,570
Diluted potential number of ordinary shares - -
Total number of shares as dilutive potential ordinary shares 38,121,173 32,308,570
Diluted earnings per share (Tk 10/= per Share) 1.07 3.19
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year
! ! i
1 ggyosf I])\l:y ‘ Price per welsisad
Particulars l Amount i Wei number of
use ina Share
| . ght share
| capital | year !
Share | o i .
Capital 378,472,000 | 365 | 365 | 1.004!l | 10 J‘ 37,647,200 |
New Share 100,000,000 10 365 |
.Esue | | | \ 003 | | w0 | F 273,973 |
Total 478,472,000 38,121,173
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33 Net Operating Cash Flow per Share {NOC t'PS)
Net Operating Cash Flow 163,201,819 50,878,709
Total weighted average ittioer or Shaies 37,847,200
outstanding during the year 38,121,173
Potential No. of Share for Share Money Deposit - S
Total No of Share to Calculate Net Asset Value Per Share 38,121,173 37,847,200
Net Operating Cash Flow per share 4.28 1.34
34 Net Asset Value Per Share (NAVPS)
Shareholders’' Equity 780,196,356 490,024,297
No. of Share for Share Capital 47,847,200 37,847,200
Total No of Share to Calculate Net Asset Value Per Share 47,847,200 37,847,200
NAVPS (Net Asset Value Per Share) 16.31 12.95
35 Cash Received from Customers and others income
Revenue 824,675,259 1,268,844,877
Foreign Exchange Gain/(Loss} Related to Accounts &
Other Receivables 17,162,332 7,882,624
Other Income 69,264,304 71,276,977
Add: Accounts Receivables balance b/d 297,667,172 116,232,518
Less: Accounts Reccivables balance c/d (275,676,676) (297,667,172)
Add: Advance Against Sale C/d 24,491,844 66,018,250
Less: Advance Against Sale b/d (66,018,250) (145,155,440)
Less: Export Bill Collection Charge (516,761) (1,450,943)
891,049,224 1,085,981,691
36 Cash Paid to Suppliers, employees and others expenses
Cost of Goods Sold ' (706,543,271) (1,102,472,058)
Administrative expenses (15,010,273) (12,887,197)
Selling and distribution Expenses ' (7,520,339) (12,047,008)
Adjustment for Depreciation 95,272,830 90,422,243
Adjustment for Amortization 34,650 49,500
Depreciation on ROU assets 1,925,255 1,192,861
Increase/Decrease Trade Payables 10,373,196 46,294,247
Foreign Exchange Gain/(Loss) Related to Accounts &
Other Payables (20,845,011) (22,177,109)
Increase/Decrease Liability for expenses (8,175,814) 11,712,079
Increase/(Decrease) Workers' Profit Participation Fund
(WPPF) (5,564,995) -
Increase/(Decrcase) Advance Deposit and Prepayment - 1,312,904
Increase/Decrease Inventory {(61,196,683) (25,751,085)
{717,250,455) (1,024,350,623)
37 Income Tax paid
Opening AIT 10,814,490 2,870,576
Closing AIT (10,659,081) (10,814,490)
Current year Provision (10,693,160) (10,605,279)
Opening Provision for Tax (10,667,434) (2,870,600)
Closing Provision for Tax 10,608,235 10,667,434
(10,596,950} (10,752,359)
38 Cash flow for Property Plant and Equipment / Capital in Working Progress.
Addition to Property Plant & Equipments (8,337,813) (379,012,744)
Addition to Capital Work In Progress - (31,828,266)
Adjustment for Transfer from CWIP to PPE - . 240,627,645
(8,337,813) (170,213,365)
39 Reconciliation of Net profit before tax with Cash flow from operating activities
Net profit before income tax 61,144,094 111,299,904
Add: Finance Cost 96,670,087 86,477,346
Adjustment for Depreciation 95,272,830 90,422,243
Adjustment for Amortization 34,650 49,500
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Depreciation on ROU asseis 1,925,255 1,192,861
Increase/(Decrease) Workers' Profit Yoo marin: fina

(WPPF) {2,507,799) 5,564,995
(Increase)/Decrease Inventory (61,196,683) (25,751,085)
(Increase)/Decrease Receivable 21,990,496 (181,434,654)
Increase/Decrease Advance deposits and prepayme:ts - 1,312,904
Increase/(Decrease) Accounts Payables (31,153,210} (32,842,943}
Increase/Decrease Liability for expenses (8,175,814) 11,712,079
Unrealized Foreign Exchange Gain/(Loss) . (205,146) (9,207,350)
Unrealized Foreign Exchange Gain/(Loss) : - 2,835,268
Income Tax Paid (10,596,950} (10,752,359)
Net Cash (used in)/generated by operating activities 163,201,820 50,878,709

40.00 Related Party Disclosure:
During the year, The Company carried out a number of transactions with related parties in the
normal course of business. The names of the related parties and nature of these transaction have
been set out in accordance with the provisions of IAS -24: "Related Party Disclosure”.

[ i Opening Transaction duringtheyear |  Closing
Name of Relstianshi Nature of | Balanceasat Balance as at
Party P | Transaction | 01july, 2022 Dr. Cr. 30 June, 2023

. Dr./(Cr} | - Dr./(Cr.)
Moynakuti ke l |
Agro Common ContBai 1_ ) ll
Industries | Directorship Rccc‘i’vag’]e | 116,876,000 | 16,550,000 | 100,326,000
Limited | i
S— : 1 T
- |
Mohammed | ¢ oo iod | 3,600,000 1,801,000 1,799,000
Mohammed | Company |
Tohidul Secretary & Salary ! - . .
. | 1,320,000 1,210,000 110,000
Islam i/[hareholder B )
: , 1
MdMasud | ol | sala ? . | |
Rana ] y = 365,500 | 335042 | 30,458 ;
Shareholder | { | i
116,876,000 5,285,500 19,896,042 100,326,000

41.00 Capacity Utilization:

Disclosure as per requirement of schedule XI, part 11, para 7 of Company Act 1994
Section Per day (Per Shift) Per day (Per Shift) Utilization
Pcs. Pcs).

Period ended 30 June 2023

|
|
Finishing - Shoes (Pcs) !t 39.64%

A
Installed Capacity Utilization |
|
!
|
10,000 3,964 ;
l

| i
41.01 Disclosure as per requirement of schedule X1, Part 11, Para 8 of Company Act 1994
a) During the period no import in respect of raw materials and capital machineries on CIF basis has
been made. The company import raw materials and capital machineries on CFR basis.
b) No Expenditure in foreign currency during the financial year on account of royalty, know-how,
processional consultation fee, interest and other matters.
¢) Value of all imported raw materials, spare parts and cornponents consumed during the period and
the value of all indigenous raw materials, spare parts and components similarly consumed and the
percentage of each to the total consumption are as undet:
Ftem ‘ Consumed
| Names '
Raw
Materials

. i
% of Consumption ',
—

l
100% 5
i

|
\,
i
452,706,708 \
|

I T SN
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d) The company has not remitted any anicinc during the perivd in foreign currencies on account of

dividend.

e) The company has rot earned in roreign «xchesg? rom rovalty, know-how, professional and

consultation fee, dividend and other income except exports for goods calculated on FOB basis. Details

are given below:
Particulars f

Amount in (USD) | Amount in (BDT)

FOB Value of Export | 8,083,238.23 | 821,421,417
Disclosures regarding Sales as per Para 3, Part -1I, Schedule XI of the

42.00 Companies Act 1994 are as follows:
a Quantity-wise sales for the period is as follows:
Quantity Rate '
Name of product (pes) | (Taka) Taka
| Shoes (PCS) [ 1,093,874 | 750.93 821,421,417
Total 1,093,874 821,421,417

b The company do not give any brokerage and discount on sales other than usual trade discount.
Quantitative details of opening stock, purchases / production, consumption / sales and closing

C stock of raw materials and finished goods are as under:
a Purchases Closing
ftem Unit Opening | / Transfer Wastage Transfer Stock
Stock In Out/ Sales
Qty Qty Qty Qty Qty

Raw
material:
oot sy

A D 4,578,712 | 7,276,212 - | 10,035,903 1,819,022
June 2023
Work in
Process:
Period
staeg 0 - 182,613 | 1,172,720 38,620 | 1,070,271 | 246,442
June 2023
Finished
goods:
Period
o e 333,394 | 1,070,271 .| 1,093874| 309,791

{ June 2023 |
43.00 Employee position of MK Footwear PLC (as at June 30,2023)
Disclosure as per requirement of schedule X1 part II, Para 3 of the company Act 1994
All the employees receive salary/wages in excess of Tk. 8,200 per month.
Number of permancnt staff 19
Number of permanent workers o 688
Total: 707
44.00 Disclosure as per requirement of schedule XI, Part I1, Para 4 of Company Act 1994

As per Company Act, 1994 part-II, Schedule-XI (4) The profit and loss account will give by way of a
note detailed information, showing separately the fellowing payments provided or made during the
financial period to the directors, including managing director, the managing agents or manager, if
any, by the company, subsidiaries of the company and any other person:-

. 2022- | 2021- |
rNo. \ Particulars 2023 l 2022 |
(a) | Managerial Remuneration paid or payable during the period ! 1
: \ to the directors, including managing directors, a managing 9,605,500 ;‘ 9,769,233 \
| agent or manager | : .
(b) | Expenses reimbursed to Managing\Agent Nil l Nil |
I
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{c) | Commission or Reinuneiaion bLayadle scpaiarely to a e ’
managing agent or uis asse i ; Nil il 1

(d) Commission received ui receivabl:hy di iucaging agent or : 1
his associate as selling ur ouying agert ol atier COACErns n Nil ‘ Nil
respect of contracts entered into by such concerns with the 1 i \
company |

(e) The money value of the contracts for the sale or purchase of |
goods and materials or supply of services, entered into by the Nil Nil
company with the managing agent or his associate during the ) i
financial period.

6 Any other perquisite or benefits in cash or in kind stating, Nil Nil
approximate money value where applicable.

(g) Other al'lowances and commission including guarantee Nil Nil
commission * ,

(h) ~ Pensions etc. ' *
(i) Pensions Nil Nil
(ii) Gratuities Nil Nil
(iii) Payments from a provident funds, in exzess ol own Nil Nil
subscription and interest thereon

(i) Share Based payments Nil Nil

45.00 Additional Disclosures
45.01 Revenue
During the reporting year Revenue of the company has been decreased by Tk. 444,169,618 that is
35% corresponding with last year due to economic recession in Europe and Russia-Ukraine war.
Most of the brands i Europe 1s suffering with over stock for which there is significant drop in new
orders and as a result the whole Footwear industry in Bangladesh have struggled to get new order
from European buyers and as a result of decreased in Revenus, Cash Incentive under non-operation
income is also decreased by 42.05%. =~ °
45.02 EPS :
During the year Earning Per Share of the company decreased by Tk. 2.12 Per share with
corresponding to previous year, the major reason of which the revenue of the company has been
decreased by 35%.
45.03 Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share (NOCFPS)
Net Operating Cash Flow Per Share (NOCFPS) increased by Tk. 2.94 per share with corresponding
to previous year, the major reason of which Cash Paid to Suppliers, employees & others expenses
decreased by 26.98% though Cash Received from Customers and others income decreased by
17.95%.
46.00 General

46.01 Segment Reporting
As the company operates as a single business and geograpiiic segment no segment reporting is felt
necessary.

46.02 Contingent liability
There is no contingent liability as of the balance sheet date.

46.03 Receivable from Directors

Nothing is receivable from the

director.
46.04 Last ycar's figures have been rearranged wherever it was found necessary.
46.05 Figures appearing in the financial statements have heen rounded off to the nearest BDT.
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MK QU TWEAR P00
Calculation oi Deferred tax
As at 30 June, 2023

- Annex-V |

S — R Amount in BDT h Amount in BDT
30-Jun-2023 | | 30-Jun-2022 ]
A. Deferred Tax (Income}/Expenses to be recognized in Profit and Loss A/C

Carrying value (Accounting Base)

Property, Plant and Equipment lr 1,132.951,786 ( 1,219,715,705
Intangible Assets i 34,650 ! _ 49,500
WPPF ‘ (3,057,205} | | (5,564,995)
Unrealized Foreign exchange Gain/(Loss) 1,310,170 | 1 10,206,238 \
Cash Incentive '[ 69,186,905 | { 71,266,360 J
Un-Used Tax Loss ! - o -
1,200,426,306 1,224,406,448

Carrying value (Tax Base] L .
Property, Plant and Equipment 959,820,427 | | 1,047,248,134 i
Intangible Assets | 34,65¢ | 49,500 i
Unrealized Foreign exchange Gain/(Loss) - P - |
Cash Incentive 18,715,188 | | 55,113.000
Un-Used Tax Loss ' 143,241,655 | | 130,639,697

: 1,121,811,920 1,233,050,331
A. Taxable /(Deductible)temporary difference 78,614,386 (8,643,883)
Income Tax rate of Operation Except Cash Incentive 12% 12%
income Tax rate for Cash Incentive G i 10% 10%
Deferred Tax Liabilities/{Assets) at the end of the year - 8,424,292 {1,360,333)
Closing Deferred Tax (Assct)/Liabilities i 8,424,262 ‘ % (1,360,333)
Opening Deferred Tax (Asset)/Liabilities | (1,360,333‘;41 ! 1,034,327
Deferred Tax (Income)/Expenses to be recoghized in ‘ 0,784,625 (2,394,660)

Profit and Loss A/C
B. Deferred Tax on Fair Value Gain/(Loss) to be recognized on Other Comprehensive Income

Carrying value of Investment (Accounting Base) 183,367,500
Carrying value of Investment {Tax Base) 17,250,060
Taxable /(Deductible) temporary difference 166,117,560
Income Tax rate for Fair Value Gain/(Loss) 10%
Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Assets) at the end of the year 16,611,750
Closing Deferred Tax (Asset)/Liabilities ™ 16611750 |
Opening Deferred Tax (Asset)/Liabilities | g 5
Deferred Tax (Inco%'ne)/uxpenses to be recognized in 16,611,750
Other Comprehensive Income

Total Closing Deferred Tax {Asset] /Liabilities {A+B) 25,036,042
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Strictly Private & Confidenciul

Comparative Balance Sheet

[ Particulars l 30-Jun-23 | 30-Jun-22 l 30-Jun-21___ |
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment ( 1,132,951,786 1 1,219,715,705 931,125,204 |
Intangible Assets ' 80,850 115,500 \ - |
Investment ‘ 183,367,500 \ - -
Capital Work In Progress ’ - \ - 208,799,379 |
Right-of-use (ROU) assets \ 10,094,786 10,143,068 \ 1,572,340
Non-Current Security Deposits | 1,195,000 l 1,195,000 1,195,000 |
Total Non-Current Assets 1,327,689,922 1,231,169,273 1,142,691,923
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories ‘ 395,313,603 334,116,920 | 308,365,835 |
Accounts & Other Receivables . 275,676,676 297,667,172 | 116,232,518 |
Advance, deposits and prepayments i ‘ - 1,312,904 !
inter-Company Receivable ‘ 100,326,000 116,876,000 | - |
Advance Income Tax 1 10,659,081 ‘ 10,814,490 1 2,870,576
Cash and cash equivalent ~ 141,625,186 | 100,693,633 t 144,129,717
Total Current assets 923,600,546 860,168,215 572,911,550
TOTAL ASSETS 2,251,290,468 2,091,337,488 1,715,603,473
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Shareholders’ Equity 3
Share Capital 478,472,000 | 378,472,000 1 10,000,000
Share money deposit - - 301,972,000
Fair value Gain/(Loss) 149,505,750 E
Retained earnings 152,218,600 111,552,297 i 8,463,012
Total Shareholder’s equity 780,196,356 490,024,297 320,435,012
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long Term Loan-Non-Current Maturity 588,355,429 693,755,685 \ 755,134,910
Lease liability (non-current portion) 6,481,796 ek 6,114,483 | 857,618
Deferred Tax Liabilities/(Asscts) 25,036,042 =4y, (1,360,333) | 1,034,327
Total non-current liabilities 619,873,267 698,509,835 757,026,855
CURRENT LIABILITIES ' :
Trade and Other Payables 140,216,244 4] 171,369,454 | 204,212,397 |
Term Loan (Current Maturity) 260,823,243 3 | 128,283,044 ] 38,057,331 |
Lease Liability (current portion) 1,416,253 | 2,161,888 784,068 |
Short Term Loan 422,832,006 [ 564,313,068 383,485,816
Liabilities for Expenses 12,267,659 | 20,443,473 8,731,394
Provision for WPPF 3,057,205 \ 5,564,995 -
Provision for Tax 10,608,235 | 10,667,434 2,870,600 |
Total Current Liabilitiss 851,220,845 902,803,356 638,141,606
Total Liabilities 1,471,094,112 1,601,313,191 1,395,168,461
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 2,251,290,468 2,091,337,488 1,715,603,473
NAV per Share 16.31 12.95 10.27
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Comparative Income Statements

Strictly Private & Confidencial

Particulars | 30-jun-23 30-Jun-22 30-jun-21
Turnover 824,675,259 1,268,844,877 435,505,568
Cost of goods sold (706,543,271) (1,102,472,058) (360,255,098)
Gross Profit/(Loss) 118,131,988 166,372,819 75,250,470
Foreign Exchange Gain/(Loss] (3,477,533) (7,922,403) 5,108,965
Administrative Expenses (15,010,273) (12,887,197) (4,198,030)
Distribution Expenses (7,520,339) (12,047,008) (3,316,696)
Operating Profit/ (Loss) 92,123,844 133,516,211 72,844,709
Non-Operating Income 69,264,304 71,276,977 6,371,000
Profit/(Loss) before interest & Tax 161,388,148 204,793,188 79,215,709
Financial Expenses (97,186,848) (87,928,289) (64,166,082)
Profit/(Loss) before WPPF & Tax 64,201,299 116,864,899 15,049,627
Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF) (3,057,205) (5,564,995)
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 61,144,094 111,299,904 15,049,627
Income Tax Expenses: (20,477,785) (8,210,619) (4,245,036)
Current Tax Income r (10,693,160) (10,605,279) (2,808,445)
Deferred Tax (Expenses}/Income i (9,784,625) 2,394,660 (1,436,591)
Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax 40,666,309 103,089,285 10,804,591
Other Comprehensive Income: 149,505,750 . =
Fair value Gain/(Loss) on Investment 166,117,500
Deferred Tax (Expenses)/Income (16,611,750)
Total Comprehensive Income 190,172,059 103,089,285 10,804,591
Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS} 1.07 3.19 10.80
Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) 1.07 3.19 0.35
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Sericly Orivate & Confidencial

Comparative Cash Flow Statements

|
| 30jun-23

Particulars 30-jun-22 30-jun-21
a. Cash flow from operating activities
Cash Received from customers and others income 891,049,224 1,085,981,691 447,807,634
Cash Paid to Suppliers, employees & other expenses 1717,250.455)  (1.024,350,623) (479,137,332)
Income Tax Paid (10,596,950) (10,752,359) (2,808,445)
Net Cash (used in)/generated by operating activities 163,201,819 50,878,709  (34,138,143)
b. Cash flow from investing activities
Property Plant and Equipment / Capital in Working Progress (8,337,813) (170,213,365) (234.997,803)
ROU Assets 5,951,929 (2,083,589) .
Investment (17,250,000)
Inter-Company Receivabic 16,550,000 (116,876,000)
Intangible Assets . (165,000} ]
Net Cash used (used in)/generated by investing activities (3,085,884)  (289,337,954) (234,997,803)
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Long term Bank Loan Received/(Re-paid) 27,139,943 20846488  230717.063
Short term Bank Loan Reccived/(Re-paid) (141,481,062) 177991984 240755698
Share Capital/Share Monzy Deposit Received 100,000,000 66,500,000 j
Leasc Payment (8,727,046) (1,296,235) (900,000)
Financial Expenses (96,321,363) (86,226,426)  (63.143876)
Net cash flow from financing activities (119,389,528) 185,815,811 407,428,885
Net changes increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 40,726,407 (52,643,434} 138,292,939
equivalents (a+b+c)
Unrealized Foreign Exchange Gain/(l.oss) 205,146 9,207,350 1,954,948
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 100,693,633 144,129,717 3,881,830
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 141,625,186 100,693,633 144,129,717
Operating Cash Flow Per Share 4.28 1.34 (1.09)
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Strictly Private & Confidencial

30-Jun-21

Particulars 30-Jun-23 30-Jun-22

Liquidity Ratios: (Times]

Current Ratio 1.09 0.95 0.90

Quick Ratio 0.62 0.58 0.41
Operating Ratios: (Times)

Accounts Receivable Turnover Ratio 1 2.88 | 6.13 [ 749 J
Profitability Ratios:

Gross Margin Ratio 14.32% 13.11% 17.28% j
Operating Income Ratio 11.17% 10.52% 16.73%
Net Profit Ratio 4.93% 8.12% 2.48%
Return on Assets Ratio 1.87% 5.42% 0.78%
Return on Equity Ratio 5.21% 21.04% 3.37%

Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS) 1.07 219 10.80

Net Asset Value (NAV) Per Share 16.31 12.95 320.44
Coverage Ratio:

Debt to Asscts Ratio 0.57 0.67 0.69

Debt to Equity Ratio 1.64 : 2.85 3.68

Total debt to tangible assets ratio : 0.57 ' 0.67 0.69

Cash Flow:

Net operating cash flow to Net Income i 4.01 l 049 | (3.16) J
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Strictly Private & Confidencici

Rating Summary of the Bond

Rating Agency Credit Rating Information & Services Limited (CRISL)
SME Rating A-(Indicative)

Validity From 20.11.2023 ’
Validity Date | 16.11.2024

Rating Summary of MK Footwear PLC

Rating Agency Credit Rating Information & Services Limited (CRISL)
Long-term : , A-

Short-term ST-3

Outlook Stable

Expiry Date 20.11.2024
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Strictly Private & Confidencial

There is no default matrix and transition statistics of CRC.
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Strictly Private & Confidencial

DESCRIPTION OF THE TRUSTEE

Community Bank Investment Ltd. (CBIL) is one of the promising merchant banks of the country was
incorporated in 30 December, 2020. CBIL set foot in the capital market industry in the year of 2021 after
obtaining Merchant Banking License from Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission in June
2021. Community Bank Investment Ltd. is wholly owned subsidiary of Community Bank Bangladesh
Limited (A concern of Bangladesh Police Kallyan Trust) and offers full-fledged merchant banking
services for retail and institutional clients. Our objective at CBIL is to provide the utmost professional
and reliable services to our clients and offer products that suit their best need.

Capital Structure Corporate Information:

Date of incorporation 30/12/2020

BSEC registration obtained 28/06/2021

Functions started 25/07/2023

BSEC permission obtained for branch operation N/A

Authorized capital BDT 500,000,000

Paid-up capital BDT 250,000,000
Functions

& Portfolio Management

o Provides Discretionary and Non-Discretionary Portfolio Management services
o Clients are offered Margin Load facilities with competitive brokerage service
+ Corporate Advisory
c Reviewing of Capital Structure and offering essential advice for effective financial
restructuring
+ Trustee
o On behalf of the Investors and Lenders CBIL organizes legal proceedings within the

bounds of applicable legislation and agreements to ensure prompt and seamless

transactional support
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Strictly Private & Confidencial

Board of Directors
Name, Designation and brief profile of each of the members
SL. Name Designation
1 Md. Atiqul Islam, BPM (Bar), PPM (Bar) Chairman
2 Abu Hasan Muhammad Tarique, BPM Director
3 | Habibur Rahman, BPM (Bar), PPM (Bar) Director
4 Dr. Shoeb Reaz Alam Director
5 Kazi Masihur Rahman Director
6 | Masihul Hug Chowdhury Director
7 Mohammad Abdul Qaium Khan Director
8 Benozeer Ahmed, FCMA, CPA Director
9 Shamsul Haque Sufyani Director
10 | Hasi Rani Bepari Director
11 | Nabadip Roy Director

Brief Profile of the Directors of CBIL

Mr. Md. Atiqul Islam, BPM (Bar), PPM (Bar), is the Additional Inspector General (Crime & Operations)
of Bangladesh Police. He joined Bangladesh Police Services on 1991 through 12th BCS as Assistant
Superintendent of Police. Throughout his professional career he served in different important position
of Bangladesh Police.

Mr. Abu Hasan Muhammad Tarique, BPM, is currently serving as Additional Inspector General,
Finance in the Police Headquarters, Dhaka. Mr. Tarique is a proud member of the Founding Team of the
Community Bank Bangladesh Limited. His contribution is fueling the endeavor of this Bank in playing
its desired roles in the Financial Sector of Bangladesh.

Mr. Habibur Rahman, BPM (Bar), PPM (Bar) is a prominent police officer and currently serving as
Additional Inspector General & Commissioner of Dhaka Metropolitan Police (DMP). He joined in
Bangladesh Police as Assistant Superintendent of Police (ASP) through 17th BCS (Bangladesh Civil
Service). Beside the responsibilities of his official capacity in Police, he is also known for his special
activities for underprivileged people of the country.

Dr. Shoeb Reaz Alam, belonging to the 17th BCS batch, started his career with the Banglaﬁesh Police in
1998 as Assistant Superintendent of Police. Presently, he is serving as Additional DIG (Development
Revenue-1) at the Police Headquarters. Dr. Alam is actively involved in welfare activities of the
Bangladesh Police. He played a key role in establishment of the Community Bank Bangladesh Limited.

Mr. Kazi Masihur Rahman, Ex Managing Director & CEO of Mercantile Bank Limited and Exim Bank
Limited developed an international banking career with in-depth knowledge, skills and experience, over
a period of 41 years in 09 banks located in 5 countries, i.e. Bangladesh, UK, Saudi Arabia, U.A.E and
Canada.

Mr. Masihul Huq Chowdhury has been serving as the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of
Community Bank Bangladesh Limited since the inception of the Bank. Mr. Masihul has over 30 years of
progressive experience in the financial industry both at home and abroad.

Mr. Mohammad Abdul Qaium Khan is the Deputy Managing Director & Chief Information Officer of
Community Bank Bangladesh Ltd. He started his banking career with BRAC Bank as a Network and
Infrastructure Manager. Prior to joining Community Bank Qaium Khan served Bank Asia Ltd & Standard

Bank Ltd as Head of IT. P
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Strictly Private & Confidenciai

Mr. Benozeer Ahmed FCMA (UK), CPA (AUS) is the Chief Financial Officer of Community Bank
Bangladesh Ltd. He is having an experience of more than 20 years in different renowned companies like:
IPDC Finance, Airtel Bangladesh, BRAC Bank, MGH Group etc.

Mr. Shamsul Haque Sufyani is currently serving as Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Operating
Officer of Community Bank Bangladesh Ltd. Prior to joining Community Bank, in his last position
Shamsul Haque served BRAC Bank Limited as Head of Trade Operations. He is also INFOSYS Certified

Finacle Administrator.

Hasi Rani Bepari is currently working as EVP & Head of Credit Risk Management of Community Bank
Bangladesh Ltd. She is playing a very important role in establishing this department of the Bank.

Mr. Nabadip Roy is presently serving as VP & Head of Treasury of Community Bank Bangladesh Ltd.
Prior to join CBBL he had served in Mercantile Bank PLC.
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a) Application Procedure

The Bond shall be offered through Private Offer to the eligible investors. Issuer and/or Arranger shall
ensure that the prospective Investors shall have been provided with a copy of the Information
Memorandum either in hard copy or soft copy and an invitation letter to subscribe. Based on the
Information Memorandum and subsequent clarification of queries (if any), the Investors shall submit
a letter of commitment to the Arranger and/or Issuer with the amount of intended subscription
specified.

b)  Allotment;

Issuer shall issue Allotment Letter(s) in the name of all allottees of the Bonds in electronic form with
digital signatures and credit the allotted Bonds to the respective BO accounts on the basis of
allotment data via their CDBL VeDAS Terminal upon receipt of the final allotment list. Each of the
Issuer, the Trustee and any Agent may deem and treat the registered holder of a Bond as the absolute
owner of such Bond, free of any equity, set-off or counterclaim on the part of the Issuer against the
original or any intermediate holder of such Bond for all purposes.

c¢) Refund;

If any payment for subscription of Bonds have been made, but not allotted for whatever reason, the
subscription amount to be refunded in accordance with applicable law and practice.

d) Transfer

X

The Bonds shall be in dematerialized form and shall not be tradable in the trading platforms of the
stock exchanges but may be traded in the Alternative Trading Board if it is required by BSEC as per
Consent Letter. However, transfer of Bonds may be allowed by way of,

a) giftamong the family members i.e. spouse, son, daughter, father, mother, brother and sister;
b) transfer of Bonds for execution of a court order;

¢) acquisition of Bonds in consideration of other than cash; and

d) transfer of Bonds in case of confiscation/loan default.

e) Trading or Listing with the Stock Exchange(s)

The bond shall not be listed with the Stock Exchanges(s). However, the bond may be listed in the
Alternative Trading Board only if it is required by BSEC as per Consent Letter.
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f)  Repayment and coupon payment

Strictly Private & Confidencial

Period Instalfment Installment Interest Principal Balance
Number

Principal Amount BDT 550,000,000 (Interest Rate 11.50%)

1 31,625,000 581,625,000
1st Year

2 33,443,438 615,068,438

3 35,366,435 650,434,873
2nd Year

i 37,400,005 687,834,878
3rd Year 3 80,922,173 39,550,505 41,371,667 646,463,211

6 80,922,173 37;171,635 43,750,538 602,712,673
Ath Year 7 80,922,173 34,655,979 46,266,194 556,446,479

8 80,922,173 ‘ 31,995,673 48,926,500 507,519,979
5th Year 9 80,922,173 29,182,399 51,739,774 455,780,205

10 80,922,173 26,207,362 54,714,811 401,065,394
6th Year P 80,922,173 23,061,260 57,860,912 343,204,482

12 80,922,173 19,734,258 61,187,915 282,016,567
7th Year 13 80,922,173 16,215,953 64,706,220 217,310,347

14 80,922,173 12,495,345 68,426,828 148,883,519 .

15 80,922,173 8,560,802 72,361,370 76,522,149
8th Year ,

16 80,922,173 4,400,024 76,522,149 0

4

g) Redemption or conversion or exchange

The Bond is non-convertible and has no conversion feature.

h)  Details of conversion or exchange option exercise procedures, if applicable;

N/A

Chief Exelcutive

~ -
DAammmiinii, D

Shibly mran

Officer
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Strictly Private & Confidenciai

Arranger to the Issue fees: 12,650,000
Issue Arranger 2% of the Issue Size 11,000,000
VAT against Issuc Management fee 15% of Arrangement fee 1,650,000
BSEC Fees: 560,000
Application Fec Fixed 10,000
Consent Fee " 0.10% on the offering amount 550,000
Trustee Fees 4,750,000
Trustee Fee Fixed 4,000,000
VAT on Trustec Fees 15% of Trustee fee 600,000
Trustee Application Fee Fixed 50,000
Trustee registration conscnt fee Fixed 100,000
Legal Advisor Fee ' 920,000
Legal Advisor Fee Negotiable 800,000
VAT on Legal Advisor 15% of Legal Advisor fee 120,000
Credit Rating Fee 920,000
Credit Rating Fec of the Bond NegQ:fiable 800,000
VAT on Credit Rating Fee 15% of Credit Rating fee 120,000
Misc. Fee 200,000
Total Estimated Cost 20,000,000
\ MK Footwear PLC- Page | 1
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Chief Executive Officer
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Strictly Private & Confidenciai

Not Applicable as the bond will be issued through private placement.
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To Be Added After Receiving Consent Letter
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Annexure- I

Declaration about the responsibility of the directors, including the CEO of the issuer in respect
of the information memorandum

This information memorandum has been prepared, seen and approved by us, and we, individually and
collectively, accept full responsibility for the authenticity, accuracy and adequacy of the statements
made, information given in the prospectus, documents, financial statements, exhibits, annexes, papers
submitted to the Commission in support thereof, and confirm, after making all reasonable inquiries that
all conditions concerning this public issue and prospectus have been met and that there are no other
information or documents, the omission of which make any information or statements therein
misleading for which the Commission may take any civil, criminal or administrative actions against any
or all of us as it may deem fit. We also confirm that full and fair disclosures have been made in this
information memorandum to enable the investors to make a well-informed decision for investment.

Sd/-

Noor Mohammed
Managing Director
Date: November 22, 2023

<
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Strictly Private & Confidencial

Annexure- II

Due Dili Certif fthe T

Community Bank Investment Limited

To
The Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission

Subject: Issuance of 550 Non-Convertible, Fully Redeemable & Unsecured Bond of Tk. 1,000,000
(face value) each of MK Footwear PLC.

We, the under-noted trustee to the above-mentioned forthcoming issue, state individually and
collectively as follows:

1. We, while acting as trustee to the above-mentioned issue on behalf of the investors, have examined
the draft Information Memorandum, legal and other documents and materials as relevant to our
decision; and

2. On the basis of such examination and the discussions with the issuer, its directors and officers, and
other agencies; independent verification of the statements concerning objects of the issue and the
contents of the documents and other materials furnished by the issuer

WE CONFIRM THAT:

a) all information and documents as are relevant to the issue have been received and examined
by us and the draft IM and draft deed of trust forwarded to the Commission has been approved
by us;

b) we have also examined all documents of the assets to be charged (none in the case of this
issuance in discussion) with the trust and are satisfied that the assets bear the value, title and
charge status as disclosed in the IM;

¢) while examining the above documents, we find that all the requirements of the Bangladesh
Securities and Exchange Commission (Debt Securities) Rules, 2021 have been complied with;

d) we shall actas trustee to the issue as mentioned above as per provisions of the deed of trust to
be executed with the issuer or the originator, as applicable and shall assume the duties and
responsibilities as described in the deed of trust and in the IM;

e) we shall also abide by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (Debt Securities)
Rules, 2021 and conditions imposed by the Commission as regards of the issue; and.

f) the above declarations are unequivocal and irrevocable 5

For Trustee,

Sd/-

Shibly Amran

Chief Executive Officer

Community Bank Investment Limited

MK Footwear PLC- Page lm
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1.0

ISSUE RATING RATIONALE

crisidhr@danaitd.cam

CRISL has assigned the issue rating "A-" (Indicative}, {pronounced as "single A minus”
Indicative) to "MK Footwear Non-Convertible Bond®”, The above rating has been assigned
in consideration of the inherent fundamentals of the issue that inciude an attractive
coupon rate, a trustee-administered payment mechanism for the bonds, ete. CRISL also
gives due weightage to the Issuars profife while assigning the rating as other than the
sale cammitment of the Issuer, the instrument is nat backed by any security or countar-
guarantee by any thirg party. while assigring the rating CRISL duly factored issuer’s
strength as an export oriented shoe manufactyring cempany, which encompasses a good
credit profile and mederste financial performance, geoc leverage, 9aod liquidity,
expenenced tcp management, etc. However, the above factors are sonstrained, toe some
extent, by the feature ¢f the bond which inter a1a includes the nature of the bond being ar
unsacured and nan-convertibie debt instrumeny, suborgination to depositors, and other
llahilities, absence of recourse to the trustee in managing event of default, €tc.

Rating Contact:

Mo, Shasedal isien:
shidbedhddcrio iy

Entity Rating
Loy Tenn A
(Inticanve

Bends rated in this category are adjudged to be ©f goad credit quatity and cifer adeguate
safety for timely repayment of financial otligaticns, Protecton: factors are consicerexd
Variable and more susceptibie to changes in circumstances than securities in higher-rated

rategories.
MK FOOTWEAR

coneg:;me.z Tre indicative rating means the instrument has been rated bascd on draft legs! dacuments

BOND and projections, However, after the completion of the full subscription of tne Lond and
_sinohzation of legal documertation final rating will b assigred.

{55’;’;{";{:;’,““ 2.0 ISSUE FEATURE

Hpenthet <, " e

leatrivr Shoes, MK Footwear PLC (MKFPLC), an export criented shoe manufactunng company will iss

sonasie. and other 8ord (hereinafter referred to as “Bond” or “the issue”) of Tk, 550.00 millon. MKFP wilt

iyt gadas issue the above bond through a private placement basis to patential ‘nvesters such s

o 0 » s o . . : ;
marutacturs fanks, Corporate, Financial Institutions, Mutual Funds, insurance Companies, and Hich

net worth ndividuais (HNWI) aad any other eligible investors o strengthen its capital
base, The proceeds will be used to meet the requirement of buyer compliance & working

CHAIRMAN
s, Mir Mahivza
Mohammed

MANAGING
DIRECTOR
Mr Ao
e

EQUITY
T, F8L.1Q mipe

TOTAL ASSETS

7k 2,265.28

ryilitose
i page L of 19
s e

capitai reguirement. The Bond is unsecurad, fully redzemable, and nen-canvertibie in
nature. The coupon rate is variable which Reference Rate + Coupon Margin of 2.00% p.a.
Benchmark Rate is the six months moving 3verage rate of treasury biil {SMART). The flear
rate and maximum ceiling are 9.00% p.a. and 11.50% p.a. respectively. The tenor of the
hond is 8 years {with 2 years moratorium) from the date of issuance. The principal of the
Bonc will be redesmed in 12 semi-annual instaliments starting at the enc ¢f & months
fromr drawdown date. The Band is non-convertibla and hes no prepayment and refunding:
opticn howevear it is callable at the option ¢f issuer. The Issuer shall pay a jate payment
penalty of 2% (two nercent) higher than the Coupon Rate and be payable on tha amaunt
not paid on the due date up tli the date of actual payment, Na Charges wili create over
the securities. Aipha Capital Management Limited 15 the lead arranged of this ssue and
iC8 Capital Management Limited is the trustee.

2.0 ISSUER PROFILE

MK Faotwear PLC is involved in the manufacturing of 100% export-oriented synthetic
shoes, leather shoes, sandals, and other leather gouds such &s wallets, morney bags,
isdies' handbags, etc. It was incorporated as a privete \Imited compzny or November 12,
2015, under the Companies Act, 1994 yath tne Registrar of Joint Stock Companies ent
rirms, Banglacesh vide registration ro. C-126912/2015 and was subsequently convertec

I)\-——,

£or Chief Executive Officer
Tanzirul Istam
Vice President
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into a public limited company on May 29, 2022, The commercial aperation of tha company
started on July 02, 2020. MKFPLC has been cperating under the leadership of Mr. Noor
Mohammed, a renowned business personaiity having long expesure in diversified fields of
business. The production capacity of the company is 3 million pairs per yeer. The
registered office and factory of the company are jocated at Nayonpur 3azar, Chalkpars,
Mawna, Gazipur, Bangladesh.

4.0 ESTIMATED RETURN FROM THE BOND

The investars/sabscribers are likely to get a good returp fron their investmant in the bond
of MK Feot Wear Non-Convertible Bond as the issue offers @ fioating coupon rate.

» Coupon Rate = Benchmark Rate + Cougon Margin

+ Benchmark Rate: Six months moving average rate of treasury bill ( SMART)
« Coupon Margin: 2.00% p.a.

« Coupon Flaor Rate: 9.00% p.a.

« Coupon Ceiling Rate: 11.50% p.a. at ail tmes

5.0 TRANSACTION STRUCTURE AND UTILIZATION OF BOND

MK Footwear PLC will issue a non-convertiblé unsecured fioating rate fully regeemable
Bond of Tk.550.00 million having a denomination of Tk. 1.00 million each. The bonc is a
non-convertible bond and the interest will be paid semi-annually. The final maturity of the
Bonds will be at the end of the eignth vear of the Bonds from the Issue Date. If any
Coupon Payment Date falls on a heliday including & weekend or on a cay that is not a
Business Day or a day during continuation of & Force Majeure Event, then the subsequent
trading day at the Dhaka Stock Exchange shall be the Coupon Payment Date. Tha bord s
unsecured in nature and so there will ke no enforceabls charge created cver the Secunties.

BOND REPAYMENT SCHEDULE

Bong Focevalue i $53,008,000 i N
i 11.50% e
Llerr in 8 { Ll
Instaiiment per year 2
i Number of Raymant 12
{ 34 in years i 2
““Vear T Period | Instailment Number  instaimant | Interest | _ Principal
1 ! 31,625,000
2 ! 33,443,418
3 ] .1 35.368,435
! 4 37,400,605
| s 80,022 173 | 36,550,505 | 41,371,667 | 646483211
! 1 3 80,922,173 . 37,171,635 | 43,750,538 | ©02,712,673 !
! ] 7 80,922,173 34,655,979 | 46,255,184 | 558,445,479
! g 80,322,173 | 31,995,673 | 48,526,500 | 307,519,878
1 g §0.922 173 | 29 182,363 | 51,739,724 | 455,780,205 |
! ! 10 $0,922.172 .. 26,207,362 | 54,714,811 | 401,083,394
o ! H 11 85,922,173 23,061,260 7,860,812 | 323,204,482
! I 12 80,922,173 @ 15,738.2% 1,187,915 6,567 !
| 13 85,022,173 16,215983" 34,706,225 | 217,310,347 |
T 14 3,022,173 12,495,345 | 68,326,828 | 148883319 |
5 39,922,17 5.560,602 | 72,381,370 1
P 16 80,822 175 © 4.400,G24 | 76,522,143
! Particulars i Yk. in Million
; Compliance 00,80
! Issue Cost ‘gchgg o
orking Capital N o3
rot:TlE = 550.0D | 100.00% |

page 2 of 19 % B )

For Chief Executive Off icer
Tanzirul istam
Vigs President
an information and Serviess
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6.0 ISSUER CREDIT RATING

CRISL has reassigned the Long Term rating 2t 'A-" (pronounced as A minus) rating and
‘ST-3' rating in the Short Term of MX Footwear PLC (hereinafter referred to as "MKFPLC”
or “the Company“) on the basis of its audited financiais and other relevent quantitative
and qualitative information up-to the date of the rating. The above ratings have been
assigned due to some fundamentals such as good financial performance, geod capacity
Utilization, an experienced management team, good infrastructure facilities, and good
quality centrol mechanism, etc. The abeve factors are, however, constrained to some
extent by high leverage, the risk of price fluctuation as well as scme other industry-
spacific and macroecenomic factars,

The Long Term rating indicates that entities rated in this category are adjudged to Entity
rated in this category is adjudged to offer adequate safety for timely repaymen: of
financial obligaticns. This fevel of rating indicates a corporate entity with an adequate
credit profile. Risk factors are more vansble and greater in periods of economic stress
than thase rated in the higher categories.. The Short Term rating indicates good certainty
of timely paymrent, Liquidity factors and company fungamentals are sound. Although
ongoing funding needs may enlarge total financing requirements, access to capita’
markets is good. Risk factors are smali.

v;RlSL also placed the company with a “Stable” ocutlook ir consideraticn that its
fundamentals may remain unchanged during the rating validity period.

7.0 TRUSTEE
7.1 Description of the Trustee

t2] Name of the Trustee ;| 1C8 Capital Management Uimited
(b] Paid-ug capital of the trustee | Tk, 3,206,475 000.0C
{z] Net woith of the trustes 4Tk, 8,574.022,3085.00
(4] Name of the issue(s) where 1 | » Baratadesh Fund an apen-ended Mutual Fund
performing as trustee « Coupon-taaring Non-Convertible Tisr-il
Subordinate Debt {Bond) of Standard Bank
Limitzd

72 RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE TRUSTEE:

Reliance on information
a) Advice: The Trustee may in relation to this Trust Deed act on the opinien or
advice of or a certificate or any information cbtained from any lawyer, hanker,
valuer, surveyor, broker, auctioneer, aczountant or other expert and shall not be
responsible for any Liability accasionac by sc ecting;

3} Certificate of directors or Authorised Signatories: The Trustee, in the
exercise of its functions, may ¢all for and shall be at liberty to accept a certificate
signed by two Authorsed Signatories of the Issuer or other perscn duly
authorised on their behalf as te any fact or matter prma facie within the
<nowiedge of the Issuer, as the case may be, as sufficient evidence thereof and 2
iike certificate to the effect that any particulzr dealing, transaction or step or
thing is, in the opinion of the person so certifying, ewpedient as sufficiant
avidence that it is expedient and the Trustee shall not be bound in any such case
to call for further evidence or be respomsible for any Liability that may he
occasioned by its failing so to do;

Y Resolution or direction of Bondholders: The Trustee shall not oe responsibee
for acting in good faith upon any resalution purperting ta be a Written Resoluticn
or to have beer passed at any meeting ¢f the Bondholders in respect whereaf
minutes have been made and signed or a direction of 3 specifiad percentags of
Boncholcers, even though 1t may subsequertly be foung that there was some
cefect in the constitution of the meeting or the passing of the resolution or the
making of the directions or that for any reason the resolution purparting ¢ be a
Written Resclution or to have been passed at any Mecting or the making of the

diracticns was not vaiid or binding upon the Bonchoiders;
h_%k_

£or Chief Exacutive Officer
Tanzirul islam
wire Procidnant
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Bondholders as a class: in connection with the exercise by it of any of its
trusts, powers, authorities and discretions (inciuding without limitatiori any
modification, waiver, authorisatior or determination}, the Trustee shali have
regard tc the general interests of the Bondnoldars as a class (but shall not have
regard to any interests arising from. circumstances particular to ndividual
Bondhalders whatever their number and in particular, but without lim:tation, shall
not have regard to the conssquences of the exercise of its trusts, powers,
authorities and discretions for Individual Bordholders (whatever thair nursber)
resuiting frem their heing for any purpose domiciled or rasident in, or otherwise
connected with, or subject to the jurisdiction of, any particular territory or any
political sub-division thereof and the Trustee shall not be entitled to reguire, nar
shall any Bondholder be entitled to claim, from the Issuer, the Trustee or any
other person any indemnification or payment in respect of any tax conseguences
of any such exercise upon individual Bendholders;
No obligation to monitor: The Trustee shall not De under any obiigation o
monitor or supervise the functions of any other person under the 3onds or any
other agreement or document relating te the transactions herein or therein
contemplated and shall be entitled, in the absence of actual knowledge of a
breach of ubligation, to assume that each such person is properly performing and
complying with its obligations;
Bonds heid by the Issuer: In the absence of actual xnowledge or express
notice to the contrary, the Trustes may assume without enquiry (other then
requesting a certificate of the Issuer under sub-clause 6.1.1 (Bands neid by
issuer and Affiliates)), ther no Bonds are for the time being hele by or for the
benefit of the Issuer or any of its Affiliates;
Events of Default: The Trustee shall not be bound te give notice 1o any person
of the executior: of this Trust Deed or to take any steos to ascertain whether any
Default or Event of Defaclt has happened and, unt:l it shall tave actual knowledge
or express notice te the contrary, the Trustee shall be entitled te assume thet no
such Default or Event of Defauit has happened and that the Issuer is observing
and performing 3ll the obligations on its part contained in the Bonds and the Bend
Documents and ro event has happened as a consequence of which any of the
Bonds may become repayatie;
Right te deduct or withhold for taxes; Notwithstanding anything contzinac in
this Trust Deed, to the extent required by any applicable law, but without
prejudice to Condition VII of Part B (Taxation), if the Trustee is or will te
required to make ary deguction or withheiding from any distrioution or payment
made by it hereunder or if the Trustee is or will be otherwise charged tc, or is or
may become liable to, tax as a3 consequence of performing its duties hereunder
whether as principal, agent or otherwise, and whether Dy reascn of any
assessment, prospective assessment or cther gnposition of liability ta taxation of
whatsoever nature and whensoever made dpon the Trustee, and whether in
connection with or arising from any sums received or distributed by it or to which
it may be entitled under this Trusz Deed {other than in gonnaction with its
remuneration as provided for herein or any other amounts for its own account) or
any investments or deposits fram time to time representing the same, including
any income or gains arising therefrom or any action ‘of the Trustee in connection
with the truste of this Trust Deed (cther than the remuneration herein specified or
any other amounts for its own account) or atherwise, then the Trustea shall be
entitied to make such prover deduction or withhoiding to the extent required by
any applicable law or; as the case may be, to ratain out of sums recejved by it ar
amaunt sufficient to discharge any liability to tax (as required by any appticable
faw) which reiates to sums s¢ receivec or distributed or te cischarge any such
cther liability of the Trustee to tax {as required by any appiicable aw) from any
funds that may from time to time be heid by the Trustee upon the trusts of thig
Trust Deed;
No responsibility to investigate: The Trustee shall nct have any responsibility
for or have any duty to investigate except under any applicable laws or
regulations:

(i) the exzscution, defivery, legality, validity, effectivencss, adequacly,

genuineness, enforceability or admissibiity in evidence of any Boha

——

Tor Chief Execttive Offices
Tanzirul isiam?
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Document;

(i) any recitals, statements, warranties, representations or covenants of any
party to sny Bond Dacument;

(i) s ability to exercise the rights, trusts, powers, authonities or discretions
purported to be conferred on it by any of the 8ond Documenis; or

(iv} the capacities, powers or credit standing of the Issuer ar other party to
any of the Bond Documents;

i Error of judgment: The Trustee shali not be lizble for any error of judgment
made In good faith by any officer ar employes of the Trustee assigned by the
Trustee to administer its corporate trust matters;

Kl No responsibility for loss: The Trustee shall not in any circumstances, exsept
under any applicabte faws or regulaticns:

(i)  be liable to account to any Bendholder or any other persen for anything
except sums actuaily received by tae Trustee which have not been
distributed o paid to the persens entitled or at the time of payment
believed by the Trustee to be entitied thereto, or

(i) be liable to any Bordhoider or any other person for any Costs, charges,
losses, damages, liabilities or expenses arising from or connected with
any act, default, omission or misconduct of the Trustee, any Appointee
or their respective officers, employees or agents in relation to the Bond
Documents except tc the extent that they shall have been finally
judicially determined to have been caused by tae Trustee’s own gross
negligence, wilfu? default er fraud.

i) Force Majeure: The Trustee shall not be liable for any failure or deizv in the
performance of its obligations under this Trust Deed or any ather Bond Document
because of circumstances beycnd such Trustee's control, including, withou:
limitation, acts of God, fload, war (whether declared or undeciared), terrorism,
firg, riot, embargo, lsbour cisputes, any laws, ardinances, regulations or the fike
which restrict ar prohibit the performance of the obligations contempiated by this
Trust Deed or any other Bond Document, inability to obtain or the failure of
equipment, or interruption of communications or computer facilit'es, and other
causes beyond such Trustee's contret whather ar rot of the same class or kind as
specificaily named above. However, the Trustee shaii use commeycially
reasorable efforts consistent with accapted practice in its induswy to r2surme
performance as soon as practiable under the circumstances.

m) fmmunities: The Trustee's immunities and protections from fability and its right
to indemnification in connection with the parformance of its duties under this
Trust Deed shall extend to the Trustee's officers, directors and employees, Such
immunities and protections and right o indemnification, together with the
Trustee's right to compensation, shall survive the Trustee's resignation or
reamoval, the defeasance or discharge of this Trust Deed and final paymant of the
Bonds but in any event will be subject to any gross negligence, wiltful defauit or
fraud of which the Trustee or its officers, directors or employees may be guilty
ralation to their duties under this Trust Deed. The Issuer acknowiscges that in
any proceedings taken In relation to this Trust Deed, it will not be entitled ¢
claim for itself or any of its assets immunity from suit, executicn, attachment or

other legal process,

2.3 Trustee’s powers and duties: .

a) Trustee's determination: The Trustee may determine whether or nol @ defalt

in the performance ¢r cbservance by. the Issuer of any cbligation under the

provisians of any Bord Dacument or contained in the Bends s capable of remedy

and/or materially prejudicial to the interests of the Bondnolders and if the Trustee

cortifies that any such default is, in its opinion, not capabie of remedy and/or

materially prejudicial to the Interests of the Bondholders, such certificate shell be

conclusive and binging upon the Issuer and the Bondholders provided however

that the Trustee may not exercise any powers conferrac upon it by this Clause

10.2.1 unless the Trustee having given nct less rhan 10 Business Days' notice of

such preposed detzrmination o the Bancholders in accordance with the

o Conditions, it has not, within 30 days of such notice being received by the
| Pages of 13 Bendholcars or a shorter period 35 may be agreed by the soncholders in writing

For Chief Exscutive Officer
Tanzirul isiam
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been directed by an Extraordinary Rasolution or Written Resolution instructing the
Trustee as to the determination which shali be made;

b} Determination of questions: the Trustee as between itse!f and the Bondholders
shall have full power to determine ali questiors and dcubts arising in relatien to
any of the provisions of this Trust Deed which relates to matters that are SBond
Specific Matters and every such determination, whether made upon a guestien
actuaily raised or implled in the acts or procesdings of the Trustee, shall be
conciusive and shall bind the Trustee and the Bondholders provided however that
the Trustee may not exercise any powers conferred upan it by this Clause 1C.2.2
unless the Trustee having given not less than 10 Business Days' notice of such
proposed determination to the Bondholders in accordance with the Conditions, it
has not, within 30 days f such notice being received by the Bordheciders or &
shorter period as may be agreed by the Bondhoiders in writing, been directed by
an Excraordinary Resolution or Written Resolution instructing the Trustee as to
the determination which shall be made;

c) Trustee's discretion: the Trustee shail (save as expressly otherwise proviced
nerein) as regards all the trusts, powers, authorities and discretions vested In it
by this Trust Ceed or by operaticn of law, have ebsolute anc¢ uncantroiied
discreticn as to the exercise or non-exercise thereof and the Trustes shall not be
responsibie for any Liability that may result from the exercise or non-exercise
thereof but whenever the Trustze is under the provisions of this Trust Deed
bound to act at the request or direction of the Bondholders, the Trustee shall
nevertheless not be so bound unless first indemnified and/or provigec with
security to its satisfaction against alt actions, proceedings, claims and demanas ¢
which it may render itself fiable and all costs, charges, damages, expenses and
lizbilities which it may incur by so doing provided however that the Trustee may
not exercise any discretion conferred ugon it by this Clause 10.2.3 unless the
Trustee having given not less than 10 Business Days' rotice of such exercise of
discretion to the Bondholders in accordance with the Conditions, it has not, within
30 days of such notice being received by the Bondholders ar a shorter peried as
mav be agreed by the Bondhalders in writing, been directed by an Extraordinary
Resolution or Written Resolution instructing the Trustee as to how such discretion
shall be exercised;

d} Trustee's consent: any consent given by the Trustee for the purposes of this
Trust Deed may be given on such terms and subject to such conditions {f any) as
the Trustee may require;

e) Application of proceeds: the Trustee shall not be responsible for the receipt or
application by the Issuer of the praceeds of the jssue of the Bonds or the delivery
of any Bond Certificate to the persons entitled to it;

f) Agents: the Trustee may, in the cenduct of the trusts of this Tiust Deed, with the
prior consent in writing of the Issuer, instead of acting persenally, emplay and
pay an agent on any terms, whether or nat a lawyer or other professional person,
to transact or conduct, Or cONCur in transacung or conducting, any dusiness and
to do or corcur in deing al acts required ta be cone by the Trustee, as the case
may {inciuding the receipt and payment of money) and, provided the Trustee
shall have exercised reasonable care in the selection of any such agent, the
Trustee shall not be responsible for any Liabifities ingurced by reason of the
misconduct, omission or default on the part of any persac appointed by it
hereunder or be bound to supervise the proceedings or 2cts of any such person:

g) Delegation: the Trustee may, with the pricr consent in writing of the lssuer, in
the execution and exercise of ali or any of the trusts, powers, autharities and
discretions vested in it by this Trust Deed, act by responisible officers or a
responsible officer for the lime being of the Trustee and the Trustee may also
whenever it thinks 5t, whether Dy power of attorney or atherw:se, delegate to any
perscn or persens or fluctuating pody of persons {whether peing a jont trustee of
this Trust Deed ¢r not) alt ar any of the trusts, powers, authorities and discret:ions
vested in it by this Trust Deed and any such delegation may be made upon Such
terms and conditions and subject to such regulations (including power to
sub-delecate with the consent of the Trustee) as the Trustee may think fit in the

. interests of the Bondholders and, provided the Trustee shall have exercisec
reasonable care 1n the selection of any such Appointee and the Trustee shall not
For Chief Executive Officer

Tanzirul islam
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be bound to supervise the preceedings or acts of gnd shali not in any way or to
any extent be respensible for any Liabilities Incurred by  reason of the
misconduct, amissicn or default on the part of such delegate or sub-delegate;

h) Custodians and nominees: the Trustee may appoint and pay any persen to act
as o custodian or nominee on any terms in relation to such assets of the trust as
the Trustee may determing, inciuding for the purpese of depositing with a
custodian this Trust Deed or any document relating to the trust created
heraunder and, provided the Trustee shajl have exercised rezsonadle care 0 the
selection of any such Appointee, the Trustes shall not be respons:ble for any ioss,
liability, expense, gemand, cost, claitm or praceedings incurred by reason of the
misconduct, omission or default on the part of any person aopointed by it
hereunder or be bound to supervise the proceedings or acts of any such persor;
and

i) Confidential information: the Trustee shall not (unless reguired by ‘aw o
ordered s¢ to do by a court of competent jurisdiction) be required to cisclose g
any Bondholder any confidentizl information {financial or ctherwise) made
availabie to the Trustee by the Issuer or any other person in connection with this
Trust Deed and nc Bondholder shall he entitled to take eny action to obtain from
the Trustee any such information. The Trustze shall forward to the Bondholders
any non-confidential information made available to the Trustee by the Issuer in
connection with this Trust Deed.

7.4  Financial matters: ]

a) Professional charges: any trustee being @ banker, lawyer, broker ar other
person engaged in any profession or business shall be entitlec to charge and be
paid all usual professional ang other charges for business transacted and acis
done by him or his partner or firm on matters arising in connection with the trusts
of this Trust Deed and also his incurred charges in addition te disbursements for
ail other work and business done and ail time spent by nim or his partner or firm
on matters arising in connection with this Trust Desd, including’ matters wh:ch
might or should have been attended to in person by a trustee rot being a banker,
tawyer, broker or other professional person;

I3} Expenditure by the Trustee: ncthing centained in this Trust Deed shall require
the Trustee to expend or risk lts own funds or otherwise Incur any *financisl
liability in the performance of its duties or the exercise of any right, power,
authority or discretion hereunder i it has grounds for belisving the repayment of
such funds or adequate indemnity against, or security for, such risk or liability is
not assured 0 ity and )

<) Trustee may enter into financial transactions with the Issuer: nc Trustee
and no director or officer of any corporation being a Trustee hereof shaii by
reason of the fiduciary position of such Trustee be in any way precluded from
making any cortracts or entering into any transactions in the ordinary course of
husiness ("Other Business™} with the Issuer, or any person or body corporate
diractly or indirectly associated with the Issuer, or from accegting the trustee
of any other debenture stock, debentures or securtties of the Issuer or any person
or body corporate directly or indirectly associated with the Issuer, and the
Trustee and aay such directer or officer shall not be azcountable to the
Bondholders or the lssuer or any person or body corporate directly or indirectly
associated with the Issuer, for any prefit, feas, commissions, interast, discuunts
or share of brokerage earned, arising’ or resulting frow eny such contracts cr
fransactions and the Trustee and any such director or officer shall also be &t
tiberty to retain the same for its or his own senefit. Notwithstanding the role of
the Trustee under this Trust Deed, the Trustee and its affiliates shall not be
areciuded from entering Into any contracts or any transactions with thid pacties
whose interests may confiict with those of tne Bondhoiders, The Trustee and its
affliates shall not se cobliged to disclose tc zry Bondholder the existertc or
details of any such contract or transaction {actual ar proposed) or any such Other
Business or any information or documentation relating or received pursuart
therete (including, without fimitation, any and all non-pubiic infermaton}.
Pursuznt to such contracts or transactions (actual or proposed) or ahy such Cther
Business, the Trustee or its affilistes may be or coma {0 be in possession of
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material information not krown to the Bondholders and the Trustee and its
affiliates shall not have any liability with respect to any ron-disclosure of, or
possession of, such infermation.

Exercise of Discretion
Notwithstanding anything in this Trust Deed to the contrary, the Trustee shall not
be obliged to exercise or consider exercising any discreticn or consider making cr
make any determination {inciuding, without fimitation, any determination as {o §
whether any fact or circumstance or activity or thing ts materiai or substantial or
complies with some such similar guantitative standard) or to consider taking or
sake any acticn whatscever in connectior: with or under or pursuant to the Sends
unless directed to do s0 by the halders of not iess than 66.2/3 per cent, in
principal armount. of the Bonds then outstanding or if so directed by en
Extraordinary Resoiution,
The Trustee will not be respensible for any 'oss, expanse, darage, claim, Cost,
charge or liability which may be suffered as a result of any exerc:se or non-
exercise of a discretion or the making or faiiure to make any determinaticn or the
raking or failure to take any action by the Trustee, acting on the directions ¢f the
Bondholders as afcresaid or pending the provision of such a direction.
A certlficate delivere¢ in comgiiance with Clause 10.1.2 of twe Authorised
Signatories of the Issuer or other person dulv authorised an their behalf as to the
compliance by the Issuer with any of their respective obligaticns contained in the
Conditicns or this Trust Deed shall be conclusive and bindirg on the Issuer, the
Trustee ang the Bondholders save in the case cf manifest error, but without
prejudice to the provisicns of this deed.
The Trustes shail have np respansibility for requesting such cerlificates unless the
Issuer has falied to deliver such certificates in accordance with Clause 10 (Terms
of Appointment) or the Trustee is requested to do s0 by a&ny Bondholder. The
Trustee shall be entitied to reiy on such certificates absolutely and shail not be
obiiged to enquire further as regards the circumstances then existing ang whether
they justify the provision and the content of such certificate and will not be
responsibie for any loss occasioned by SO acting. The Trustee shall be entitied to
rely or any such cectificates 23s sufficient evidence by the Issuer of such
compliance  {or non-compliance} and wiil not be responsible for or for
investigating any matter relating to +he financiai condition of cr any other matter
refating to the Issuer.

MARXET ASPECT OF THE ISSUING BOND

The Bangiadesh bond market I1s seili in its infancy. One of the man functions of a bond
market is to provide long-tarm finance by creasing alternative sources of finance through
the capital market, From the investor's point of view, the main purpose of the bond market

is to

provide a stable source of income to the investors against the, volatile capital market,

Tne Bangiadesh capital market is yet to ke developed as the required platform ‘o croute

such

a bond market is absent, Besides, investors are more interested n shert-tarm gains

instead of waiting far a stable return. As per the Global Infrastructure Hub report,
Bangladesh needs $608 biltion of investment in infrastructure sectors - water, electriaty,
telecom, ports, airports, rail, and road - from 2016 to 2040. Howaver, current reéncs
indicate $417 billion of investment is possible in the aforementioned sacters, thereby
jeaving a gap of §192 biilion in investments in the period 2016-2040, This cap ir: the top »
three sectors, power, telecom, and water sectors, i $100 billan, 441 billion, and $40
billien respectively. These projects are mostly financed through the government's own |
funds ard muitilaterzl ard bilateral funding agencies. But if the government can deveiop a
f-amework for meet:ing the funding Jap of those projects by issuing lang-term
infrastructure bonds, a new asset class can be created, This might aisc attract foreign “ 4
portfolio investments that specialize in infrastructure finances. With a pronuse tc be @
developed nation by 2040, Bangladesh has undertaken many infrastructure projects like
Pacma Multipurpose Bridye, Padma Bridge Rail Link, ART Line- 1 & 6. Reoppur Nuclear
Powsr Plant Matarban Coal Fired Pawer Project,\and so on. To maintain stability in the
croncmy and to implement various projects, it is important to easure the presence of both

long

{

and short-term sources of funds. Hence, it i1s quite understandable that Banglacdesh
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neads a vibrant bond market immediately to meet its huge financing requ.rament for
infrastructure development and further industrialization. Locking into the Banglacesh Bond
Market, we can see that it is @ small market and it is highly deminated by governmeant debt
securities and capitai bonds issued by Banks and Non-bank Financial Instituticns (FI).

Banks and FIs issue capital bonds to meet the regulatory requirement and to strengthen, .
their capital base. Corporate aiso issue the 2C5 or Coupon Bearing Bond buf tre’.
percentage is still very low. The Bangiadesh Securities and Exchange Commission (Debt "+ .
Securities) Rules-202a" has been issued on March 31, 2021, which came into force withe .
immediate effect. The rules will apply to the issuance of all types of dent securitizs, Sukuk,
asset-backed securities, and others through public issues or private cffers as deciced by
the commissior from time to time. The issue snall be rated by a Credit Rating Company
and must carry a rating not below the minimum investment grade of triple "3BB" or
equivalent rating in the long term and "ST-3" ar equivalent rating in the short term.

Fortunataly, the situstion is getting better as time passes with the proactive and
colisborative approach of reguistors and related stakeholcers. Very recently the country’s
first Shariah-compliant bond, the Bangtadesh Government Islamic Investment (Sukukl,
has drawn over eight times applications From investors in the final phase of the avcton.
The fund was raised for the impiementation of the gavernment's safe water suppiy project
f6r the whole country, The oversubscription ciearly shows the interest and curiosity of the
stakeholders toward this new financial instrument. The Bangladesh band market has been
inactive over the years an account of several issues that have acted as barriers for issuers
and investors alike. From the issuer's point of view, the cost of issuance of bends in
Bangladesh is significantly high (1.5% -2% of the total issuance value a&s compared to
approximately 0.2% cost of issuance of fronds in India}. Besides, there is &n absence af
tex penefits or other incentives for the ssuers to raise funds via the issuance of debt
sacurities. Accerding to The Income Tax Ordinarce 1984, any income derived from zero-
coupor: bonds by a person other than a bank, an insurance company, or 3 financial
institution: is exempted from tax. The# tax tenefit is only applicable if the zero-coupen bond
{if issued by banks, financial institutions, and other companies) is approved by RSEC or
Bangladesh Benk. The regulators lack the necessary infrastructure to perform due
diligence on the application received from the issuers. As a result, it takes six months to
une year for the issuer to issue bonds, This acts as & major barrier for a project developer
who wants to raise funds via the bond market w3 short time. Due to the lack of
availability of long-term financing options, the project developers either avail funds
through bridge financing or avail long-term financing *from NBFIs and banks at higher
interest rates which substantially increases the averall project cost. The long-term dett
market has witnessed a lack of participation from institutional investors as wail as
|ndividua; investors. The modernization of the footwear industry though tock piace in the
jate 1980s; its inception is in the colenial era. During the British period, there was na
footwear manufacturing company producing on 2 mass scale in West ‘Bengal. After the
partition of Bengal in 1947, the foctwear requirement of the then East Pakistan was beirg
et by import from West Pakistan. Bata acted as the pioneer in establishing the footwear
industry by starting its menufacturing plant In 19862, In 1967 another company was
established, named Eastern Progressive Shce Industrias {EPSI}, to manufacture footwear
and also tc explore the opportunity of exporting the footwear te the USSR,
Czachoslovakia, and England. At present, there are severai footweasr manufacturers
producing quaity footwear and alsc contributing to our foreign currency egrnings, The
major players are Bate, Aoex, Adelchi Footwear, Jennys Footwear, Laimai Shoes ard
Leather Export, Excelsior Shoes, Paragon Leather and Footwear Industries, etc. As @
pioneer, Bata enjoys a wide range cf distribution networks in rural and urban areas, $So, it
is quite chailenging for any other company to reach that lavel. However, the country has
aiready been exporting finishec and different’ types of leather procucts fc ovarseas
markats. The reason for high globa! demand is due to the availability of high-quality rinv
and finished materials and low-cost tabor. The availability of lew-caost labor is prompting
top menufacturers @nd investars from a few countries to relacate thow factories
Bangladesh. Three large investors in the foctwear sector from Taiwan are o Str up
footwear factories in the Dhaka and Chittagong Experting Processing Zenes, The buyers
from the EU, a5 well as other very highly developed :ndustrial nations like Japan, have
reportecly been showing more interest in Bangladeshi leather products. All these
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developments loak promising for the iocal footwear industry. The main countries of export
for footwear are Japan, Germany, USA, [taly, France, Sgair, Belgium, Austria, Switzerlard,
Czech Republic, Hollard, Oenmark, Finlond, UK, Canada, Cubai, Kuwai, Estonia,
Singapore, Hong Kong, etc.

Due to enormous competition for the existence of & good number of similar market players
and higher barriers to entry in 2 simifer hae of business, the companies find it difficult to
set the price on their terms. Peer group pressure ard the market nature also limit the
profit margin of this industry. Supply and demand shoutd fix the prices and each diayer
must resoend to the ruies set by market mechanisms for healthy competition. Rivairy
among existing companies HIGH: The industry is highly competitive with a good number of
players including some leading industrial groups. The threat of new entrants MODERATE:
There is a high technical or cost parrier to entering the industry. The number of customers
and the marker size is ailuring new entranis. Power of suppliers MODERATE: The raw
raterial is available in specific seasons and areas. Geod quaiity rew materials suppliers
charge high prices because cf high demanc. Power of buyars MODERATE: The buyer's
switching cost is very fow, Brand loyalty is strang in the industry. The threat of supstitute
products HIGH: There is a very gocd chance of 2 substitute product.

5.0 ISSUER OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE

The Board of the Company is promoted by the members whn have been playing a
significant role in the fine standing of the Company having substantial expenence in the
rafated sector. The company is managed and controlled under the umbrella of common
contral mechanism being guided and supervised by the Managing Director. It aiso follows
a good management practice, which s headed by the Chairman- Ms. Mir Mahfuza
Mohammed followed by the Managing Direcior- Mr. Near Mohammed, and other individual
Directors and Shareholders. i

[ Shareholding of MK Footwear PLC 85 Jun?,zon
No. of Shares Vatue of Shares

eartich o (in mitlion
_Sponsors & Directers 24.47

digcement Sharcholder 13.3%

Institute 3.28 £, 2%%
[ Gerzal budtc . . 6.72 IR N 18.055%

Totat 47.85 478.48 100,00% |

The Managing Director and Chief Executive cfficer to control and supervise the entre vikai
functions and day-to-day operational activities by using 3 panoramic view ensuring
consistency. As of 20 June 2023 the total Authorized Capital of the Tompany was Tk.
1.600.0 million and Paid-up Capital was Tk. 478.47 miilion divided int2 47.847 million
orginary shares of Tk. 10.0 each. The Company has been strengthening its tes-hold in the
marketplace supported by the dynamic leadership of the top management. The Board
deais with the policy issues, business philosophy, and operating guidelines far the
management in achieving its desired targets. CRISL views that the keen attachment of the
sponsors with businesses being commensurate with their long expasurd vitlt make taem
25l te take strategic decisions by saking take caicuiated risks necessary for business

growth.
_ Sharehoiding Position of Sponsars and Directors of MKFPLC as o 30 June 2023
Si. | Name & esignation | Mo of Shares
Mz, Mic Mahfuza Mohanimed Chairman 3,000,000
“Mr_Noor Mohammed t Managing Dirgciar ¥ 17,367,280
Ne, Md. Aciertzzaman Director . 2,100,000
by F, M. dzsan Mabfuz Russa: Director 1,500,000
. Kazi Rejaul Kablr_ Shareholder I 560,000
Ms. Fargh Zaman Stareholder 1,800,700
Deal N Deliver Shareholder 1,850,000
Mr. Sitat Abmed Chaudhiur! Shareholder 0QQ, 000
Hayat Trade Internatioral Sharehotder 1,750,300
W5, Algm Ererpise | Snareholder L )E;G.\;gg I8
i " £ 10 NS Info Equity Lirmie Sharehotder 1,600,
| Page 10.of UJ Ms, Nupur Zaran | Shareholder 1:800,500

5 :
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137 T Mr. Mir Shoureen Shams Shareholder : 1,800.000
14| Mr. Mohammed TehiculIslam | Shareholder ¢, 900
15| Mr. Md. Masud Rana Shareholder, C 200
16 1 Mr, Sarwac Hussai) nareholder 230,300
Total 37,847,200

10.0 ISSUER OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT

10.1 Corporate Management

The Managing Director is supported by a poci of senior profess:onals having reascnable
experience in reiated fields, The management of the company maintams a hierarchy from
Department Heads to bottom-line management personnel with & top-down approach to
the management process. For smooth business operations, total management tasks are
segregated inte different cepartmants ACCOUNLS and Finance, Marketing, Administration &
MR, Commerciat, ew. The management has delegated sufficient financial and
administrative powers to different segments of management.

Corparate Management of MKEPLE i
Name Designation i
|_Mr, Noor Mohammed ‘| Managing Directs”
Mr. F M Hasan Mahfuz CEQ
“Mr. Mohammed Tohidul Jslam | Company Sseretary i
Mr. Mahabubu: Alam CFQ
| Mr. Sulal Ahmed Serior Manager, Commerncial
Mr, Abu Hannan Biswas Seniar Manzger, Commercial
Mr. Xazi Sanaul Arefin__ Manager, HR & Compliance
Mr. Md. Masud Rana_ Manager, Firance
Mr. Md. Tazul Islam Manager, ALcounts o s

10.2 Human Resources Policy

The overall HR policy of the company fas been found moderate. MKFPLC has been
fellowing @ structured compensation package or formal service rule for human resources
with detailed job responsibilities and other joo-relsted policies. Mareover, the company
has @ guideline for recruitment, increment, promaotian, and provident fund policies for the
employees. It also provides two estival bonuses per year, free medical facilities, quarter
sacilities for factory staff, etc. The total human rosource base stood at around 1,326
people including office staff. All the emplcyees rece:ve salary/wages In excess of Tk, 8,200
per manth. Though foctwear manufacturing requires capital jnvestment, manual process is
also an integral part of manufscturing. For this purpose the Company provides vanous
training and workshops for its workers and employees to increase their efficiency and
productivity, The management continuously exerts its afforts to improve the procuction
process and human development by conducting various R&D and on-the-jot training
programs. Keeping this in view, coordination among the departments hy reviewing e
porformance in every step of pperation improves efficiency by ensuring timely dalivary
according to the custcmer's demands. The practices of the internal cantrol system along
with the easy and quick flow of .information- assist the management in effoctively
monitoring the ovarall activities. CRISL expects with the heip of experienced managemens,
emnloyees, and logistic support, it will achieve the qosl of operational performance and
meet its financial cbligation in this future which mitigates the relationship risk to some

extent.

Worker Efficiency (%) of MKFPLC
{ particulars ] FY2022-23 FY2021-22
| Wastage (%) 3% 4%
| Leather = . 25% | .. 25%
{ Nen Leather 10% 10%
[Machine Efficiency (%) 3 39.64% 76%

:: v 2
Page 11 0¢ 18 ] |
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10.3 Management Information System (MiS)

The Management Information System of MKEPLC is moderate. There is a computerized
information system in MKFPLC for inventory menagement, financial transactions and other
operations. Moreover, it tracks its receivables on monthly basis with periodic aging
schedule to balance its working capital requirement, cash floys and revenue cellabaration,
The practices of the internal control system along with the ecasy and quick flow of
information- assist the management in effectively menitanng the overail activities.

11.0 ISSUER BUSINESS ANALYSIS

& 3% 4 Infrastructure and Production Facilities
MK Footwear PLC has established its factory compeund in Chalkpara, Mauna, Sreepur,
Gazipur, occupying around 350.38 decimals of land. The business has proximity
advantages due to its prime location being well connected to a2 major transportaticn
network. The site enjoys all facilities like electricity lines, road cemmunication, etc. The
factory cperates in a 3 storied bulidings including warehouse, generator room & electric
substation, and office building, There is a bonded warehouse having 20,000 sfr of space.

Goed

infrastructure Technology remains an important factor in maintaining a competitive position in the

focilities husiness, The machinery setup of the factory is mixed-aged on account of starting of
commercial operation few years back. MKFPLC has set up the modern and sophisticated
brand-new machinery imported from Chine, and Taiwan. Some notable machinery is
Injection Machine, Double Cutter Boat, Upper Hammering Machine, Upper Steaming
Soften Machine, Soie Marking Machine, Painting Booth Machine, Fully Pneumatic Heel
Nailing Machine, Hydraulic Heel Lasting Machine, Single Needie Sewing Machine, Edoe
rimming Machine, Strong Force Glue Apply Machine Rolls, etc. Alengside the huge capital
investment, the expenditure of the utility and energy costs plays @ significant role in
determining operational efficiency. The factory operation 55 powered by 3 local REE linz
having 1,000 KW capacity, and alternative power back up ensured through 02 Diesel run
Gorerators with a capacity of 100G KVA, 250 KVA, and 50 KVA respectively. Arcund 3%
of electricity 5 supplied by solar energy.

The procuction process layout is flexible and strategicaily integrated which is set by ti'2
top management based on the market demand and order in band. In addition, il is
impcrtant to note that a npegative correlation was aiso scrutinized between revenus and
guantity per unit, which indicates thet a reguiar price hike has reduced the earnings
growth.

11.2 Procurement Process

The upstream value chain is envisaged by the exposure of frequent put price fluctuation
by seesonality aiang with nefficient ‘nventory: management, which generates the major
raw material-related risks. The requisition of raw-material is reviewed and procured from
several sources according to the buyer's orders by the respective responisible officers in
the particular departments. The main raw materials are leather, synthezic leather, EVA
resin, PVC resin as well as wet blue (tanned gather) and other materials, There Is some
suppliers’ concentration risks &s the majority percentage of raw materiais are collected
from few Chinase suppliers, So, foralgn currency fluctuation due tc local currency
devaluation and price hike In international market mey affect its cost structure anc
profitability to some extent. Margover, government policy and duty structure affect its
nusiness. The critical success factor will be ta keep the customers satisfied by virtue of
timely delivery. The downstream value chain results in increased customer lines raduaily.
The Company mostly caters to Ferrc. Footwear 3V, (the Netherlands) which consumes
around 80% of the total export creating some customer concentration risk. Cther
customers are from Hong Kong, Germarty, Taiwan 2tc.

11.3 Production Process
Tne company produces synthetic shoes, jeather shoes, sandals;, and other ieather geods

1 pace 12 of 19 such as wallets, money bags, ladies handbags, etz. Thare are fve sceps involved in the
fge eV manufacturing process such as upper cutting section; closing/stitching section, and lasting
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section. Bottoming section and finishing section.

11.4 Quality Control
The quality concentration by strong monitering haips to keep the conficence of the
ooty customers, Recurring sales with continuous rearder eventuaily support the sound quality
oonrer control mechanism af the Company. MKFPLC has established monitoring and measurement
measurement processes to meet the requirements of custemers. it has several contral checkpoints to
assure the quality of the products starting from raw materials to finished goods. 1t also
attemnpts to maintain scheduled inspection by assign.ng troops in every production phase
for -ensuring desired product quality. All raw materials undergo quality inspection dunng
receipt. Outsourcad material production facilities are also subject to quality audis, Recerds
of all inspections are maintained as per the procecure for control of quslity including those
given urgent permissions. No product is ailowed into the finished goods area unti! fnai
inspection and ciesrance. Records of inspection ana testing are maintained for all steps.
Storage of the products is done in a way tc ensure full quality retenticn. Foliowing s strong
monitaring system, the fiows of daily production, and the guality maintaining risk, revea.
the management phitosophy regarding customer satisfacticn. Going forward, expansion of
czpacity with upgraded equipment and recruiting experienced end gualified prefessicnal
employees mitigates the quality-related risks by increasing productivity ‘evels leading to
low operating costs as well as deriving sure scale benefits.

11.5 Marketing Strategy and Target Customers

The export market for leather shoes has very gocd prospects. But ta get @ good market
skare; the sponsors wili have to adopt requisite marketing strategies in respect of preduct
quality, product pricing, product promoticn, and distribution. MKFPLC has taken
appropriate marketing stretegies regarding product quallty, pricing, promoton, and
distribution to attract the market.

12.0 ISSUER PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

12.1 Production Efficiency

MKFPLC has 2 good production capacity te meer the order from buyers. Although the
capacity roay vary dug to changes in factory layout depending on the tertiary product mix.
CRISL ebserved declined capacity utilization- on account of gioba! and domestic economic
meltcown and declined demand from the customers. The Compeny deduces to bounce
back in the upcoming years as the management is expecting to ‘take some quick strategic
decisions raveaiing substantiai operational efficiency. Presently the company is preducing
12,00C pairs of synthetic shoes and 6,00C pairs of leather shoes par day.

pons Tl Production Defails of MK Footwear PLC (in Pair)
3 | Production Capacity/ Year FY2022-23

Synthetic Shoes 1,800,000 @ !
Leather Shoes 1,200,080 1,200,000 |
Total 3,000,000 3,000,000 |
Actual Praduction/ Year
Synthetic Shoes 503,182 . BR2317% |

|_Leather Shoes 590,592 1,233,284
Total 1,093,874 2,055,440
Capacity Utifization {%) 26,96% 68.51%

viith this note, the recorded operating parameters and scaie of operation are reflected n
the sales growth and fmancial strength, suggesting further growth oppertunities by
maximizing the existing capacity. CRISL, however, observes that wrrespeactive of the rated

capacity, there is a prospect of further growth opportunity beth in guantity sold as wetl as

revenue,

12.2 Analytical F,.ramework )

As 3 measure of theguantitasive analysis, CRISU's rating spotlichts the assessmant of the
Y 13 of 19 Compary's policies @arding operating strategies, eccnomic gqaf:s, ar_hd financiai iever;gz
_Page 130719 | 5rgats. The susta nBIity of these credit protection measures is evaluated over a pericd

e

bt ol For Chief Executive Officer
T ! Tanzirul Istam

Vira Draciciant

Shibly Amrén
Chief Executive Officer
G,

Community Bank Inve




Strictly Private & Confidenciui

ﬁilgsm Credit Rating Information and Services Limited

_ First IS0 9001 © 2015 Centidad Cradv Rabng Company in Sanaladesh Cparavng Since "836

Seenas sooal

data 2 salioned ol .

CREDIT RATING REPORT
On
MK FOOTWEAR NON-CONVERTIBLE BOND

tc assess the growth and robustness of the company's operations and funding capability.
Hence the ability to generate cash, the policies of the profit distribution, the generation af
service debts along with sufficient return for continucus access in the fund market are
iudged where generating cash, tums out t¢ ve one of the most crucial parts. The report
has been preparad on the basis of audited financiais along with information previced by
the management of the Company. Information has been collected throuch discussian vith
the key management pecple of the company as weil as responsibie persons of the Rank:
As reported data cannot always be justifiad thoroughly by the bank account statements,
CRISL factored the industry information available with CRISL for meaningful analysis and
canciusion.,

12:3 Profitability & Earnings Stabitity

The earnings were derived from the expart of different types of shoes. Although
produces different categories of shoes; the mejor portion of sales constituted leather
products, Due te tough competition; the Company posted 2 negative growti of 35.01% i
FY2022-23 by registering 2 saies turmnover of TX. 824.68 million deckned from the préviods
year's Tk. 1,268.84 million. CRISL projects that it might netch up 2 little bit next year
based on its recent performence. Looking forward, growth prospects would not be diferent
unless any diversification in the product portfciic is strangly maneuverad. ' g

Indicators 30-Jun-23 30-Jun-22
urnaver (Tk, in Millian) B2g. 6 1,268 84
s Prafit (T In Million) 11B.2: 166,27
_Frofit After Tax (Tk. in Millige) 43,67 103,35
Cost to Revenug Retic (%o 35.68 86.89
|_Administrative Ergenss to Revenue Ratio % 1.82 1.02
Seling & Cistribution Expense to Revenug Ratic % 2.91 : C.93
Gress Profit Margin (%) 12,32 13,1
Dperating Profit Margin (%) L )
Finanze Cost to Revenu2 Raty % 8.9
| _Ner Profit Margin %) 8,14
[“Rezur on Assets ARter Tax (%) 453
|_Rerurn on Ecarty After Tax (%) 21,04
Return on Capital Employed (%) )

The margin was thin due to stiff competition. Small deciine in cost to revenuz ratio heiped
to increase the gross profit smargin and operating profit margin to some extent. The Gress
Profit Margin increased to 14.32% in FY2022-23 from 13.11% In FY2021-22, which
eventually translated into a Net Profit: Margin of 4.93% in FY2022-23. However, the
improved performance in the top line was not refiected in the bottom line due tc a
substantial surge in financial exoenses which ate up the extra profit earned frem EBIT, The
anility to aenerate szles by using Fixed Assets and Total Assets aiso decreased,

13.0 ISSUER CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND SOLVENCY

Tk, tn Mitkun
Particulars ! 30-Jun-23 30-3un-22 30-Jun-21% :
|_Sucrent Assets H 923,57 853,17
Less: Current Linbilities ! 851.22 5i12.8C
et Current Assets 72.38 (42,54
Fixer Assets- Nat 1,327,869
Net Capital Emplayed 1,400,807
= ced by:
| _Non Current Liability 39.82
Long Term Loan i 88.35 e3. 7
Tetal Nop Current Lisbility i 19.E7 24.5
__Shareholders’ Equity: 3
Share Capite! £78.47 | 37847
_Retaived Zarnings 152.22 113.55
Yotal Shareholders’ Equity 780.20 450.02
“Total Loans (ST and LT} T T p13.19 1,258.07
Total Long Term toan 588.36 693.76 .
i_Leverage Ratg (X) Lae b ATy
:.D\ibt Service Cavarage Ratio 111 123
| Irterest Coverage RO Q0 .. 183 R

! Pace 14 of 19
: Page 14 ¢f 19

For Chief Executive Officer
Tanzirul isilam
Vice Presigent

F’C}‘LCbkvAAKFoohﬁs;;fLC—Page| 12

NOOT 1

Mehammad fof rslam
>ampany Secretary X FOOC
Footwear Lidc

Shibly Amran
Chief Executive Officer
Community Bank Investment Limit




Strictly Private & Confidencial

GIBISI‘ Credit Rating Information and Services Limited

Servng alsbal sizedasd af vl fevel First 0 8621 : 2015 Certited Creat sty Gompény in Sangiadesh Operating Sincs 1835

CREDIT RATING REPORT
On
MK FOOTWEAR NON-CONVERTIBLE BOND

it Is observed that the credit risk profile slightly improved characterized with some
dependence on Long-Term debt. Total Current Assets stood at Tk, $23.60 mitlion I1n
FY2022-23 vs. Tk. 860.17 millon in FY2021-22 registering a growth of 7.37%. The
leverage position slightly improved in the last year due to a significant equity infusion.
Total Equity registered 59.22% growtn in FY2022-23 and stood at Tk. 780,20 millicn-
mostly comprised of aggregate share capitai. The growth of Assets was lower than that of
Equities, resulting in a decrease in the Borrowed Fund during the latest analyzing pericd-
supported to retain @ moderate ieverage and coverage positicn, This underping the
contribution of Sorrowed Funds, less than that of Equity Funds to generate returns that
could otherwise have baen much lawer in later years. Furthermore, analysis of leverage
ratios shows a mixed position. The horrowing reguirement of the business movas ir
tandem with the business operations. Total berrowed funds deciined and were recerded at
Ti. 1,011,19 miilion in F¥2022-23 from Tk. 1,258.07 million in FY2021-22 in the form of
toth long-term and short-term loans. Growth funding of the Company is mostly
characterized by some external borrowings which impacted its leverage position as
expressed by the Debt/Equity ratio of 1.89x in FY2022-23 (FY2021-22: 3.27x} generating
lew crecit risk exposure.

The coverage position was marginally exposed by satisfactory repayment capacity as its
earning base is fess robust compared to the interest expenses which is tantamount ¢
other gearing ratios. Weak coverage position was observed in the latest period exprassad
by 1,11x of DSCR and 1.63x of EBIT to Interest ratio to meet its financial charges. Going
forward, CRISL also expects the Company's debt protection indicatars to remain sireng on
the back of healthy accruals from operations, low gearing and strong internal fund
generation capabilities. However, any undertaking of external debt may impact the cash
fow and worsen the leverage position in the future which might impede its performance to
some extent.

14.0 ISSUER LIQUIDITY AND FUND MANAGEMENT

indicators 30-Jun~-23 30-Jun-22
Current Ratie (X} Kt) 0,95
. Quick Ratia (X) 3.8 1.58
_Net Warking Capite: (Tk. in million; 72.3 {92,623
| Operating Cash; flow {Tk, in mition) 183,20 50.88
Qperating Cycle (Daysy 310.97 ! 193.56
Cerk Corversion Cycle (Diays) i 231.59 ¢ 137.60

Footwear have their preduct lifecycle which remains argund 1-2 years, st, outmoded
shoes have to be liquidated to relieve the inventory pasition as new products take olace of
the older designs. High inventory requirement in the form of finished goods and raw
materials increases the working capital sensitivity of the Company. MKFPLC nas been
carrying cut its operation with moderate liquidity. MXF needs funds for procuring required
raw materials, workers' salaries, and other administrative costs. The company mairtairs
its working capltal reguirement as well as iiquidity from receiving sales proceeds,
borrowing frem banks, trade credit facilities from suppliers, etc. The cverall liquidity
profiie, however, remzined lower during the rating exercise irrespective cf the same
husiness strategy. The liguidity index snowed a mixed outcome in recent vears as the
Current ratio increased from 0.95x in FY2021-22 te 1.09x in FY2G22-23. Furthermare, tne
liquidity measures are emphasized mare en the future Cash Flow generaticn ability rather
than the maximization of profits. It is understood that to amplify the growth, the Company
has to inject additional funds, which may put pressure on the future Cash Flow. The Cash
Flow from the Operation was somewhat volatile due to large fluctuations in Net Working
Capital management. Divergent Cash Flow measures after adjusting Sales with Debtors
and Cost of Goods Sold with Inventory and Advances reflected positive Cash Flow.
Subscquently, positive Cash Flaw also indicates the Company fias Tk, 163.20 miilion of
su-plus Cash in Hand to reinforce revenue growth and ralax Working Capital Management,
To snaintain- steady, operating efficiency to boost the earning status, the Company is
required to take measures through effective check and balance technigues in order tG
maintain sustzinabie performance regarding working capital management.

For Chief Executive Officer
Tanziru! {slam
Vice Prasident
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i5.0 REDEMPTION CAPACITY

Coupon payment of the bond is payabie semi-annuaily. CRISL views that the fundamentals
of the Company wiii suppert the coupon payment of bonds from the regular operation.
With the stability in the county's political arena and the increase in demand the projected
arowth is expected to be attained to maintain steady growth in its retained earnings. The
vearly instaliment wiil be Tk. 80.92 million which might be met by the forecasted cash flow
and profitability.

Production and Sales at 100% Capacity {Tk. in Miilion}

Process item . Average Annuatly Annual Conversion Anpual |
Sales Praduction | Sales (USD) Rate Sales Tk.
price {Pair}

{UsSD}

Camenting Process Shoes 7.50 2BBEG9R | 21,643,685 | 11000 | 336183

Total Existing 2,886,598 23,649,485 2,381.44
_Machines

EVA Process Sandal .60 1,039,175 2,71, 850 11099 297.20
TP Pracess Shoss. 90 865,973 5,675,258 FEY 657,28
{_DIP Progass Shoes 60 2,880,598 2,508,155 11000 828,87
i Total-New Maching i 4,791,753 15,182,268 1,780,05
{_Total Revenue 4,161.49 |

i _Forecasted Bajanca Sheet of MKFPLC (Figure In Mililon Yakay

_\Mm r3022-23 | PYIRIS-24 ; FYz023-26 _599:‘4::‘74 #v2037-38 |
Non-Gurrent Assets: i : S e
Progarty, Mast and Equipimant 3.152.95 1,223.1¢ 1,.350.87 573.98
intargisie Aseaty .08 08 304 .03 0.02
[nvestnient 183.37 163.3% 183378 183.37 183,37

ht-oluse (RCU) 2scets 10.09 1186 £.39 52 2.7¢
NoosCisren: Secunly Degosits 120 28 3.0 @ 1%
Total Nan-Current Assats 1,327.69 | 1,424,434 | 1,328.83 | 1,341.20 | 1,161.32
Current Assats:
inventories 98,31 45181 579.84 BJ2.45

ECCounts 8 Oter Rezuivaties 7568 | 66543 331,32 8674 BEE.73

_inten Ccmaanv_kuuvab- 00.33 FVALUE! EVALUE: SYALUE!
Advance tnroms Tax 10,68 10,56 10 66 f 10,56
Cazn & Cash Ecuivalent 141.65 185,19 434,54 S18. ?G : $C2.53
Total Currant Assets 923.60 1,316.52 & $,670.14 1,856.36 | 2,086.61 2283120
Totel Assets 2,251.29 | 2.740.86 2,998.77 3,097,585 3,247.93 337035 |
Equity mnd Liabillities i :
Shareholders’ Equity: K | H
Share Capital { 476,47 478,47 475,47 A74.67 473.47 478,47
Fair value Saun/{uons) 148, 149,53 149,51 349,51 153,51 249,51
Retai-a¢ Eamings £52, 33283 £02.25 917.25 1.306.94 4,737 H
Tatal Equity 784, 960.81 1,2390.22 1,545.23 2,385.41
hon-ggq_g_n_l Uabifities: = 2 2 i .

Long Tern Loan-Non Curment Waxur‘l)' 5865.76 519.8% 36202 147 84
Lease iab lty (nosszurrent po 48 5.:6 57 130 -
Defurved Tax Liadilities fAs 25.04 | 25.04 25.0% 25.04 25.04

. Total Non-Current Ulb“\!l.l 619,87 ° $50.05 390.62 170.47 426.10

| Current Linbilities: 4 i
Trade and Cther Poyasles 1 162,22 1 203.55 254,44 27840 271,42

f Teem Logn-Cyrvast Matynty 255,38 796.16 835,53 198.51

: 1.4, 445 B 288
4328 174.48 218,32 | 232.17
12.27 27.01 35,85 ° 39.1.
T 3.08 1347 ies 25,

CFrovion for Tax ; 10,83 i9.61 16,81 i

| Total Curnent LiabHitles 851.22 1,230,10 1,377.92 1,381.88 780,46

{ Tom! Equity and Liabiliti 2,251.29 ,730.96 2,998.77 2,097.55 | 3,2572.83

|r Net Azsot Value Per Share 15.3% 20.08 25,71 32.3 | 40.44 49.22

For Chief Executive Officer
Tanzirul islam

1 i Vies Presgident
Page 16 of 19
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Forecasted Income Statemaent of MKFPLC (Figure in Milion Taka) |
Farticulars FY2023-24 | FY2024- 25 FY2025- 26 FY2026- 27 | FY2027-28 |
Capasity Utdizaticn (Vo) 60% 707 75% [
Soles 2,452.43 2,861.17 3.,065.5¢ 3,469.90 65,90
¢ Less Cost of Production (2,091,735} (3,429.99} 12,601.92) {2,758.47}
Gross Profit 360.66 43117 . 4€3.61 313.4¢
Gross Proflt Margin A 14,7 1% 15.07% 15.12% 15.84%
istrative Exoenses 148,341 (29.28) {2929 (30.28;
on Exsenses £33 425 {#4.83) © 148033 (51.23}
ng Rrafit/ (Loss) 273.4 287,08 | 385.81 429.8%
rating tocorte Cash Incantive 1637 204,22 218.57
Proiit/(Loss) beforw intersst & Tax $37.1 S 550,55 386.19
Financinl Expenses: ” » &
Banx Jolesest, Conmissicn § Others ;154.35 (139,78} {230.73) {186.29}
Profit/{Loss) befores WPPF & Tax 282,63 40835 453,78 541 EC
Workeds” Prokt Sertripatine Funs (\WHPF) {1347 ECE N [ {¥5 50} $27.32) 3
Profit/ (Loss) bafore Tax 265.35 338.90 437,95 16 20 2549 ¢
__Income Tox Expenses: 5 5 ¢ i
Currant Txx Expenss {40.30) {47,723 5143} (54.547 (54.53)
| Ret Profit/(Loss) sfter Tox 23E.48 34118 386.77 461.46 - 551,86
Nnt Pro?t Margin o ed3% 11930 | 13.62% 13.11% 15.05%
Baslc Par Share (EPS] 477 7.33 a.08 9,66 | 10.28
Dituted Samnings Per Share (DEPS) { . 477 7.13 808 9,64 10.28 |
I Forecasted Cash flow of MKEPLC (Figure in Hillion Taka)
Casih flows fron operating activities: BY2023- FY2024- ©  FY203I5- FY2028- FY2027-
24 as 26 . 27 28
2.237.58 2,945.3 321597 343388 1 348647 ¢
2 493 $3,%68.22% ¢ (2 666! 8280
Ingome 13¥ paic : (%2.50% 147.72) 1 (55,43}
Net Cash (used In)/genarated by operating 129.18 4609 | 86317 522.18
Lactivities i

16.0 RISK ANALYSIS

16.1 Interest Rate Risk

The coubon rate will be is variable which Beachimark Rate s + Coupon Margin of 2.00%
p.2. Benchmark Rate is the Treasury Bill. The floor rate and maximumni ceiling are 9.00%
p.a. and 13.00% p.a. respectively. Therefore, coupon rate of the bond wil' be affected by
interest rate movement. The change {n the interest rate might impact the coupan rate
significantly.

16.2 Subscription Risk

Subscription risk of the bond will arise due to a lack of cemand in the market to buy the
instrument. Corporate houses in Bangladesh may not have sufficient funds to go for
iavestment in such bonds against the backdrop of any future liquidity zrisis due (o
significant bank borrowing by Govt to finance the budget deficit. Flotation of too many
bonds in the market may create subscription nsk. Moreover, the absence of an
underwriting arrangement in the propesed structure rmay create subscrigtion risk,

16.3 Redemption Risk

Redemption risk arisas from the feilure of the :ssuer to redeem the bond when it becomes
due. MKFPLC has tc pay off the band subscribers within gight years. A significant amount
of cash outflow from at ane time may create pressure on its cash flow as well 2s fquidity.
However, it has been estimated that the Company may be able to manage the situation
with its regular inflow of cash. Hence, the redemption risk has been observed to be low.

16.4 Raw material supply Risk

A smocth supply of raw materiais throughout the vear is & concern for the footwear
industry. The raw materiais consist of leather, lining, and TRR. About 40%-50% of raw
hides and goat skins are coliected during Eid-Ui-Azha from sacrificed animais. The majer
supply of raw materials depends on the numbe: of sacrificial animels during Bid-Ul-Azha.
Other raw materials i.e. iining and TPR are sourced mainly from Ching. Import-based
suppiies are likely to be affectad by any uacontrallahle event or country risk ta the
i Page 17 of 19 transaction or poiitical barrier. Any supply gap of the above raw materiais may expose the

company to raw materlals supply risk. P
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16.5 Tachnological Risk

The technology usad in the footwear industry is mainly developec in Italy and exporters of
Bangladesh enjoy high cemand in the international market as low-cost suppliers, Because
of increasing labor costs in India and China, Bangladesh: has been gaining a competitive
advantage over its global competitors, But these ccuntries are technologically advanced o
develop new footwear technology replacing the need for manual iabor. New and mare
automated efficient technology will create a major threat to labor-intensive exporters of
Bangladesh.

16.6 Industry Risk )
The foctwear industry is inherently competitive bacause of sireng presence of unarganized
sector which is also refiected in moderate cperating marging of the Company. Coping with
the size. scope and the changing raguirements of the consumer base by identifying and
deveioping opportunities that will match up today’s needs are the major chailenges in the
fostwear markets. As international footwear industry is a mature industry to some extent,
the opportunities lie in market expansion with diversification in product design and pricing.
However, future growth of the Company will depend on the acceptance of its high value
products in line with the economic condition and spending preference of its customer base.

17.0 OBSERVATION SUMMARY
[ Rating Comtarts: . Rating Concernst
{
Issue: Issue:
¢ Alractive ceupon rate - Jnsecured debt instrlment |
. The issuer 712s a sound credt prafile . Non-Convertible Bond
. Tssuer cash flow supparts regular v Atsence of recourse to the rustee i
coupon payments as well as principa: managing the event of defavlt
Issuer: 2 Issuer:
. Geod prodection facilities . Medsrate profitabitity and {quigity
. Experienced management team . Skilied labor shartage risk
> Listing in stock exchange . Raw material supply rsk
Business Opportunities: Business Challenges:
Issue: y;
. Development of the bond markel in Issue:
Bangtadesh . Lower markel gepth of Bangisdest capiy
. Stack exchangs ealistment matket -
. Mastly dependent on institLrional invpsioss |
Issuer; for subscrption
. Prospactive ingustry in 8angladesh Issuer:
» fmmense oppartunity for market . Urstable & volatility Foreign Bxchianga
growth Matket
. Further Expansion ¢f capadity . Rising lnfiatien
. Regulasary Pressure far oarrewing mtergst |
rate spread i

2rice fluctuation in the aternationat
marxes
Glahel scoramic meltdown

l

|

.

bt bt

(Information used herein is d from s d to be accurate sad reliakie, However, CRISL does
Ot QUAIENLER ThE SCCUriCY, ddequacy or COmp 55 Of any il and is pot responsibie for any erees
sr amissions or far the results obtained fom the use of such information. Rating is an apinion o .cregit ausity
aniy and iz not o recommendation to puy or $8f any secyrities. At rights of thus report are reserved oy CRISL,
Contants may be used Ly news media and reseqrohers with due pekaowledgernent)

fWa have examingd, prepared, linalized and issued this cepest:
Cunilizh of inty We tiave @50 complied Witk & the requiren
arescnibed by the Bangiadesn. Securitias and Exchange Carmimission.

(ROLT COmPBrOmiSinG Wwith the matters of
. QOUCY Dracequres of the BREC !

For Chief Executive Officer
Tanzirul istam
Vice President
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RATING SCALES
LONG-TERM RATING OF DEBY INSTRUMENTS
i RATING } DEFINITION
Investment Grade
ARA :
Triple A Securities rated i this category are adjucged to be of highest credit quality. Tus
(Highest iavel of rating incicates highest level af sarety for tmaly payment of interest and
Safety) principal. Risk facters are negligible and nearest to nisk free govemment

securities.
AA+, AA, Secyrit'as rated in this category are adjudped ¢ be of high crec:t quaiity ard offer
AA- higher safety, This levet of rating irdicates a szcurity with sound cradit profile ang
(Double A} withoat significant probiams. Protection ‘actors ang strong, Risk 5 modest but
|_(Hioh Safety} | may vary slightly from time to time because of ecenomic copditions,
A+, A, A= Securities satzd in this category are adiudged to be of good credit guality 2
Single A ofter adequate safety for timely repayment of fipancial obligations. Protecuon

{Agaquate facters are considered varlabie and more suscept:ble o changes in crrumsiances
Safety) thar securities in higher-rated categuries.
BBB+, BBB, | Secunties rated in this categery are acjudged to offer moderate safety for fimely
BBB- repayment of financial obligations. This ievei of rating indicates deficiencies in |
Tripie B certain protective eizments but still considered sufficient for prudent investment.
{Moderate Risk factors are more variable in pesiads of sconamic stress than these rated in
Safety) tne higher categories.
Speculative Grade

Doulsie B Secunties rateg in this category are considered tc ve of specu%a:ivg grade bt |
{Inadequate | deemed likely tc meet obligations when cue. Present or prospective firancial
Safaty) ' protection factors fiuctuate accorgng te industry conditlons or company fortunes,
TR Qverail quality may

| Securities rated n tl

{ This'level of rating indicates high risk associated with timely redayment of intarest

Bs';; :,; g' anc principal. Financial arotection factors will fluctuate widely eccording © !
{Higr{ Risk) economic cyces, industry candm;:ns andfar company _fommes. Potential exists _far i
> ’ frequent charges in the rating within this catcgory or into-a higher or :ower 1ating |
grade. ;

CCC+,CCC, Securities rated in this category 3re currentiy vainerable [0 nor-cepaymerns, ana is !
cce- dependent upon favorable business corditicns for the ouliger ra mee! s rinaccgl |

{Vuinerabe) compitments on the oblication.
CC+,CC, CC- | Securities rated int this categery is currertly nigh vulneraale to nonsrepayment.

(High
Valnerabie)
+,C,C~ Secutities rated in this cateygory ere considered to ba near to dafault, Protection
{Near to facters are scarce. Timely repayment of irterest and pricipal is possibie only of
Default) favorable circumstances condnue.

Default Grade H
Defaulted debt obligatiors. issuer falled te meet scneduled principal and/or
{Default) interast payments, i

4

-

For Chief Exgcutive Officer
Tanzirul Islam
Vice Presiden‘t o
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This 13 & Tredie rating repoart 3s par the prnvisians of e Credic Aaing Companigs Rulies 1926, CRISL'S entity mting is

valid e pe rlong-teem rahing dnd 6 meAths B Shogy term ring. CRISLYS Bank fodn rating (ir) 1 vafic une year
Address: tor org term Facilities and up-tnt 363 days (erording to tenisre of shurt erm facilities) for shart term focitus, After
i the absve pegods, these rxtings wilt not carry a0y valoity «nless tne €ntity oes (or survediaace,
CRISL foflowed Carporate Rating d in CRISL wowrssaathd.com
x Date of Rating: November 21, 2023 Valid up to: Novembter 20, 2024
5299911 i Long Term i Short Term |
Sav: §5-02-953-0995 Entity Rating i A- SY-3
Email> Qutioax { Szable
reisighkperisibe. corm Bank Facilities Rating
Bank/FI Mode of Exposures {Tk. in millicns)
Rating Contact:
M. AsKuT HuG » : . *TLO of Tk, 852.7%
 feating Ginccr Rupal Bagte. »eWCLL of Tk, 279.03

e B cien STLO- Tarm Loan Owtstancing, =*WCLL- Warking Capital Loar Limut

1.0 RATING RATIONALE

CRISL has upgraded the Long Term rating to ‘&' {pronounced as single A minus) rating and
‘'ST-3' rating in the Short Term of MK Footwenr PLC (hereinafter referred to as “MKFPLC" or
‘the Company”} on the basis of its audited finzncials and other relevant quantitative and
qualitative jnformation up-to the date of the rating. The above ratings have been assigned
due D some fundamentals such as listing in stock exchange, moderate financa
performance, good capacity utitization, an experienced managament  team. good

Entity Rating
tong Tesm: A- 5 . S -« 3
o Term: §T-3 infrastructu®e facilties, andé good quality control machanism, etc. The abcve factors are,

howevar, canstrained to some extent by demand fai risk, the risk of price fluctuation 2s well
25 some other industry-specific and macroeconomic factors.

Outlook: Stable 3
The Long Term ratine indicates that entities rated in this categary are adjudged ta be of an
MK FOOTWEAR adequate safety for imely repayment of financial abligations. This ievel of rating indicates »
PLC corperate entity’ with an adequate credic profite, Risk factors are more variable and greater
in periods of economic strass than those rated in the higher categories.

The Short Term ra né'«indicates good certainty of tmely gayment. Liguidity factors and
company fundamentals are: sound. _Although ongoing funding needs may eniarga total

fnancing requirements, 2¢cess to capitat markets s good. Risk facters are smal.

lesther gaods

LI cRISL also plackd the company with a “Statie” outlook in consideration that s
DATE OF fuhdamentals may remain unchanged during vhe.raking valigity perod.

INCORPORATION S i

fovernonr 12, 2015 2.0 COMPANY PROFILE s

CHAIRMAN MK Footwear PLC is invalved in the manufacturing of 100% export-orierited synthetic shous,
Ms. b Mahfuie leather shoes, sandals, and other leather gocds such as waliets, money bags, iadas’
Mo hamnnzd handbags, etc. It was incorpotated as & private limised company on November 12, 2015,
MANAGING usder the Cempanies Act, 1994 with the Regsstrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms,
DIRECTOR Bangladesh vide registration po. C-126512/2015 and was subsequently converted intc o
M. Noor Hohammed public mited company on May 29, 2022. The cemmercial operatian of the company started
sourry en July 02, 2020, MKFPLC has been operating under the ieader-.:hlip of Mr. Noar Moharsmed, &
Tk, 780,20 mitiion rencwned busingss personality having long exposure in diversified fields of bus ness. The

praduction capacity of the company is 3 lac pairs per month. The registered affice and factory
of the company are lacated at Nayonpur Bazar, Chalkpara, Mawna, Gazipur, Bangladesh.
TOTAL ASSETS ;

™ 2.251.29 mdlies

2.1 Ownership Pattern A
The Board of the Company is promoted by the members who have teen playing a s
role in the fine standing of the Company raving substantial experience in the related sec
The company Is managed and contreiled undar the umbrella of commor control machas
being guided &nd supervised by the Managing Director, It also follows a geod managdment
practice, which is headed by the Chairman- Ms. Mir Mahfuza Mohammed falloweo by the
Managing Director- Mr, Noar Mohamimed, and other :ndividuai Directors ard Sharsholders.

tage 1 of 13
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Value of Shares

_;S';irsholdim of MK Footwear PLC as on 30 June 2023
No- of Shares |

fRartictior {in mililon) | (Tic. in_millign) Share (0
i Sponsors & Directors 24.47 24567
Placerent Shaceholder 13.39 133.80
Institate el g 32.78
i._General Public 22 1 67.30
{ Total 47.85 | 378,48

The Managing Director is the Chief Executive to
Zincrions and dav-to-day operational activities by using a pancremic view ensuring
consistency. As of 3G June 2023 the total Authorized Capital of the Company was Tk. 1,000.0
rilion and Paid-up Capital was Tk 478.47 million divided into 47.847 miliion orcinary shares
of TK. 10.0 each. The Company has been strengthemng its toe-hold in the marketolace
supported by the dynamic |eadership of the top management. The Board deals with the peicy
issues, business philosophy, ang cperating guidelines for the management in achieving ks
desired targets. CRISL views that the keen agtachment of the sponsors with businesses being
commensurate with their long exposure will make them able to take strategic decisions by
taking take calculated risks nacessary for business growth.

controls and supervises the entire vital

Shareholding Position of Sponsors and Dirsctors of MKFPLC 35 on 30 June 2023
|_Si. | Name Desianation No. of Shares
17 | Ms, Mir Mahfuza Mohammed Chairman 3.090.00C
3 Mr. Moot Moharnmed Maraging Qirector 37,857,200
3 M, Md, Akteryzzamai Directar 2,100,060
4 Mr. F. M. Hasan Mahfuz Russel | Director 1,500,000
S Mr. ¥azl Rejaul Kadir Sharetlder 500,009
& My, Farah Zaman,_ Sharsholider 1,800,500
7 Deal & Deliver Sharehoider 1,650,003
8 Mr. Sifet Akmed Craudhur: i 500,090
9 Hayat Trade interna! Shareholder 1,750,000
10| M/S. Alam Eaterrise Sharehoider 50,330
11 | NS Info Equity Lirned Sharaholdar 1,660,000 ;
17 1 Ms. Nuplir Zaman She-ehalder 1,860,000
T TN Mir Shaureen. Shams .l Sharcholuer +,803,000
T4 | Mr. Mahammed Tahidul Islam Starehgiger S ’
15 Mr. Md, Masud Rana Sharghoeider 543,000
15 Mr. Sarwiar Hussain Saarehcider 230,00C ;
: Total 37,847,200 100.00%
3.0 OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT
3.1 Corporate Management

of serior professionals having reasonahte
the company maintains a hierarchy from
Lop~cown approach to the

The Managing Director is supported by a pool
experience in related fielcs. The management of
Department Heads to bottom-line management personnel with
management process. For smooth business operations, total managemgn’: tasks 2are
segregated into different departmerts Accounts and Finance, Marketing, Administration & HR,
Commercial, -etc, The management has delegated sufficient financial and administrative
powers to different segments of managemant.

| Designation -

Shibly Amran
Chief Exdecutive O

fficer

Corporate Management of MKFPLC ; : :
Name ; ;

Manaaing Crrector

™. Noor Mohammed | =

Ve, F M Hagen Manfuz | CEC

Mr. Motammed Tohidul islam T Company Secretany .
Mr Mahabubul Al3M P CFC e

Mr. Dulel Abrmed Cenior Manager, tamrercial

TMr. Abu Hannar Biswas

Senigr Maaager, Commarcial

Manager, HR & Comoliance

Mr, Kazi Sanaul Arefin
LRS- TR
[_Mr. Md. Masyd Rane .

Magager, Finarce

par. Md. Tazul Istam

Manager, ACCOUNtS

For Chisf Execiltive Officer

Tanzirul islam
Vice President

Prad Qotine Infremation and Ranvices L
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3.2 Human Resources Policy

The overall HR policy of the company has been fecund maoderate. MKFPLC has been following &
structured compensation package or formal service rule for human rescurces with detailed
job responstbiiities and other job-related policies, Moreover, the company has a gu.deline for
recruitment, increment, promotion, and provident fund polices for the emplovees, It also
provides two festival bonuses per year, free mecical facilities, guarter facilities for factory
staff, etc. The total human resource base stoad at arcund 1,325 people including office staff.
Al the employess receive salary/wages in excess of Tk. 8,200 per month. Though footwear
manufacturing requires capital investment, manual process is also an integral part of
manufacturing. For this purpose the Comoany provides various training and workshops for its
workers and employees to increase their efficiency and productivity, The management
continuausly exerts its efforts to improve the preduction process and human develapment Ly
conducting various R&D and on-the-job traming pregrams. Keeping this in view, caorcinat-on
among the departments by reviewing the performance in every step of dperation mproves
efficiency by ensuring timely delivery according fo the customer's demands. The practices ¢f
the internal control System along with the easy and guick flow of informetlon- assist the
management in effectively monitoring the averall activities. CRISL expects with the help of
experienced management, employees, and logistic supoary, it will achieve the goai of
operational performance and meet its fnancial cbligation in the future whick mit:gates the
reiationship risk to some extent.

Worker Efficiency {%) of MKFPLC i
Particulars FY2022-23 | FY2021-22
Wastage (%) 3% : 4% :
Leather 25% 25%
Non Leather 10% 10%
Maching Efficiency (%} 39.64% R ),

3.3 Management Information System (MIS)

The Management [nformation System of MKFPLC is moderate. There is & computerizad
information system in MKFPLC for inventory management, financial transactians and other
aperations, Moreover, it tracks its receivables an monthiy basis with periocic aging scheduic
to balance its working capital racguirement, cash flow and revenue cailaboration. The practices
of the internal control system alonig with the easy and guick flow of information- &ssist the
management in effectively monitoring the overall activities,

4.0 BUSINESS ANALYSIS

4.1 Infrastructure and production facilities

M K Foot Wear PLC has established its factory compound in Chalkpara, Mauna, Sreepur.
Gazipur, ocoupying arcund 350.38 decimais of land. The business has proximity advantages
Gue to its prime locaticn being well connected to a major transportation network, The site
enjoys all facilities like electricity lines, road communication, etc, The factory operates in a 3
sroried buildings including warehouse, generator room & electric substaton, and offics
building. There is a bonded warahouse having 20,000 sft of space.

Good infrastructure
facitias

Technology remains an important factor in maintaining & competitive position i the business
The machinery setup of the factory is mixed-age¢ on acceunt of starting of commaercial
operation few years back, MKFPLC has set up the modern and sophisticated branc-new
machinery imported from China, and Talwan. Some notable machirery is Injection Machine,
Double Cutter Boot, Upper Hemmering Machine, Upper Steaming Soften Machine, Sale
Marking Maching, Painting Booth Machine, Fully Preumatic Hesl Nalling Machine, Hydraulic
Heel Lasting Machine, Singla Needie Sewing Maching, Edge Trimming Machine, 5; ang Force
Glue Apply Machine Rolls, efe, Alengside the huge capital investment, the expenciture o
atility and energy costs plays a significant role in determining operaticnal efficiency. T
tactory operation is powered by a focai REB line: having 1,000 KW capacity, and altemnals
power back uvp ensured through 03 Diesal run Generators with 2 capacity of 1000 KVA, 256G
KVA, and 80 KVA respectively. argund 30% of glectricity is supplied by soler energy.

"

For Chief Executive Officer
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The production pracess lavout is flexible and strategically integrated which is set by the top
management based on the market demand and ordar in hand. In addition, it 1s important tc
note that & negative correlation was also scrutinized between revenus and quantity per unit,
which incicates that & reguiar price hike has reduced the earnings growth.

4.2 Procurement Process

The upstream value chain is envisaged by the exposure of frequent input price fluctuation by
seasonality along with inefficient inventory managemeant, which generates the mejor raw
material-related risks, The requisition of raw-mater:al is reviewed and procured from several
saurces according to the buyer's arders by the respective respansible officers in the particular
departments. The main raw materials are leather, synthetic leather, EVA resin, PVC resin a¢
well as wet blue (tanned leather) and other meterials. There is some suppliers’ cancentration
risks as the majority percentage of raw materials are collected fram few Chinese supphers.
So, foreign currency fluctuation due to local currency devaluaticn and price hike in
international market may affect its cost structure anc profitability to some extent. Moreover,
government policy and cuty structure affect its business. The critical success factor will be
keep the customers satisfied by virtue of timely delivery. The downstream value chain results
in increased customer lines gradually. The Company mastly caters to Ferro Footwear B.Y,
(the Netherlands) which consumes arcund 80% cof the total expor: creating some customer
concentration risk. Other customers are from Hong Keng, Germany, Taiwan etz.

4.3 Production Process

The company produces synthetic shees, leather shoes, sandals, and other leather ¢oods such
as wallets, money bags, ladies handbags, ewc. There are five steps invoived in the
manufacturing process such as uppar cutting secton, ¢losing/stitching secticn, anc lasting
section. Bottoming section and firishing section.

4.4 Quality Control
The quality concentration by strong monitoring helps te keep the confidence of the
customers, Recurring sales with continuous reorder eventually support the sound quahty
. contral mechanisrm of the Company. It has several control checkpoints to assure the quality
:;"‘f"i_‘-"*"’"“‘ contral Sf the products starting from raw materials to finished goods, It also attempts to maintain
EnET scheduled inspection by assigning troops in every oroduction phase for ensusing desired
procuct quality. All raw materials undergo quallty inspection during receipt. Qutsaurced
matariai production facilities are also subject to Guality augits, Records of all inspections are
maintained as per the procedure for control of quality incluging those given urgent
permissions. MKFPLC has an established quatity plan to check the product at the finai stage.
Mo product is allowed into the finished goods area until final inspection and clearance.
Records of inspection and testing are maintained for all steps. Starage of the products is dore
in a way to ensure full quality retention, Finally, MKFPLC has established mon:toring and
measurement processes te meet the reguirements of customers. Foliowing a strorg
monitoring system, the flow of daily procuction, and the quality maintaining risk, raveals |
management philesephy regarding custemer satisfacrion. Going forward, expans.or o
capacity with upgraded equipment and recruiting experienced and gualified professional
employees mitigates the qualivy-related risks by increasing productivity ievels leading to low
operazing costs as well 2s deriving some scale benefits,

4.5 Marketing Strategy and Target Customers

The axport market for ieather shoes has vary goed prospects. But to get a good merket
share; the sponsors will have to adopt requisite marketing strategies in respect of product
quality, product pricing, product promotion, and distributicn, MKFPLC has taken appropriate
marketing strategies regarding preduct guality, pricing, promotion, and distribution to atzract
the mariet.

5.0 INDUSTRY QUTLOCK ST T R

Shoe producing industry In Bangiadesh is in riging pattern because of extensive market stze

cheap izbor cost and skilled workforce.Due to cost advantages, business is shifting from.
Vietnam and Thailand to Bangladesh. The Company gapends on import for raw materiais
pracurement and suppliers are designated by the buyer, Export dusiness is primarily focused
Page 4 6f13 | on European region and it is in the prosess of diversification in regicnal customer base.

For Chief Executive Officer
Tanzirul islam
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However, increasing production of counterfeit footwear products by local manufacturers 1o
hindering the growth of the global foctwear market.

These duplicate products are hampering the distribution channel and are leading to e
negative impact on the overatl growth of the market, The market tased on procuct ty
which includes athietic footwear and non-athietic foctwear. The glotal athietic footy
market is further segmentsd inte running and cross training/tennis shoe, scccer/foo
shoe, goif shoe, basketbail shoe, hiking shoe, baseball shoe and sthers. The giobal norn-
athietic feotwear market is classified intc casual footwear, dress evening footwear, mihitary
boots, lite hiking outdoor sandal and others. On the basis of gender type, the footwear
market is subdivided Intc men's footwear, women’s foctwear and kids’ fastwear.
Furthermore, the global footwear market has been divided by geography into North America,
Eurcpe, Asia Pacific and rest of the world (RoW). Key players have also beer profiled en the
basis of company overview, financial overview, business strategies and key developrments,
Major market participants profiled in this report include Nike Inc. (U.S.), Adidas AG
{Germany), Puma SE (Germany), New Baiance Inc, (U.S.), Asics Corp.(Japan), Bata Limited
(Canada), Deichmann SE (Germany), Skechers USA, Inc. {U.S.), The Aldec Group Inc.
{Canada), VF Corp.{U.5.), W.L. Gore & Associates, Inc. (U.5.), Jack Wolfskin (Germany),
Sympatex Technologies GmbH {Germany), Palartec, LLC (U.S.), Kathmandu Hoidings Limited
(New Zealand), and Columbia Sportswear Company {U.S.). Assembily of products;
Bangladesh has a host of potential products that can earn substantially large amouris of
forelgn exchange, if ortly the necessary patronage from the overseas buyers is given for the
seke of expanding the country’s export base and thereby reach a sustainadle status for the
country’s export trade.

The modernization of the foatwear industry though took place in the late 1980s; its inception
is in the colonial era. During the British pericd, there was no footwear manufacturng
company producing ¢n a mass scale in West Bengal. After the partition of Bengal in 1947, the
foctwear requirament of the then East Pakistan was being met by import from West Pakistan
Bata acted as the pioneer in establishing the footwear industry by starting its manufactur.ng
plant in 1962, In 1967 ancther company was estabiished, named Eastern Progressive Shcc
Industries (EPS]), to manutacture footwear and also to expiore the opportuaity of exporting
the foctwear to the USSR, Czechoslovakia, and England. At present, there are several
footwear manufacturers producing quality footwear and also contributing te our foregn
currency earnings. The major piayers are Bata, Apex, Adeichi Footwear, Jennys Footwezr,
Lalmai Shoes and Leather Export, Excelsior Shoes, Paragon Leather and Footwear Industries
etc. As a pioneer, Bata enjoys a wide range of distribution networks in rurat and urban areas.
50, it is quite challenging for any other company to reach that level. However, the country
has already been exporting finished and different types of ieather preducts to overseas
markets. The reason for high global demand is due to the availabliity of high-quality raw and
finishad materials and low-cost labor, The availability of low-cost iabor is prompting Lop
manufacturers and investors from a few countries to relocate their factoriasste Bargladest
Three large investors in the fookwear sector from Taiwan are to set up footwear factones in
the Dhaka and Chittagong Exporting Processing Zones, The buyers from the EU, as well a5
other very highly developed industrial nations like Japan, have repertedly been showing more
interest in Bangladeshi leather proeducts. All these developments lcok promising for the loca!
' ‘ootwear industry. The main countries of export for footwear are Japan, Garmany, USA, italy,
srance, Spain, Belgium, Austria, Switzerland, Czech Republic, Holiand, Denmark, Finland, UK,
Canada, Oubai, Kuwait, Estonia, Singapore, Hong Xong, etc. Due ta enormous competition for
the existence ¢of @ good number of similar market players and higher barriers to entry in a
similar line of business, the companies find it difficult to set the price or their terms. Peer
group pressure and the market nature aiso himit the profit margin of this industry. Supply and
demanc sheuld fix the prices and each piayer must respond tc the rules set by market
mechanisms for healthy competition, Rivalry among existing companies HIGH: The industry is
highly competitive with a good number.of players including some {eading industrial groups.
The threat of new entrants MCDERATE: There is 8 high technizal or ccst barrier to entering
the industry. The asumber of customers and the market size is alluring new entrants. Power of
suppliers MODERATE: The raw materia! is available in specific seasons and areas. Good
quality raw materials suppliers charge high prices because of high demand. Power of buyers
MODERATE: The buyer's switching cost is very iow. Brand loyaity is strong in the incustry

Page S ¢f 13 | The threat of substitute products HIGH: There is a very good chance of a substitute product.
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6.0 PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

6.1 Production Efficiency

MKFPLC has a good production capacity to meet the order from buyers. Although the capacity
may vary due to changes in factory layout depending on the tertiary product mix, CRISL
observed declined capacity utitization- on account of global and domestic econcmuc meltdown
and dedlined demand from the tustomers, The Company deduces 10 bounce back ir the
upcoming years' as the management Is expecting to take some quick strategic dacisions
revealing substantial operational efficiency. Presently the company is producing 12,000 pairs
of synthatic shoes and 6,060 pairs of leather shoes per day.

Production Details of MK Footwear PLC {in Pair)
[ Production Capacity/ Year . _ i FY2022-23 FY¥2021-22
Syntaetic Shoes 1,800,008C 1,800,000 ¢
i sather Shoes { 1,200,000 1,2C0,000
. Yotal 3,000,000 3,000,000 |
Actual Production/ Year
Synthetic Shoes 503,182 822,175
Leazher Shoes 590,692 1,233,264
Total 1,093,874 2,055,440 |
Capacity Utilization {%) 36:46% 58.51% i

With this note,, the recorded operating parameters and scale of aperation are refiected in the
szles growth and financial strength, suggesting further growth epportunities by maximi
the exist:ing capacity. CRISL, however, observes that irrespective of the ratec capacity, thare
is a prospect of further growth opportunity beth in quantity sold as well as revenae.

6.2 Analytical Framework !

As a measure of the guantitative analysis, CRISL's ~ating spotlights. thesassessment ¢f the
Company's policies regarding operating strategies, economic goals, anc finarcia igverage
targets. The sustainability of these credit protecticn measures is evaluated aver 2 period to
assess the growth and robustness of the company’s operations and funding capab:lity. Henca
the ability to generate cash, the pclicies of the profit distribution, the generation of service
debts along with sufficient return for cortinuous access in the fund market are judged where
generating cash, trns out to be one of the most crucial parts, The report has besn preparvd
on the basis of audited financiais along with information provided by the managemeant of the
Company, Information has been collected througn discussion with the key management
people of the company as well as responsible persons of the Bank. As reported datz cannot
always be justified thoroughly by the bank accoun: statements, CRISL factored the .ncusiry
information available with CRISL for teaningful analysis and conclusion,

6.3 profitability & Earnings Stability

The sarnings were derived from the export of different types of snoes. Although it produces
different categories of shoes; the major portion of sales constituted leather procucts, Dwue o
tough competition, the Cempany posted a negative ‘growth of 35.01% in FY2022-23 by
registering @ sales turnover of Tk. 824.68 million declined from the previous year's Tk
1,268.84 million. CRISL projects: that it might neich up a fittle bit next year tased on its
recent performance, Looking forward, growth prospacts would not be different unless any
diversification in the product portfolio s strangly maneuvered,

Indicators 30-Jun~23 30-Jun-22 30-Jun-21 !
Turnover {Tk. ih Miflion} 874,68 1,268.84 1,268.8¢
" Gross Profit (T in Miten) 113.13 155.37 166.37
Profit After Tex (T, in Milion) 40.67 133.08 103.0¢
Cost to Revenue Ratle (%) 85.68 85.89
|_Administ-ative Expanse to Revenue Razio % ».82 .Gz
| Seliing & Distributicn Expense 16 Revenue Ratic %o 0.53 0.95
G3ross #rofit Mangin (%) : 14.32 £3.11
Operaling Profit Margin (%} : 311,17 10.52
[_Finance Cost ta Reveaue Ratio ¥ 31 £33
Net Profit Margin (%} i 4.93 812
L Return a0 Assats After Tax {3} BT 4.92
Return on Equity After Tex (%) : 30, 2108
TReturt on Captal Emaioyed (4] i 567 ]
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“he margin was thin due to stiff ccmpetition. Due to some uncontrotied cost incurred by it
followed by the mefficiency in procurement and production, eventually posted decreasec
margin in the key profitability indicators ‘n recent years- which uitimately reveals moderate
business strength and management capacity. Smal! decling in COST L& revenue ratic helped 0
increase the gross profit margin and operating profit margin to some extent. Tae Gross Profit
Margin increased to 14.32% in FY2G22-23 from 13.11% in FY2022, which eventually
translated into a Net Profit Margin of 4.93% in FY2022-23. However, the improved
performance in the top hne was not reflected in the bottom iine due to a substantial surge in
financial expenses which ate up the extra profit earned from EBIT. The ability to generate
sales by using Fixed Assets and Total Assets also decreased.

7.0 CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND SOLVENCY

Particulars 30-Jun-23 30-Jun-22
Crurrent Assets 923.60 £85.17
tess; Cugrrent Liatilities 851,22 502.8Q
| et Current Assets 72,38 42.94) L oonn..
| Fixed Assets- Nat 1,327.69 1,23:.17
Nst Capital Empioyed 1,400.07 1,188.53
_Financed by:
_Non Current Liability 6187 538.51
“Long Term Loan ... SHB.36 493,76
| Tctal Non Current Liatility H18.87 598.51
Shareholders’ Equity:
Share Cagital 473,47 378,47
|_Retained Earires 2 152,22 131:55
Yotal Shareholders’ Equity 780,20 T Ta80.02
| Total Loans (ST and LT) .3,011.19 1,258.07
Total Long Term Loan 588.38 883,70
Leverage Ratie (X} 1.86 3.27
Sevt Service Coverage Ratio (X} 3 1.1% 1,33
[ o™ 1.63 2.27

The credit risk profile slightly imprpf\fed characterized with some dependence an Long-Term
debt. Total Current Assets stood at Tk. 923.50 million in FY2022-23 against Tk. 860.17
million in £Y2021-22 registering & growth of 7.37%. The leverage position siigntly improved
in the last year cue toa significant equity infusion, Total Equity registered 59.22% growth in
Fy2022-23 ard stood at Tk. 780.20 million- mostly comprised ¢f aggregate share capital. The
crowth of assets was lower than that of equities, resulting in a cecrease in the Borrowexd
fund during the latest analyzing period- supperted to retain @ moderate i2verage and
coverage position. This underpins “he contribution of Borrowed Funds, less than that of Equity
Funds to generate returns that could ctherwise have been much lower in later years.
Furthermare, analysis of leverage ratias shows a mixed position. The borrowing reguirement
of the business moves in tandem with the business oparations, Total borrawed funds declined
and were recorded at Tk. 1,012.18 million In FY2022-23 from Tk. 1,258.07 milion in FY202:-
22 in the form of both long-term and shart-term ioans. Growth funding of the Company (s
mostly characterized by some external borrewings which impactad its leverage position 33
oxpressed by the Debt/Equity ratic of 1.89% in FYZ022-23 (FY2021-22: 3.27x) generating low

credit risk exposure.

The coverage position was marginally exposed by satisfactory repeyment capacity &s its
earning base is less robust compared o the interest expenses which is tantamount 19 other
gearing ratios, Weak coverage position was observed in the latest period expressed by 1.11x
of DECR and 1.63x of EBIT to Interest ratio to meet its financial charges. CRISL also expects
the Company's debt protection indicators o remain strong an the back of healthy accrua’s
from operations, low gearing and strong internal fund generation capabilizies, ciowavar, any
undertaking of external debt may :mpact thie cash flow and worsen the leverage positic
the future which might impede its performante to some extent.
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8.0 LIQUIDITY AND FUND MANAGEMENT

Indicators 30-Jun-23 30-Jun-
0.

|..Current Ratio (X) 1,09

{ 1ok Ratio (%) .62 Q.

:_Net Werking Capital {Th, In milfion) ¥2.38 {42.54)
Cperating Cash fow (Tk. in miliion; 163.2C S0.88
Coerating Cycle (Days) 210.92 193.5%
Cash Convetsior Tycte (Davs, o 23rseil 137.8C i

Footwear have their product lifecycle which ramains around 1-2 years, so, outmoded shoes
have to be liquidated %o relieve the inventory position as new products take place of the olcer
des:gns. High inventory requirement in the form of finished goods and raw materials incrasses
the working capital sensitivity of the Company, MKFPLC has been carrying ouT its operaticn
with moderate liquidity. 1t needs funds for procuring required raw matenais, warkers
salaries, and other zdministrative costs. The company maintains its working capial
requirement as well as liquidity from receiving sales proceeds, borrawing from ganks, trace
credit facilities from suppliers, etc. The overail liquidity profile, however, remained lowe:
during the rating exercise irrespective of the same business strategy. The liquidity index
showed @ mixed cutcome in recent years as the Current ratio increasec from G.95x 0
FY2021-22 to 1.09% in FY2022-23, Furthermore, the liquidity measures are emphasized mare:
on the future Cash Fiow generation. ability rather than the maximization of profits. It is
understeod that to amplify the growth, the, Company has to irject additional funds, whech
may put pressure on the future Cash Flow. The Cash Fiow from the Operation was somewhat
yolatie due to large fluctuations n Net Working Capital management, Divergent Cash Fiow
measures after adjusting Sales with Debtors and Cost of Goads Said with Inventory and
Advances reflected positive Cash Flow. Subsequently, positive Cash Flow also indicates the
Company has Tk. 163.20 millon of surplus Cash in Hand to reinforce revenue growth and
relax Working Capital Management. To maintain steady operating efficiency to boost the
earning status, the Tompany IS requirad to take measures through effective check and
balance techniques in-order to maintain sustainabie performance regarding working capital

management.
9.0 CREDIBILITY AND BANKING RELATIONSHIP %
ER Liability Position

MKEBL(C has been enjoying the financial flexibitity to raise funds from Rupali Bank Limited. As
reported by lenders’ teadback, it has & satisfactory track record of business dealings by
meeting the debt obligations, and the performance was found to have & clean credit history
with no record of dishonoring checks and averdue and no experienca of idzn rescheculing &
forced loan or ne instances of 'oan classification during the during this period.

Tie i Milhop
Limit Qutstanding as on 1
Name af Hoade 2 331/10/2023 Classificati |
Bank { Non- 1 Non- | or Status
Punded Funded Funded | Funded
Term Loan-t q59.3 03 |
g 596.32 = ;
Term Logi-2 173.(5 218,70 l l
iBCP 75.98 a3.74 A |
Total Term Loan -1 703:36 :_BS52,74
CC {Hys0) 140,00 151.61 |
Rupali Bark a I Unglassifier:
Limited COVID 1% Rey. {2100 25.15 | A
Refinaree Scheme e sk i
ERF/ PAD 36200 E 189,24
oo T 2742 |
GD 7.7 8.28 :
TOVIS 1¢ Stimuius Funds 17.13 | H
+ Workers Salary i a5 30 S '27 | e ui 4
Tokal Short Term 219.03 560.00 i 229,22 | 155.24 PO
PR i | Grand Yota! | 922,40 | 1,082.02 i o)
| rage&of13 |
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9.2  Security Arrangement Against Bank Exposure

Name of Bank

Security Arrangements

S R |

Rupali Bank

» Registered mortgage of total 350.88 decimals land with factery suilcng lecated |

T Tiypothacation af Stock, plant & machinery, book debis and recewadle i
at Mauna, Gazipur {

He
Limited « Personal guarantee of all the directors of the company
{ oAl standard charge documents, 2» per Bank's format
10.0 RISK ANALYSIS

10.1 Global Instability Risk

Access to MKFRLC's giobal sourcing enables it o change in product mix towards highegr enc
products, The pusiness of the Company is hignly dependent on the timely maovement of
shipments far its smeoth export and import. At this moment the warld is facing crisis, which
has aMacted almost avery country inciuding Bangladesh. The world economy is anticipating &
stressful econamy in the coming days. Given this situation, the business is highly vuinerable
to global instability risk.

10.2 Foreign Exchange Risk

For the last few

years, Bangladesh Taka nas geprecated, but there has been no major impact

on it, as the company also gets revenue equivalent to USC. Therefore, foreign currancy risk 15

relatively iower,

As its imports and exports are both through foreign currency, it benefits from

-he effact of natural hedging, as such the impact of exchange fluctuation is minimum, CRISL
‘dentified that some dependence on imparted rav materals, which eventually incraasec the
currency fluctuation risk and price susceptibility.

10.3 Market Risk

The footivear industry is inherently competitive which is &isc reflected in maoderate operating
margins of the Company. Coping with the size, scope and the changing requirements of the
consumer basa by identifying and developing opportunities that will match up today's needs

are the major chalienges in the footwear markes. As international footwear incusiry 1S &

mature Industry

to sorme extent, the opportunities lier it market expansion with diversification

in product design and pricing. However, future growth of the Company will depend on the
acceptance of its high value products in line with the sconomic condition and spending
preference of its customer base. Generally there is various tocal and international companies’
slipper available in.the market such as Bata, Apex, Bay, Lotto (italia) and different China and
Myanmar brand slippers, So competition is high in the industry for presence ¢f a large
aumber of renown and brand competitors. High cumpetition along with low entry and exit
barriers {because of capital requirement as weil as overall incarporation and operation
methadology) creates & challenge for the Company o continue sustainable growth in the
future. However, the revenue proliferation anc the financial performance #re deduced e

reduce the flow

of growth in the upceming years due to the fall in price. It impagts pricing

flexibitity and losing business to.some extant.

10.4 Sustainable Growth Funding Risk

Main chalienges of the business will be to stay between managing i1s growsh and innovation
in a mature industry. The growth depends on new technaiogy; “aghion trends and innavalion
However, recent growth rate suggests that i would be & chellenge in ng with current
competitive structure of the footwear industry, The management experience and expertise

ervisaged with
stabie business

the revenue mix and well-spread export chaneel is supportable o generate
performance and favorabie growth funding, although some nan-diversifiabie

challenges posed by the systematic risks may put slight downward pressure on the growth
prospect due to the competiticn and industry characteristics as a whaole, Maintaming tho

present fevel of growth would require it to increase its capacity in n2ar future, resulting in
further investment requirements. In addition, it is important to note that a negative
correlation is scrutinized betwesn revenue and quantity per unit which indicates that a

regular price hike has reduced the earnings growth. Consicering these factors, it stli has
scund growth funding opportunities in the form of necessary land purchase, fresh financal
injection with sound leverage flexibility as well as necessary logistic suppart te improve
further operational efficiency. The future growth of the business also depends on how quickly

and adequately

it can manage the funds.

L2 A
For Chief Executive Officer
Tanzirul istam
vice President
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10.5 Cost Management Risk

Lack of steady revenue growth besides uncontrolied direct costs may ead 1o stressed
orofitability. Frequent fluctuation in per unit input price can be a risk in obtaining & healthy
tnanciai matrix. Especially the bottom-line profit 1s highly expasec by the uncontrollable
rature of the price of core raw materiais and finished goods. Morecver, the core profits may
te eaten up as an aftermath of any input price hike of the cost structure by continuous
constart competitive costing derived from the industry pressure. In the cost structure- raw
materiais, factory overheads followed by saiary and utility expenses are the major partions
and such high costs affect the profitabitity to some extent, Nowadays, out of many problems,
rising production costs driven by energy cost hikes have been an alarming issue to maintain
the sustainability and competitiveness of the business. Amidst vuinerable input costs, the
pricing inflexibikty and intense competition in the market have also created 2xposure in
ogerating margins in this regarc. Continuing business with an established market presen
and moderaze value addition iead to stability in profitability margin. Cperational expenses
siended with proper inventory management apart from the efficient cocrdination amorg
different production units mitigate the financial risk to some extent. Increasing market
demand, the volume of storage capacity and the scale of cperation, substantizi managemert
axpertise, and wide distribution channei eventually facilitate the Cempany to pass through
the inflated price to the buyers- which helps to mitigate price fluctuation risk. It may aisc
help to plan timely and appropriately to run the business in line with the target market and
mitigate/offset the price fluctuation-reiated risk by reducing the operating cycle lead time to
some extent.

10.6 Raw Material Procurement Risk

Most of profitable businesses are eminent by their efficient, effective & optimum raw
materials procurement strategies. A smooth supply of raw materials throughott the year it &
concern for the foatwear industry. Major raw materials are scurced manly from Chira
Import-based supplies are likely to pe affected by any uncontrollable event cr country s
the transaction or political barrier. Any supply gap of the above raw materials may expose
the company to raw materials supply risk. Long-standing relationships anc procuremernt were
chsarved from the diversified generic suppliers. The volatility o the input price deduce to
reduce profitability significantly and creates expasure to risk in this regard. The upstream
value chain is envisaged by the exposure of frequent input price fluctuation aleng with tight
inventory management which generates the major raw materiai-releted risks. However.
major risks asscciated with the procurement of raw materials are tharacterized oy hz
volatility of raw material prices with foreign mxchange risk, fragmented market, nad
competition among the manufacturers. Althcugh the size of the accounts receivable and
inventory portrays its working capital intensity, which is not unfamiliar with the size accerd
to the industry norms. CRISL observed that the key leverage of cost-effectivaness les in the
efficient raw material pfocuremen{ strategy. The economies of scale from & large volume of
cransactions, the flexibility regarding procurement activity and structured stock recording
systern, stock huffering, repeat procurement ¢f simiiar products according to the customers’
sreferences, proper utilization of management experience & expertise regarding the business
and market dynamics- also significantly assist to miticate the raw marerial procurement nsx,
Moreover any type of forwarding contract and long-term agreement with the key supplers n
the context of the purchase price mey also offset the stock-relatec risk.

10.7  Technoiagical Risk

The technolegy used 'n the footwear indusiry i3 mainly developed in Italy and’ exporters of
Bangiadesh enjoy high demand in the international market as low-cost suppliers, Because of
increasing labor costs in India and China, Bangladesh has been gawning a competitive
advantage over its global compatitors. But these countries are technaiogicelly advanged o
develop riew footwear technology replacing the need for manual iator. New and, mere
automated efficient technology will create a major threat to labor-intensive exporters ¢
Bangladesh. Considering it's capita expenditure mode, the ieverage and OCF may graste
sorme pressure in the short term but in the long run, this may compansate for the temdgrery
loss and mitigate the technological risks. The Introduction of new technology is a matter of
concern for the Company due to its nature of business. CRISL observes that there is a gand
chance of immediate impact of technoiogical change or cevelopments on the operaticn of tra

| Page 1D of 13 i business due to the BMRE through issuance of Bond.

For Ghief Executive Officer
Tanzirul isiam
Vice President

C-P

L

Mioiis

age | 142

Managing
MK FOOTWEAE




Strictly Private & Confidencial

clllSI‘ Credit Rating infarmation and Services Limited

Settny plala standard &t wtiswst foct Firg: ISQ 8001 2015 Certibes Craais Ratmg Company in Bangizdesh Cperal ng Sinca 1435

CREDIT RATING REPORT
On
MK FOOTWEAR PLC

10.8 Skilled Labor Shortage Risk

As stated earlier, the footwear sector is mostiy 8 labor-intensive industry. Labors generzily
have skills In cutting & sewing but lack skilis in fasting & finishing cperations. Ary swiching
of skilled labor from tais section may hamper the company's production. Although MKFPLL
has the optian of hiring skilled manpawer, it may not prove cost-effective for the company.

11.0 OBSERVATION SUMMARY

[ "Rating Comforts: "Rating Concerns:

«  Moderate profitability @nd fiquadity

«  Good production facilities
«  Skiled labcr shertage risk

. Experignced management team

: +  bisting in stock exchange « . Regw material supply risk

i Business Prospects: . Business Challenges:

l +  Prespective industry in Bangladesh «  Prica fluctuation ir the international

} «  Immense coportunity for market market

‘ growth H »  Gicbal economic maitdown :
o Further expansion of capacity + __ Foreign Excrenge erisis . 4

END OF THE REPORT

(Infermauan used herein is abtaited from sources beliaved to be accurete and refiable. However, CRISL doas n!
guarantee e Eccuracy, adequacy or compietaness of aay infarmation and (s ~ot responsible far 0y ATOTS
omissions or for the results obtained from the use o intormation. Rating is an opinion on credit gusiity anly
ant s nat a recommendarion o buy orsell any secunt 5 rghos Of this report dre feserveo hy CRISL. Contewis
may be UseL’ by news meala and researchers with due agkuawiedgernent)

P 5

[We have examined, prepared, Snafized snd issued this tepert without compromising with e maciers o
conflice of intersst, Wa have aise campliad with alf: the reguiraments, polizy procedures of the £3EC
prescribed by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Carmmission.]
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CRISL RATING SCALES AND DEFINITIONS
LONG-TERM RATINGS OF CORPORATE

H RATING i DEFINITION .
: AAA Tnvestment Grada 1
Triple A ity rated [n s category is adgpsigen 1o be of best quality, offer bighast safety and have highest
. {Highest Safery} | credit qualty, Risk factors are negligivie and visk fre, nearest to sisk free Goveranent bonds ¥
i 'Cnarv.rnq are unikely to have any 5eficus WMpACT on thig
category of Companis.
AAS, AA, AAv Zrtity rased in ths categary 18 adjudged te be of high quality, offer higrer safery and have higl
(DouJsdie A} cracit quality. This level of rating Indicatss 2 cerplrate eatty with a scurd crean profile

(High Safety)

without significant problems. Risks are modest and may vary sligatly front B 1o tine dEsuse
economic sondikions.

Ennty ratec i this category is adjudped w offer adequate sa‘ety for tomedy repayment of finangiai

(Vuinerable | external s.gpost
TTEntity ratec n this <ategery s adjudged to be very Mgty yulnerabie. Entity might not hava

At Ay A
Smgle A ohtigations. This lavet of ratng indicates 2 corporate entity with an adequate credic prafite. Risk
{Adequate ‘actars are more varilie ant Jreamr 1n Perinds af eCONOMIC SIFess than shose rated in the higher !
Safety) Lategores. i
seB+, 8BS, Entity ratec in this category 18 adjudged 1o offer modarate degree of safety lor timely repayrent of |
BBB-~ finanuial odtigations, This lavel of rating MTcates thit & cOMPany s undenperformng © some !
Triple B srens. Risk fartars are more varabis in periads of pIoNOMIC sress than those rated o the-higher |
{Moderste cateqorics. These entities are however conskiersd 1o, have the capadlity 10 avercome me above: |
... Safety, | mendoned broitations. i
8B+, B8, BB- Spoculative rade
Doudie 8 Entity rated in this category s adjudged to lack key drotection factors, which resuits o s
¢inadecuate Inagequate safety. This levei of rating indicates a clenpany 3s below investmant grads bul deamed
Safetvy Lixely 10 maet sdligations when due. Overall quality may axve ug or down Trequenty within thiy
i_category.
B+, B, B- i Entity rated in this category i adjudged to oe with high risk. Tunaly repayrrient of fina
Siogie ¥ i opligations 1s impeirad by serious prodiems which the entaty is facsd witih. Whilst an entity ~ated o
Risky this cateqery might e currenty meating ooiiqations in kme through creating extems; hapies
CCC+,CLT, . Entity rated in this caregory is adjidged 10 i vulnerabie 300 might fail 13 meel it 120
cee- frequently or ft may cuivently mesting obligatians in time thraugh coeating exterral habiities, |
Teple C Continuance of this waold depand upeon favorable eccecruc andiJons or o some degres of

o
and uniess |

€C+,CC, CC-

Double € ! required financiai fexhilly to continun maating chligations: however, contingance of timely
High © repayment is subject to external suppart.
| Molnesable) ..
€+,C,C- TUEntity rated in this catagory is adfudged to be wib extremaly specutadve in Umely epsy
Single € . financial odigations, This tevel of rating indicatas entites with very serous prameirs
{Exatrenvely { external support is avoviced, they wauld b unatle 1o meet fAnanc:al GHUGSLIvNS.
Speculativel
[ Defauit Grade 1

{Cefauity Entity rated ir this category i adjeaged Lo bia e.ther afready in defaul or expatted to ha ¢ 2

ol A IORGANTT rRIngS, CRIGL ausigns tPosibive ] Won o INTRCAte that Ihe iS5
g bo Indicate thal Dhe iSsU0 16 rankad ad tha botism end of 11§ GAPSRT eaNng DRAQINY. Laag-tTe raunr RERKE ey g dedols
9.

vanked 3 e woopr~nd v TE LN

SHORT-TERM RATINGS OF CORPORATE

Highest Grade
Highest certainty of timely psyment. Shovt-tanm kquidity inciuding interzl fund genesation 17
very st7Ong ant BCCess 70 Altermative sources of funds is ouwsending. Safety is almast like risk

frex Gavernment shors-termn obligaticns.

High Grade
High certainty of tmaly payment, Liguidity factory 2re  strong ang supported by, aood
fundamental protection factors. Rick factars arz very small.

Good Grade

Coed certainty of timely payment, Liguidity factors and company fundamsntas are sound. |
Alchough ongoing furcing needs may eniarge totat fNANCIRG refiTemMents, ACCESE Lo CIpRDE
markets 16 good. Risk factors are snvy! i
Moderate Grade

Moszrate liquigity and other pratactinn tactors qualily an entiy i ba in avestmact qrade. Risk
{aciofs are 13rger and subject t more variation.

N

ST-5

ST-6

o obliganians, Opzrating factors ard market ATTEsS MOy e subject 1o a high degres of

| tar hiquigity ang external supnon 1§ uncensy.

73 lative Grade

Speculative investment charactersiics. UQucity 5 not sufficient (¢ ensane discharging debl i
IO

Deafauit
Entity |5 in default or s likely 1o aefauk in discharging 3 sharttermm abitgauons, barait aczess

.
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CRISL RATING SCALES AND DEFINITIONS
BANK LOAN/ FACILITY RATING SCALES AND DEFINITIONS- LONG-TERM

RATING. DEFINLTION et
bic AAR Investment Grade
(&ir Triple A) Bank Loan/ Facilities enjoyec by barking cltenis rated in tins tatégory are adiunged Fave

{Highest Safery) highest crecit qualty, offér highast safety and carry aimost no sk, Pusk fzcrars are negligible
and almost nearest to fisk free Govemment ben¢s ami securies. hanging ecawsic
cirtumatances are unikely to have any sersus inpact an s categary 211G ns/ faolines. &
bir AAS, Dir AR, Bank Loan, Facilities enjoyed by banking chents rated in This catzgery 3 dyucped to bave
blr high credit quatity, offer higher sufely and have high cradit-quality This lave: of rating mdicates

AA- that the loon /¢ faciliies enjoyed by an entity has spund credit grofile and without any
Deuble A} sigruficant problem. Risks ars modest and may vy slightly from time ta ticne becsuse of
{Higly Safety} ecorcmic condition:
i Ak, Bir &, Bank Loan/ Racllities rated in this coteqory are aojudged ro carry adequste safely fur treiy
bir A~ repayment; settiement. This tavel of rating indicates that the laar / faciities srooved by an |
Single A entity nave adeguate and relidtle crect profile. Risk fectors ary move varable ang graater m |
[Adequate Safety | periods of gcontmic stress than these rated in the rlghes cateconas. i
e BBB, DI Bank Loan/ Facilities rated i) this cateqory are cyudged to offer mecerate dugres o safuly !
asa, uimely repayment Mulfifing commitments. This fevel of rating ngitates that ths cilent ericying !
bir 888~ pans, facilities under-performing 10 seme 2reas, Sowever, these cients ace ¢onsiderad to have |
Triphe 8 the capability to overcome the above-menticned limratons. Casn fows 2re frregar bus the
Modarate Safety! | same is sufficlent to service the loany Tuifil commitments. Ris« factors are more varnable
pariods of economic stress than those rated io the fighec REQRNES. e e
bir BB+, bir BB, Speculative/ Non investment Grade
2 BB- Bank Loan/ Facilities rated in this category 37e adjudged to I3ck key protecton fastory, woich
Duble & results in an inddequate safety. This iuwel of rating ihdicates loans, faciiities enjoyec oy 2 chignd
{Inagequate are balow investmens grade. Mowever, clients may discharge the odligaticn irregularly within

Safty) reasonadie time aithough they are in financialy cash problem. These foans / fazlites need
strong moniering from bavikecs side. Thera is passibiity OF overroming the dusmess situanon
with the support from group concerns/ awners, Overall quality may mave up or duwwn

frequently Within this cateqory .

zir B4, bir B, Bank Loan, Fadiktics rated i s category are adjudged o have weak pratection facbors;

e 8- Timely repayment af financia! obligators nay be imneivred by probiems, Whilst o Bank Lt

Single & rated ‘b this category might ha currantly meeting obigations in tme, continuance af this woukl

(Somewnst Risk) depend upon favarable economic conditions or ¢n some dagree of externsi suppodt. Specidl
e | monitoring is hecded from the Ainancial nstitutions to recover he installmarts. RS T |

© Ul CGCH, bir CGC, | Risky Grade

sir £CC- Bonk Loan; Fasilities rated i bue catasory are adijudged ta be la vulngrable status snd the

ipie C clents ensoying these loaasy facilities right fail to meet ite repayments fraqugntay or & may

{Rasky ) zurrently meeting ablgations thyough creating axternal supportfiiabilities. Continuance of this

wouid depreud Cpen b rondis ot or some degree of external sud00dt:

| _Thess ivans ¢ facikties need strong monitoring from bankers, side for mecavery.
Bir CC+, bir €C, Bank Loan; Facitties ratec i this catenory ove adjudgesl ta carry hig!

e Ul o( 523 ioan? fawity might not have fequired fmancial flexshilty (0 cpatinue meetng ovligations:
Double A i af timely repayment is sudjest to exernal suppoert These IDang [
H {High Risky} faciities need stoong mon| Frorn bankers side for recovery.
Sir G+, bic €, Bank Loan; Faclities rated i1 this cabeqory are adiudged to be exuemely risky i rmely
birC- repay t/ {uifilling co ! ‘Thig lavzl of rating ingdicates that the divnts anying thess
i (Extremely ioan/ faciibes are with very serious o-obiems and uniess external support arovided, they
i Speculative} wauld be upable to meet financial obligations:
bro Detault Grade
{(Defauit) Entities rated in this category are adjucied 0 be either alreacy o Jault ar expectsc o be in
detauit,

SHORT-TERM RATINGS

Highest Grade
Highrast certainty of timely payment.

ri-Lerm liquidity Inciuding internal fund yenesatio:

P
i Hrg¥eL very strong and acosss 1o akternative sources of funds Is outstanding, Safety is almast’ ke

i | free Government short-term obiigations.

i High Grade \

i D ST2 High certminty of timely peymernt. Liquidity: factors are strang Snd Supponed by aeod
G| tuncamental protection factors. Risk fagtors ace ey smaj.

H Goad Grade

f ST Good certainty of timely payment. Liuidiy factors srd company fundamentals are sound.

i Aithough ongoing funding neads mMay 2rtargs total fnenaing “EquITEIMEnts, dCress te capital
markets i gond. Risk Yactors are small, u

Satisfactory Grade

HirST-4 Satisfactory tquidity aqd other prataction factoss qualify 1ssues a5 o irvest grade. sk (acors

are larger 8y subiec to mose varauas,

Non-Investment Grade

O ST-5 Socnulative inestment charactersiics. Liguidity ig nok sufficient t0 intura FGRMSt dispuption
debt service. Operating factors and rrarket access mav Le sudect to a high degrea of |
vanaten, {

B ST6 Default

1 Inativurion fatied to meet Hnsncal Qbigateily a1

Zor Chisf Executive Officer
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Vice President
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Shibly Amrah Soor an
Chief Executive Officer Svianag
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Strictly Private & Confidencial

Not applicable as no underwriter is recruited
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Strictly Private & Confidencial
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Not Applicable as the bond will be issued through private placement.
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c ; s y Managing Director
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Community Bank investment Limitec & Footwear Ltd. =



Strictly Private & Confidencial

Not Applicable as the bond will be issued through private place';nent.
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Shibly Amran
Chief Executive Officer
“ommunity Bank invegtn

Mohammad TohiguHslam
Company Secretary
i Footwear Ltd
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Strictly Private & Confidencial

The Bond shall be offered through Private Offer to the eligible investors. Issuer and/or Arranger shall
ensure that the prospective Investors shall have been provided with a copy of the Information
Memorandum either in hard copy or soft copy and an invitation letter to subscribe. Based on the
Information Memorandum and subsequent clarification of queries (if any), the Investors shall submita
letter of commitment to the Arranger and/or Issuer with the amount of intended subscription specified.
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